CHAMELEON 32 QUICK REFERENCE GUIDE

Version 4.8

This version of the Chameleon 32 Quick Reference Guide corresponds to Standard Software Release 4.3.2.

TEKELEC 26580 Agoura Road Calabasas, California 91302

Part Number 910–3353 Part Number 909–3353 October 11, 1991

Information in this documentation is subject to change without notice. Any software which is furnished in conjunction with or embedded within the product(s) described in this documentation is furnished under a license agreement and/or a nondisclosure agreement, and may be used only as expressly permitted by the terms of such agreements(s). Unauthorized use or copying of the software or this documentation can result in civil or criminal penalties.

No part of this documentation may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying or recording, for any purpose without the express written permission of an authorized representative of Tekelec.

Copyright Tekelec 1991. All rights reserved.

Chameleon 32 is a registered trademarks of Tekelec.

Other product names used herein are for identification purposes only, and may be trademarks of their respective companies.

The hardware, software and documentation comprising the product(s) are provided under a *Tekelec limited 12 month warranty*. Other than the limited warranties that are expressly stated therein, and without limiting the generality thereof. Tekelec makes no warranty, express or implied, to you or to any other person or entity, concerning the hardware, the software and this documentation. Tekelec will not be liable for incidental, consequential, lost profits, or other similar damages, or for damages resulting from loss of use, data, revenues or time. In no event will Tekelec's liability, regardless of the form of claim, for any damages ever exceed the price/license fee paid for the specific product. You may have other rights which vary from state to state.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER

PAGE

CONFIGURATION
MAIN CONFIGURATION MENU
APPLICATIONS SELECTION MENU
PAGE MANIPULATION KEYS
FILE FORMAT AND REQUIREMENTS
HARD DISK DIRECTORY STRUCTURE
FILE MANAGEMENT MENU
UTILITIES MENU
PRINT KEYS AND COMMANDS
REMOTELY CONTROLING THE CHAMELEON
TERMINAL EMULATION
KERMIT FILE TRANSFER
BASIC RATE INTERFACE SETUP MENU
PRIMARY RATE INTERFACE SETUP MENU
2B1Q U-INTERFACE SETUP MENU
2B1Q SIMULATION CONFIGURATION
ANALYSIS CONTROL/SHIFT KEYS
HISTORY DISPLAY KEYS
DUAL LINE APPLICATION
BERT APPLICATION
DIRECT-TO-DISK APPLICATION
STATISTICS
STATISTICS
TRIGGERING APPLICATION
TRIGGERING CONDITIONS (FUNCTION KEYS)
SS#7 Level 3 and Level 4 Triggering Options
SIMULATOR ROAD MAP
FRAMEM LAPD DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE
FRAMEM HDLC/SDLC MNEMONIC TABLE
SIMP/L LAPD DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE
SIMP/L HDLC DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE
BSC DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE
ASYNC DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE
BASIC COMMANDS
FRAMEM COMMANDS
FRAMEM DMI COMMANDS
SIMP/L COMMANDS
ASYNC BASIC COMMANDS
N N

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER

BSC BASIC COMMANDS
SITREX COMMANDS
SITREX AUTOMATIC SIMULATOR COMMANDS
SITREX DEFAULT PSEUDO-USERS
SITREX TRACE PAGE COMMANDS 57
SITREX TRACE INTERPRETATION
SITREX ERROR CODES
C SHELL COMMANDS
C SHELL REFERENCE
C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
vi COMMANDS
C PROTOCOL LIBRARY COMMON FUNCTIONS
AUTO HDLC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
BOP C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
LAPD C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
SDLC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
BASIC RATE INTERFACE LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
2B1Q U-INTERFACE C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
BSC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
C PRIMARY RATE INTERFACE LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
ASYNC LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE
C ANALYSIS LIBRARY FUNCTIONS
RS232 CABLE
V.35 INTERFACE
RS423/V.10/V.36 INTERFACE
RS423/V.10/V.36 CONNECTOR PINOUT
RS422/V.11/V.36 INTERFACE
RS422/V.11/V.36 CONNECTOR PINOUT
PARALLEL PRINTER CONNECTOR PINOUT
SERIAL PRINTER CONNECTOR PINOUT
REMOTE I/O CONNECTOR PINOUT
AUX 1 AND AUX 2 PORTS CONNECTOR PINOUTS
SCSI INTERFACE SIGNALS
DSCS INTERFACE
G.703 CO-DIRECTIONAL INTERFACE MODULE
HINTERFACE I/O MODULE

CONFIGURATION

This page provides brief step-by-step instructions for configuring a port for Monitoring or Simulation.

- 1. Power up the Chameleon. The main configuration menu should appear (see page 2).
- 2. Move the arrow cursor to Mode of Operation and press *F1 Monitor* or *F2 Simulat*. If you have the 256k Data Capture option, you will also have the *F4 Fast Mo* (fast monitoring) function key which enables you to monitor up to 256K bps.
- 3. Move the arrow cursor to the Physical Interface parameter. Press the function key that corresponds to the type of interface you are going using to use.
 - a. If you selected Primary (Primary Rate Interface) or Basic (Basic Rate Interface) as your Physical Interface, press *F7 PhysicI* to display the setup menu for the interface.
 - b. Complete the physical interface setup menu and press *Go* to return to the main configuration menu (see pages 13 16 for details about these setup menus).
- 4. Press *F6 Setup* to display the protocol setup menu.
- 5. Use the function keys to select a protocol and values for the other displayed parameters. Press *Go* to return to the main configuration menu.
- 6. If Monitoring is your Mode of Operation, move the arrow cursor to Monitoring Data Source. Press *F1* Line (monitor a live line) or *F2 Disk* (monitor data that has been stored to disk).
- 7. If Monitoring is your Mode of Operation, move the arrow cursor to Capture Mode. Press *F1 Cycle* (cyclic acquisition buffer usage) or *F2 1Buffr* (stop acquisition when buffer becomes full).
- 8. For Dual Port machines, follow the same steps described above to configure the second port. If you do not want to use the second port, select *Off* as its Mode of Operation.
- Press Go to display the Applications Selection Menu (see page 3 for detail of menu).
- 10. To select an application/simulator, move the cursor arrow to the application name and press the function key that loads the application/simulator for the desired port. (The arrow cursor indicates the active window. To change between the Monitor and Simulate windows press *Shift* ↓ or *Shift* ↑.)

If you are using the Primary Rate Interface, load the PRIMARY application to monitor the PRI during runtime. If you are using the Basic Rate Interface, load the BASIC application to monitor the BRI during runtime.

11. When you have selected all desired applications/simulators, press Go to start them.

Page banners appear for each application (except Direct-to-Disk). Use the page keys shown on page 4 to display one or more pages.

A Simulator is indicated by a page banner named Simulate A or Simulate B. For all Simulators (except Sitrex), when you display the page, the Simulator prompt (!) appears, enabling you to enter commands and run programs immediately. To access the Simulator Parameter Set—up Menu, at the ! prompt enter the command: *setup*. Change the displayed parameters as needed, and then press Z to return to the ! prompt.

In Sitrex you are taken directly to the Parameter set-up menu and not to the ! prompt. Change the displayed parameters as needed and then press Z to access the Simulator.

- 12. To stop one or more applications or Simulators, select the Configuration page, and:
 - Press F10 Exit to stop all applications, Simulators and the C Shell, OR
 - Move the arrow cursor to the application/simulator and press the Stop key (F1, F2, or F3) which stops the selected application on the desired port, OR
 - Press F7 Reset to restart all applications without stopping them

MAIN CONFIGURATION MENU



-2-

APPLICATIONS SELECTION MENU



-3-

PAGE MANIPULATION KEYS

KEY	FUNCTION
Move ↑	Moves the page banner upward one line at a time (increases the size of the page).
Move↓	Moves the page banner downward one line at a time (decreases the size of the page).
Scroll ↑	Scrolls the data displayed in the page upward one line at a time.
Scroll ↓	Scrolls the data displayed in the page downward one line at a time.
Shift Scroll ↑	Scrolls the data displayed in the page upward the number of lines displayed in the page.
Shift Scroll ↓	Scrolls the data displayed in the page downward the number of lines displayed in the page.
Shift Hide Page	Hides the active page so that the banner is no longer visible on the screen (the application continues to run).
Show Page	Displays a page that has been hidden with Shift Hide Page.
Replace	Replaces the active page with one that has been hidden using Shift Hide Page.
Shift Move ↑	Displays the page in a special full-screen mode referred to as Blow Mode (indicated by the letter B on the top left side of the banner). Other pages cannot be accessed when the active page is in Blow Mode. Shift Move \uparrow again disables Blow Mode, and returns the screen to its previous state.
Shift Move ↓	This option is available only on Chameleon 32s with PROM version 1.16 or later. When the Chameleon Remote I/O port is configured and connected to a remote device (async terminal or another Chameleon) this invokes the remote serialized mode, which transmits the active page to the remote device in serialized mode. This enables you to control the Chameleon from the remote device. See page10 for a step-by-step procedure.

FILE FORMAT AND REQUIREMENTS

<u>Files</u>

The Chameleon files are compatible with MS–DOS 2.x and 3.x format. File names must adhere to these MS–DOS conventions:

- File names are 1 8 characters in length
- Optional 1 3 character file extension
- Optional drive specification of A: (hard disk drive) or B: (floppy disk drive)
- File name and file extension separated by a period (.)
- Acceptable file name and path characters are:

A-Z a-z 0-9 \ - _

Hard Disk Directories

The Chameleon includes a 40 Mbyte hard disk which provides 10 Mbytes of storage for system software and user programs, and 30 Mbytes of storage for data capture. The hard disk has the directory structure shown on the following page. The root directory can contain a maximum of 140 files. The other directories can contain a maximum of 600 files.

If the optional C Development System package is installed on your Chameleon 32, you will also have these directories: \BIN, \INCLUDE, \LIB, and \USR.

<u>Floppy Disk Directories</u>

Generally, when you save traffic or copy files to a floppy disk, the file is copied into the root directory of the floppy disk (unless you copy an entire *directory* to a floppy disk). When accessing a floppy disk for an application, the Chameleon searches only the root directory. Therefore all user files should be in the root directory of a floppy disk. A maximum of 112 files are permitted in the root directory of a floppy disk.

C Application Programs

If the Chameleon 32 has the optional C package installed, you can run a C program compiled on the Chameleon 32 directly from the C shell.

You can also start a C application program from the Applications Selection menu. To do this, copy the executable file (with the file name extension .exe) to one of the following directories:

- A:\TEKELEC\ANALYSIS\xxxx (See page 6 for valid subdirectories of ANALYSIS)
- A:\TEKELEC\SIMUL\xxxx
 (See page 6 for valid subdirectories of SIMUL)

The directory determines when the application will appear in the Applications Selection menu. For example, if copied to A:TEKELEC\ANALYSIS\APPL, the application will appear in the Monitoring window of the Applications Selection menu for all protocols. If copied to A:TEKELEC\ANALYSIS\X25, the application will appear in the Monitoring window of the Applications Selection menu only when X.25 is selected as the protocol. If copied to A:TEKELEC\SIMUL, the application will appear in the Simulation window of the Applications Selection menu for all protocols. The program can then be loaded and run as described on page 1.

-5-



-6-

FILE MANAGEMENT MENU

The File Management page can be invoked at any time by pressing the *Files* key. The File Management Menu contains the following options:

- F1 Chdir Changes the current disk directory.
- F2 Copy Copies selected files to the hard disk or a floppy disk.
- F3 Delete Deletes files from the the hard disk or a floppy disk.
- F4 Rename Renames the selected files.
- F5 Format Formats floppy diskette.
- F6 Disk Copy Copies the entire contents of a floppy disk to another floppy disk.
- F7 Transmit File Transmits files to a host computer (see page 12 for more information).
- F8 Receive File Receives files from a host computer (see page 12 for more information).
- F9 Connect Establishes a connection between the Chameleon and a host computer for file transfer or host terminal emulation. See page 11 for more information.

Directory Format

There are two directory display formats. The default format displays files in four columns and shows the file name only. This format lists 60 files per screen. There is also a detailed directory format, which displays the time, date, and size of the file. The detailed format displays 15 files per screen in a single column.

To toggle between the two display formats, press Ctrl D.

If the directory is longer than one screen display, the page number appears in the upper right corner. To move to the previous or next screen, press Shift \uparrow or Shift \downarrow , respectively.

List Selector

The List Selector enables you to select several files or sub-directories for a single file management operation. To use the List Selector, do the following:

- 1. When the disk directory is displayed, move the arrow cursor to the first file or directory you want to select.
- 2. Press the space bar to highlight the file or directory name. (To unselect a file, press the space bar a second time.)
- 3. Continue this procedure to highlight all desired files.
- 4. Select the file management operation. For example, press F2 Copy to copy the selected files.

View ASCII File(s)

After opening a directory to the file level, you can view the text of one or more of the files. This is possible only for ASCII files, not for directories or binary files.

To view ASCII files:

- 1. Move the cursor to the desired file.
- 2. Press the spacebar to highlight it.
- 3. Repeat steps 1 and 2 for any additional files.
- Press Ctrl V. The selected file(s) are opened. F-keys 1 through 5 take on special functions: *F1* MORE Scrolls down 1 page of current file. *F2* NEXT Returns to files list or to start of next file *F3* PREV Jumps to start of previous file, or current one if only one file open. *F4* RESTART Jumps to start of current file. *F5* QUIT Quits to directory.

UTILITIES MENU

The Utilities page can be invoked an any time by pressing *Shift Utilities*. The File Utilities Menu contains the following options:

F1	Remote I/O Port Setup	Configures the Remote I/O port so that an Async terminal can be used to control the Chameleon remotely.
F2	Printer Setup	Configures a printer port to output to a serial or parallel printer. See page 9 for a list of print commands and keys.
F3	Set Date and Time	Sets the system time and date.
F4	Traffic Load/Save	Saves Direct-To-Disk or Acquisition buffer traffic to a file. Loads a traffic file for Monitoring.
F5	645/705 Data Conversion	Converts data acquired over a V-type interface by HARD Engineering Models 645 and 705 to a format compatible with the Chameleon 32
F6	Check Free Disk Space	Displays the number of bytes available on the hard disk or a floppy disk.
F7	Kermit/Connect Mode Setup	Configures the Aux Serial Port 2 for Kermit File Transfer. See pages 12 for more information.
F8	Backup/Restore Menu	Backs up the entire hard disk or files that are larger than one floppy (700 Kbytes).
F9	FMS File Conversion	Converts files created with the Chameleon 32 FMS operating system (software release 2.6.1 or earlier) to the Chameleon MS-DOS operating system format (Release 3.0 and later).

-8-

PRINT KEYS AND COMMANDS

APPLICATION	KEY/COMMAND	RESULT
All applications	Print Scm key	Prints the current screen
	Print Page key	Prints the active page
History	Ctrl P	Displays print menu to print a user-defined range of events. See page 16 for a complete description.
X.25 Statistics	F3 Print key	Prints an X.25 statistical report
SNA Statistics	F3 Print key	Prints an SNA statistical report
BSC Statistics	F2 Print key	Prints a BSC statistical report
ISDN Statistics	F5 Print key	Prints an ISDN statistical report
SS#7 Statistics	F1 Print key	Prints an ISDN statistical report
BASIC Simulators	LFILES command	Prints file directory
	LFLIST command	Prints current function key assignments
	LLIST command	Prints the program in memory
	LMLIST command	Prints the mnemonic table in memory
	LPRINT command	Prints text
	LTPRINT command	Prints the contents of the trace buffer
SITREX	LDISPT command	Prints timer values in decimal
· ·	LDISPC command	Prints counters in hex
	LDISPV command	Prints variable values
	LDISPX command	Prints numeric variables in hex
	LDISPM command	Prints length and contents of message buffer
	LLIST command	Prints the scenario in memory
	LPRINT command	Prints text
C Shell	>.PRT	Redirects output to the printer
	Aux Serial Port 2 Library Functions	See page 58 for a description of the functions.
Triggering	ACTION= STATS PRINT	Prints the Statistics report when the triggering condition is met

REMOTELY CONTROLLING THE CHAMELEON

Setting up your Chameleon to be controlled from a remote device entails two basic procedures: configuring the Chameleon as the slave (remotely-controlled) device, and configuring another device as the master. This master controller may be another Chameleon or other terminal device, such as a PC. The remote mode supports the Chameleon multiple page capability. To maximize the performance of the Chameleon, always disconnect a remote terminal when not in use.

To set up your Chameleon as a slave device:

- 1. Using an RS-232 cable, connect the Chameleon to the master device:
 - If a terminal (async or PC terminal emulation) is the master device, connect the cable to the Chameleon Remote I/O port
 - If another Chameleon is the master device, connect a null-modem cable to the Aux 2 port on the master Chameleon, and to the Remote I/O port on the slave Chameleon
- 2. At the slave Chameleon, open the Utilities menu and select F1 Remote I/O Port Setup.
- 3. Configure the slave Chameleon to transmit by selecting the parameter values (terminal type, baud rate, data bits, etc) required by the remote device.
- 4. Press Go to accept the parameter values and to start remote mode. The Chameleon can then be accessed using the keys shown in the table on the next page.

To set up your Chameleon as a master device:

- 1. Open the Utilities menu and configure the KERMIT/Connect mode (F7) to match the slave (remote) device.
- 2. Press Go and exit from the Utilities menu.
- 3. Open the File Management menu and press F9–Connect.
- 4. Press *TAB*, *TAB* to re-fresh the screen and display data as displayed by the slave device.

To disable the remote control of your master, press Shift Cancel.

Once in remote mode, an alternate, serialized, remote mode can be activated. This causes the remote terminal screen to be updated constantly. However, only the active page is displayed by the remote terminal.

To activate/deactivate serialized remote mode:

- 1. At the master device, press Shift Move
- 2. At the slave device, press Tab Shift F

The letter **R** in the banner of the active page on the slave device indicates that you are functioning in the serialized remote mode.

To emulate the Chameleon key:	On the host, use:	Hex Code	To emulate the Chameleon key	On the host, use:	Hex Code
F1 .	Tab 1	09 81	Scroll ↑	Tab g	09 67
F2	Tab 2	09 82	Move ↓	Tab f	09 66
F3	- Tab 3	09 83	Scroll ↓	Tab h	09 68
F4	Tab 4	09 84	Left Arrow	Ctrl H	08
F5	Tab 5	09 85	Down Arrow	Ctrl J	0A
F6	Tab 6	09 86	Right Arrow	Ctrl L	0C
F7	Tab 7	09 87	Up Arrow	Ctrl K	0B
F8	Tab 8	09 88	Replace	Tab D	09 44
F9	Tab 9	09 89	Select	Tab d	09 64
F10	Tab Ctrl J	09 8A	Files	Tab b	09 42
Cancel	Ctrl X	18	Utilities	Tab B	09 62
Go	Ctrl Y	19	Run/Stop	Tab 0	09 80
Move 1	Tab e	09 65	Space bar	Space bar	20
Print Page	Tab A	09 41	ESCape	ESCape	1B
Print Scm	Tab a	09 61	Return	Return	0D
Hide Page	Tab C	09 43	Heip	Ctrl W	17
Show Page	Tab c	09 63	Delete	Delete	7F
Shift ↑	Tab Ctrl L	09 OC	Shift ↓	Tab Ctrl N	09 0E

* If no page banner is displayed, the subject page cannot be printed out.

Chameleon Keyboard Hex Values

TERMINAL EMULATION

This procedure describes how to use the Chameleon to emulate a host terminal.

- 1. Connect the host to the Chameleon Aux Serial Port 2 using an RS232 cable. (The Chameleon will act as the DCE. For this reason, you may require a special RS232 cable configuration. Refer to page 112 for details.)
- 2. Use the Kermit/Connect Mode Setup in the Utilities menu to configure the Chameleon to be compatible with the host.
- 3. When the configuration parameters are set, press Go to accept the values.
- 4. On the Chameleon, invoke the File Management menu and make it active.
- Press F9 Connect. This causes the Chameleon screen to go blank and behave as a host terminal.
 You can now enter host commands. To transfer files between the Chameleon and the host, refer to page 12.
- 6. To exit the Connect window, press Shift Cancel.

KERMIT FILE TRANSFER

To use the Kermit file transfer facility:

- 1. Verify that the host has a file transfer utility that is compatible with the KERMIT protocol.
- 2. Connect the host to the Chameleon Aux 2 port using an RS232 cable. (The Chameleon will act as the DCE. For this reason, you may require a special RS232 cable configuration. See page 82.)
- 3. Using the Kermit/Connect Mode Setup in the Utilities menu, configure the Chameleon for file transfer.
- Note: Kermit automatically uses 8 data bits, 1 Stop bit and no parity, regardless of how you configure them in the Kermit/Connect Mode Setup menu. If you configure the Chameleon for terminal emulation, disregard these parameters in the Kermit/Connect Mode Setup menu. However, you must select the type of file you are going to transfer: Text or Binary. You cannot transmit binary and text files at the same time.
- 4. Call up the host Kermit program. A prompt indicates that the file transfer program has been loaded and KERMIT commands that will be executed. (When entering host commands, you can enter the commands on a host terminal *OR* you can use the Chameleon Connect window to emulate a host terminal. See page 11.)
- 5. On the Chameleon, open and activate the File Management menu.
- 6. Follow the appropriate instructions in the table below depending on whether you are transmitting or receiving files. As the file is transferred, information is displayed in the Transmit/Receive page so that you can monitor the progress of the transmission. When the transfer is complete, the screen displays the message Reception OK.
 - If the transfer fails, retransmit the file(s) by pressing *F1 Retry*.
 - If an error was detected during the file transfer, the following message appears Send failed.

IF THE CHAMELEON IS TRANSMITTING FILES:	IF THE CHAMELEON IS RECEIVING FILES:
a. If necessary, use <i>F1 Chdir</i> in the Chameleon File Management menu to select the drive and directory that contains the files you want to transmit to the host	a. Enter the host command that transmits the files. For example: <i>send filename.ext</i> <return> [You can use the asterisk (*) as a wildcard to select more than one file to transmit. For example, to transmit all files from the host with the extension .doc, enter: <i>send</i> *.<i>doc</i>]</return>
 b. Use the List Selector to select the files you want to transmit. (To use the List Selector, use the arrows keys to move the red arrow cursor to the desired file, and then press the space bar to highlight the file in red. Press the space bar a second time to unselect the file.) 	b. Make the File Management page active.
c. Enter the following command on the host computer: receive <return></return>	c. Press F8 RX File. This begins reception.
d. In the Chameleon 32 File Management menu, press F7 TX File. This begins the transmission.	-

7. When file transfer is complete, press F10 Exit to return to the File Management menu.

To abort the operation in the middle of a transfer:

Press Esc. The message Send failed is displayed.

		ISDN Basic Rate 1	Interface	Basic I.F.
Mode	•	Simulate 🖛	Device	NT
Char	nel Selecti	on D	Layer 1	Interactive
Char	nel Bi	Idle	Channel B2	Idle
Bit	Inversion	off	NT Power	022
DTM	' Number	0		
-		After making selection	s Press GO	· · · · · ·
Simu	Lat Monitor			
de	Selects the Simulate Monitor	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1.	or as a TE. (default)	
de annel lection	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i>	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above	layer 1) protocol sof
de annel lection vice	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on	layer 1) protocol sof
de annel lection vice	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the NT	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated Network Termination (defau	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on lt)	layer 1) protocol sof
de annel lection vice annel 82	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the NT TE	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated Network Termination (defau Terminal Endpoint	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on lt)	layer 1) protocol sof
de annel lection vice annel B2 annel B1	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the NT TE Selects an	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated Network Termination (defau Terminal Endpoint	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on lt)	layer 1) protocol sof
de annel lection vice annel B2 annel B1	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the NT TE Selects an Milliwatt	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated Network Termination (defau Terminal Endpoint option for the B1 or B2 channel Inserts a digital milliwatt tone selected B-channel. (Simu	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on lt) el. e (0dBm,1004 Hz ?lav lation mode only.)	layer 1) protocol sof ly). v or 1020 Hz A-law)
de annel lection vice annel B2 annel B1	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the NT TE Selects an Milliwatt Codec	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated Network Termination (defau Terminal Endpoint option for the B1 or B2 channel Inserts a digital milliwatt tone selected B-channel. (Simu Allows a handset using Cod Interface.	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on lt) el. e (0dBm,1004 Hz ?lav lation mode only.) ec to be connected to t	layer 1) protocol sof ly). v or 1020 Hz A-law) he Chameleon Basic
de annel lection vice annel B2 annel B1	Selects the Simulate Monitor Selects the The options Selects the NT TE Selects an Milliwatt Codec Idle	mode to use for layer 1. Simulates layer 1 as an NT Monitors layer 1. channel to be used for running s are: <i>B1, B2, or D (default).</i> type of device to be simulated Network Termination (defau Terminal Endpoint option for the B1 or B2 channel Inserts a digital milliwatt tone selected B-channel. (Simu Allows a handset using Cod Interface. Idles the channel with all on	or as a TE. (default) the upper level (above d (Simulation mode on itt) el. e (0dBm,1004 Hz ?lay lation mode only.) ec to be connected to t	layer 1) protocol sof ly). v or 1020 Hz A-law) he Chameleon Basic

Basic Rate Interface Setup Menu

-13-

Basic Rate Interface Setup Menu (continued)

- Layer 1 Selects an option for layer 1 activation.
 - Interactive At runtime, interactive transmission of signals is possible. (No automatic activation is done.) (default)
 - Automatic Whenever Layer 1 is deactivated, or goes to error state, the system automatically activates.
- Note The following three parameters are supported only on machines with Basic Rate Interface Board (805-0259), Revision F.

Bit

Inversion Inverts the data bits when a B channel is selected for the Channel Selection parameter.

NT Power Specifies the type of power provided from the NT to the TE.

SRC1Nor Power source 1 under normal conditions.

SRC1Rev Power source 1 under emergency conditions (reverses polarity).

SRC2Nor Power source 2 under normal conditions.

SRC2Rev Power source 2 under emergency conditions (reverses polarity).

Off The NT power lines are turned off.

DTMF Number

This parameter is relevant when the Codec unit is selected for a B-channel. It causes the Chameleon to generate the Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (DTMF) tones corresponding to the numbers entered in this field. You can enter a maximum of 20 digits in the DTMF Number field. Only digits are allowed.

-14-

Setup	ISDN Pri	mary Rate Interface	(1.544Mbps)
lode	Simulate	Fram	ing
		Line 1	D4 -
Signal Coding	7	B8Zs	
ignaling	-	On	
Tansmit Mode	B	Idle	B8Zs
ata Rate		64Kbs	On
dle Channel	(LSBMSB)	01010101	Idle
[dle Signal	(AB)	01	64Kb#
DSG	.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	c	bannel [124]	Channel [124]
Receive		00	00
		00	
Receive		00	
		00	
		00	~
Milliwatt 7	Cone 1004Hz		
DSO Inversi	lon Off		
	After	making selections P	ress GO
	<u> </u>	E	

Primary Rate Interface Setup Menu

Mode Selects the mode to use.

- Simulate Generates data from the Chameleon, and sends it on the line. If you selected Monitor for Mode of Operation, the Chameleon simulates the physical layer, while monitoring layers 2 and above.
- Monitor The Chameleon monitors the line only.

Framing Selects the type of framing to be used.

- D4 D4 Framing. This is available only for the ANSI PRI.
- ESF Extended Super-Frame. Available only for ANSI PRI.
- SL96 Selects SLC-96 framing. Available only for ANSI PRI.
- CEPT CEPT recommended framing. Available only for CEPT PRI.

Signal

Coding Selects the Zero Suppression scheme.

- ANSI options: B8ZS Bipolar 8 Zero Suppression
 - AMIAIternate Mark Inversion, without zero suppression
- CEPT options: HDB3 High Density Bipolar 3 with zero suppression

AMIAIternate Mark Inversion, without zero suppression

Signaling For ANSI, enables/disables signaling information for Lines 1 and 2. For CEPT, enables signaling information in time slot 16. When Signaling is On, the Idle Signal parameter determines the idle pattern to be used.

Primary Rate Interface Setup Menu (continued)

Transmit Mode

Mode		
Resync	Re-synchronizes the line.	
ldle	Transmits an Idle Sequence on the line. Specify the idle sequence using the Idle Channel parameter. If BERT error insertion rate is set to 1.0E–3 or greater, you will encounter a frequent loss of synch and the BERT error statistic will be thrown off by the on/off loss of synch.	
Transparenc	Available for Line 1 only. The Chameleon synchronizes the Tx clock to the Rx clock and transmits its own data <i>unless</i> the application is configured to transmit the received data.	
Remote Alar	m Transmits the Remote Alarm signal. (CEPT only)	
Yellow Alarm	Transmits the Yellow Alarm signal. (ANSI only)	
Repeater	The Tx clock is synchronized to the Rx clock and received data is re-transmitted.	
Data Rate	Sets Data X and Data Y for either 56K or 64K (ANSI only).	
CRC	Enables/disables a Cyclic Redundancy Check in the signals (CEPT only).	
Idle Channel	Specifies the idle sequence to send on channels for which no other function is selected. Enter an 8-bit sequence (LSB> MSB).	
Idle Signal	When Signaling is enabled (ON), this specifies the sequence of bits to send on the signaling channel, when idle. For D4 and ESF framing, enter a two-bit pattern. For ESF, the two bits are repeated in the four bit signal. For CEPT framing, enter a four bit pattern.	
The remaini value of 00 c channel nur	ng parameters allow you to make selections for a specific channel/time slot. A le-selects the current selection. For ANSI, these parameters accept a value for the nber (1–24). For CEPT, these parameters accept a value for the time slot $(1 - 31)$.	
Receive Data X	Selects the receive channel/time slot for Simulation or Monitoring packages. Data can be received on either Line 1 or Line 2, but not on both simultaneously.	
Receive Codec	Selects the channel/time slot to enable the Codec Receiver (Line 1 only).	
Receive Data Y	Selects the channel/time slot to enable the Data Y Receiver (Monitor Mode only, Line 1 only).	
Transmit Data Y	Simulate Mode of Operation only. Selects the channel/time slot to be used with the DS0 Receiver in Monitor Mode. In Simulation Mode, this parameter takes the channel/time slot for the Line 1 Transmitter.	
Transmit Codec	Simulate mode only. Selects the channel/time slot for the Codec Transmitter.	
Transmit Milliwatt	Simulate mode only. Selects the channel/time slot to enable the Digital Milliwatt Tone Generator. The tone generated in ANSI (D4/ESF) is 1004Hz at 0 dBm. In CEPT, the tone can be either 820Hz or 1020Hz.	
Milliwatt Tone	Simulate mode only. Selects the Milliwatt Tone for CEPT.	
DS0 Inversion	Inverts the data on the specified channels/time slots in Data X and Data Y.	

2B1Q U-INTERFACE SETUP MENU

							Config	guration
			2	B1Q Se	tup Me	nu		
Device:					and the second s			
Clock:			Ē	xt./Int./	NT Rec	overed		
Port A:			8	1/B2/D/	OFF			
Analog Interface			13 	landset	0FF 600_01	hm/OEF	10 2	
Channel Se	lection:			1/B2				
Encoding:			A	Law/u	-Law			
Idle Pattern Dest Bit pattern:	ination:		5 1	1/82/D/	0FF IN			
·								
				4				
		`						
NT LT								EXIT
F1 F2	F3	F4	F5	F6	F7	F8	F9	F10

Device	Sets your Chameleon to emulate a network (LT) or network node/terminal device (NT). This setting cannot be changed in the Run Time configuration menu.					
Clock	Sets your Chamel 8-MHz clock (inte U-interface. This	Sets your Chameleon to take its timing from an external timing source, the Chameleon 8–MHz clock (internal), or to derive clocking from the bit–stream being sent over the U–interface. This setting cannot be changed in the Run Time configuration menu.				
Port A	Sets Port A of your deactivates Port A a Port B and/or the A	r Chameleon to function as either a B1-, B2-, or D-channel port. Also altogether (OFF). The channel you assign here canot also be assigned to analog Interface.				
Port B	Same as for Port A the Analog Interfac	. The channel you assign here cannot also be assigned to Port A and/or e.				
Analog Interfa	ce Sets the physic	al/electrical mode of the analog interface.				
	Channel Selection	n Assigns the channel for which the analog device is to be the interface. The channel you assign here cannot also be assigned to Port B and/or Port A				
	Encoding	Sets the analog interface to be encoded in either A-Law or u-Law.				
Idle Pattern D	estination Assigns de-activ	the channel to which the idle pattern is to be transmitted. Also rates idle pattern transmission altogether.				
Bit Pattern	Enter the bit pattern destination channe	n you want to use as the idle Pattern. This will then be transmitted to the I selected above.				

-17-

2B1Q SIMULATION CONFIGURATION

-0				2B10 Sin	nulation
CONFIGURATION > / My//////////////////////////////////	FUNCTION	MESSA	AGE S	SEND	
Eoc Control: M4 Control:	Every — Verified Dual				
M5 Control:	Dual	· · ·			
Message	(as selected	in MESSAGE	S menu)	TX: n	n(hex)
Activation Status: Link Status: Superframe Sync. Status: Error Indicator:				FEBE NEBE Simul XCVF	Count: Count: ations: Mode:
NT LT					EXIT
F1 F2 F3	F4 F5 I	6 F7	F8	FQ	F10

The 10 link status messages at the bottom of this screen are read-only. For detailed explanations, see your *Protocol Interpretation Manual*, page 20-18.

Configuration:

Select the network entity you want your Chameleon to emulate:

NT = terminal device in a network.

LT = network.

Or, select EXIT to back out of the 2B1Q simulation application to the Applications Selections Menu.

After selecting either NT or LT and pressing RETURN, the applicable sub-menu appears.

Select EOC Control, M4 Control, or M5 Control.

Use the Space Bar to toggle to the Control option you want.

For EOC, the options are:

Every

Trinal-Check, and

(for the NT configuration only) Auto EOC Processor.

For M4, the options are:

Verified Dual Consecutive

Dual Consecutive

Deita

Every

For M45/M6, the options are:

Dual Consecutive

Delta

Every

2B1Q SIMULATION CONFIGURATION (continued)

Press GO to close the sub-menu and return to the Configuration menu. Press the right arrow to select the FUNCTION menu.

Function:

Select the desired function for the U transceiver of your Chameleon:

Activate		Local U transceiver will initiate start-up, notify remote U transceiver that it is ready to communicate over Layer 2.
Deactivate	=	Turns the local U transceiver off.
2B + D Loopback	H	Sets the local U transceiver to loop B1, B2 and D channels back to remote U transceiver.
B1 Loopback	-	Sets local U transceiver to loop B1 channel only back to remote U transceiver.
B2 Loopback		Sets local U transceiver to loop B2 channel only back to remote U transceiver.
Corrupt CRC	=	Sets local U transceiver to generate a corrupted CRC.
Return to Normal	Ħ	Resets local EOC processor to initial state: terminates all outstanding EOC-controlled operations.
Reset XCVR	*	Resets local U transceiver chip. AFTER SELECTING AND EXECUTING THIS OPTION, YOU MUST RESET ALL CONTROL MODES IN THE CONFIGURATION SUB-MENUS.
Cir Err Counters	=	Sets to zero the local U transceiver FEBE and NEBE error counters.

Press GO to close the menu.

Press the right arrow to select the MESSAGE menu.

Message:

NT

Select the EOC, M4 or M5/M6 message you want to build. The options available for each type of message depend upon the configuration you selected – NT or LT. Have you forgotten your Configuration selection? Look at the *Simulation* line in the Status Window. It will show the configuration you selected earlier in this procedure. For explanations of the options listed below, see your *Protocol Interpretation Manual*, page 20–32.

LT

EOC Unable to Comply Hold State	EOC Operate 2B + D Loopback Operate B1 Loopback Operate B2 Loopback Request corrupted CRC Notify of corrupted CRC Return to Normal Hold State
M4 message	M4 message
ACT (activate)	ACT
PS1 (Power Supply, bit 1)	DEA (deactivate)
PS2 (Power Supply, bit 2)	Reserved 3
NTM (NT Test Mode)	Reserved 4
CSO (Cold Start Only)	Reserved 5
Reserved 6	Reserved 6
SAI (S/T Interface Activity)	UOA (U-Interface Only Activation)
Reserved 8	AIB (Alarm Indication Bit)
M5/6 message	M5/6 message
Reserved 51	Reserved 51
Reserved 61	Reserved 61

2B1Q SIMULATION CONFIGURATION (continued)

Reserved 52 FEBE Reserved 52 FEBE

Send

It is from this menu that you transmit the message built in the preceding Message menu. You can send this message only once each time. To send the same message repeatedly, press *Return* for each transmission.

ANALYSIS CONTROL/SHIFT KEYS

These Control and Shift keys provide special functions in the Analysis pages.

KEY	FUNCTION
A or a	For Dual Port machines, displays the Port A function key strip in History
B or b	For Dual Port machines, displays the Port B function key strip in History
Ctrl B	Switches on/off a line which separates events in the display
Ctrl C	Toggles between the Port A and Port B function key strip display (Dual Port only)
Ctrl E	Enables/disables the display of the Incomplete event message.
Ctrl N	Relevant for ISDN monitoring only. Toggles the display between the extended address in hex and the LTID or TGI byte interpretation.
Ctrl P	Activates History Print/File feature. See description below.
Ctrl Z	Protocol specific to SS7. Invokes the User Parts Editor.

HISTORY PRINT/FILE FEATURE

Ctrl P invokes the History Print feature which outputs a range of events to a printer or ASCII file. Note that a file saved in this manner cannot be replayed in Analysis. There are two ways to use this feature:

Method 1 - Enter a specified range of events:

- 1. Make the History page active.
- 2. Press Ctrl P. You are prompted for a file name and a range of events.
- 3. To output events to a printer, press *Return* when prompted for a file name. Your printer should already be connected and the Chameleon printer configuration set up. To output events to an ASCII file, enter a file name and press *Return*. The file will be saved to the hard disk in the following directory: A:\TEKELEC\DATA\HIST.
- 4. Enter the numbers of the first and last events you want to output.
- 5. Press Go to start the printer/file output.
- 6. To abort this function at any time, press Cancel.

Method 2: Highlight a range of events:

- 1. Make the History page active.
- 2. Use Scroll f or Scroll key to position the first event you want to output at the top of the page. Press the left bracket key ([). This marks (highlights) the first event.
- 3. Use the Scroll[↑] or Scroll ↓ key to display the last event you want to output at the bottom of the screen. Press the right bracket key (]) to mark (highlight the last event).
- 4. Press *Ctrl P* to invoke the History Print menu.
- 5. To output events to a printer, press *Return* when prompted for a file name. To output events to an ASCII file, enter a file name and press *Return*. The file will be saved to the hard disk in the following directory: A:\TEKELEC\DATA\HIST.
- 6. The selected event numbers are displayed in the menu. You can change them by deleting the number and enter a new number.
- 7. Press Go to start the printer/file output. A message is displayed that indicates which events are being sent to the printer or file.
- 8. To abort this function at any time, press Cancel.

HISTORY DISPLAY KEYS

The keys and commands listed control the data that is displayed in the History page. If the selected event is not valid (for example, it was overwritten in the buffer), the first valid event following the selected event is displayed.

KEY	FUNCTION
~	The left arrow displays the oldest events in the buffer.
	The right arrow displays the most recent events in the buffer.
↑	The up arrow scrolls the data upward continuously. Each time you press the up arrow, the scrolling speed increases. If data is scrolling downward, it decreases the speed of the downward scroll.
Ļ	The down arrow scrolls the data downward continuously. Each time you press the down arrow, the scrolling speed increases. If data is scrolling upward, it decreases the speed of the upward scroll.
Space bar	Stops scrolling.
Scroll 1	The Scroll \uparrow key moves data up one line each time you press the key.
Shift Scroll 1	Shift Scroll \uparrow displays the next page of data.
Scroll 🗸	The Scroll \downarrow key moves data down one line each time you press the key.
Shift Scroll \downarrow	Shift Scroll \downarrow displays the previous page of data.
0-9	The number keys move you to a certain point in the buffer. Each number represents a percentage of the buffer, from 0% (0) to 90% (9). For example, if you press 5, the middle (50%) of the buffer is displayed.
Forf	Freeze Mode – Displays the most recent 32K of data for display on the History page. While in Freeze Mode only 32K of data can be viewed on the page; however it will not be overwritten by new data being acquired.
Uoru	Un-freeze – terminates Freeze Mode and returns you to the normal History display. When unfrozen the History page displays data from the acquisition buffer.
:jump <i>n</i>	Jumps to event number n. For example, :jump 150 displays event 150 as the first event on the page. :jump 99999 displays the end of the buffer (most recent events).
:normal	Used in conjunction with the Triggering application DISPLAY option. Selects normal triggering display mode which causes data which meets the triggering criteria to be shown in low intensity color. All other data is shown in high intensity color.
:trigger	Used in conjunction with the Triggering application DISPLAY option. Selects trigger display mode which causes only the data which meets the triggering criteria to be displayed in the History page. All other data is suppressed from the display.

DUAL LINE APPLICATION

The Dual Line application displays data in a 2-line format (DCE over DTE) which represents the actual sequence of data as it was acquired by the Chameleon. This type of display enables you to determine the overlap of data being received simultaneously from both sides of the line. To start the application, select **DUALLINE** from the Monitoring window of the Applications Selection menu. *F10* toggles between the two Dual Line modes: Run mode and Freeze mode.

Run mode causes the page to be updated as data is acquired from the line or from disk. In Run mode the display shows the following information:

- The DCE and DTE baud rates are displayed at the top of the screen.
- DCE data is displayed in brown above the DTE data
- DTE data is displayed in underlined cyan below the DCE data
- Each line displays up to 64 characters
- Interface lead states are displayed when F3 State is selected.
- Data is displayed in the format set selected with F1.
- Blank spaces between frames indicate idle time. F2 controls the display of idle time.

The Run mode function keys are as follows:

- *F1* determines in what format the data is displayed: ASCII, EBCDIC, HEX, HEXS. If *F1*=HEXS, data is displayed in hex pairs, with pairs alternating in high and low intensity color.
- F2 determines how idle data bytes are displayed. Idle data is shown as blank spaces between frames. F2 determines how many idle data bytes are represented by each blank space. For example, if F2 = 10, each blank space represents 10 bytes of idle data.
- F3 determines what data is displayed. The options are:
 - Data Data is displayed, but interface lead states are not displayed.
 - State Both data and interface lead states are displayed.
- *F10* toggles between Run mode and Freeze mode.

Freeze mode freezes the Dual Line page so that it is no longer updated as data is acquired. In Freeze mode there are additional function keys which enable you to scroll through the data. The Freeze mode display is the same as the Run mode display, with the addition of these fields:

- Binary value of the DCE and DTE byte at the location of the cursor
- Hex value of the DCE and DTE byte at the location of the cursor
- ASCII or EBCDIC value of selected byte (depending on current F1 selection)
- Time stamp indicating the time that the end of the event was acquired. The time stamp is in the format: hh:mm:ss ddd ddd (ddd is the number of microseconds in decimal)

The Freeze mode function keys are the same as Run mode, with the addition of these function keys:

- F7 displays the previous page of data.
- F8 displays the next page of data.
- F9 marks the byte at the cursor as the base line byte. When a byte is marked, the following changes occur to the Dual Line page:
- The marked byte is shown in red.
- The dtime field displays the delta time between the marked byte and the byte at the cursor
- The bytes field displays the offset between the marked byte and the byte at the cursor

BERT APPLICATION

The Chameleon BERT application provides synchronous or asynchronous Bit–Error Rate Testing (BERT) data testing for a variety of data communications systems. The Chameleon can be configured to emulate either a DTE or a DCE over any of the Chameleon I/O modules.

When BERT is started, the BERT Setup menu appears with the following configurable parameters:

Framing	selects Synchronous or Asynchronous timing.		
Interface	specifies whether the Chameleon will simulate a DCE or a DTE device.		
Data Bits	specifies the number of data bits in each byte as 8, 7, 6, or 5 bits. It is relevant only for asynchronous framing.		
Stop Bits	specifies the number of stop bits being used in each byte of data as 1, 1.5, or 2. It is relevant only for asynchronous framing.		
Parity	specifies the parity setting being used as None, Odd, or Even. It is relevant only for asynchronous framing.		
Baud Rate	specifies the speed (in bits per second) that the Chameleon will use to transmit or receive data. If the Chameleon is configured as a DTE using synchronous framing, the Chameleon will match the received clock.		
Pattern	specifies the type of data that the Chameleon will transmit or expect to receive on the line:		
	• Pseudo-random bit pattern of 63, 511, 2047, 4095, or 32767 bits in length		
	The pattern 1010101		
, • .	The FOX message: THE QUICK BROWN FOX JUMPS OVER THE LAZY DOG 1234567890 CR		
	 A user-defines pattern of 3 – 200 bytes in length. 		
Error Insertion F	In Synchronous Framing only, sets the rate at which errors are automatically inserted into the bit stream. There are seven options available:		
	F1 None No automatic insertion of errors.		
	F2 1.04E-2 Errors inserted at the rate of 1040 in every 100,000 bits.		
	F3 1.02E-3 Errors inserted at the rate of 102 in every 100,000 bits.		
	F4 1.00E-3 Errors inserted at the rate of 100 in every 100,000 bits.		
	F5 9.84E-4 Errors inserted at the the rate of 98.4 in every 100,000 bits.		
	F6 1.00E-4 Errors inserted at the the rate of 10 in every 100,000 bits.		
	F7 1.00E-5 Errors inserted at the the rate of 1 in every 100,000 bits.		
NOTE:	You must enter the F4 key of the BERT Setup Menu in order to activate the F8 key of the Run–Time Menu for toggling error insertion on and off.		
User Defined Preamble	enables you to enter a 2-byte preamble which may be required by the remote device in order to synchronize the line.		
User Preamble	appears only when the User Defined Preamble parameter is YES. Enter the 2 hex bytes for your required preamble and press Return.		
Block Length	specifies the block length required for your testing application, in the range is $0 - 64k$ bits		
Mode	determines what the Chameleon will do during the testing session. The options are:		

BERT APPLICATION (continued)

F1 REMOTE	The Chameleon generates the BERT pattern and transmits it to the remote device. This device then returns the original pattern to the Chameleon, or generates a new one as transmits it back. In either case, the Chameleon does a validity check of the pattern.
F2 LOCAL	The Chameleon waits to receive a BERT pattern. It then synchronizes on that pattern, checks its validity, and re-transmits the pattern to the remote device.
F3 RECEIVE	The Chameleon synchronizes on a received BERT pattern and checks its validity. No pattern is generated by the Chameleon.
Duration of Test	Determines how long test runs in continuous mode (see <i>F2 Contins</i>). Only indicates test duration. Enter in the format hh:mm:ss. 00:00:00 causes test to run until manually stopped (see <i>F3 Stop</i>). Maximum duration is 97 hours, 59 minutes, and 59 seconds (97:59:59).
There are two BERT run-time p the data received on the line. The	ages which display the statistics resulting from the Chameleon's analysis of ne function keys for the two BERT run-time pages are identical, as follows:
F1 1block	is relevant for Remote Loopback and Local Loopback testing. It causes the Chameleon to transmit one block of data to the remote device.
F2 Contins	In Remote Loopback mode, this causes the Chameleon to transmit data continuously. In Local Loopback mode, the Chameleon will begin to transmit

data continuously once the line is in sync.

- F3 Stop
 stops continuous testing mode. To continue, press F2 Contins.
- *F4 Ins Err* causes the Chameleon to transmit an errored bit into the data being transmitted to the remote device.

F5 Resync causes the Chameleon to attempt to resynchronize the line.

F6 Reset resets all statistical fields in both pages to zero. In continuous mode, it resets all statistical fields and automatically resumes testing.

F7 Setup stops the test session and exits to the BERT Setup menu.

F8 Err off/on toggles the insertion of errors *ON* and *OFF*. In Synchronous Framing only, this key is activated whenever Error Insertion Rate keys *F2* through *F7* are pressed.

F9 Next toggles between the two run-time pages.

F10 Exit stops the BERT application and returns you to the Applications Selection menu.

The top of both run-time pages display identical fields. These fields are:

Elapsed Seconds	displays the number of seconds which have elapsed since the test was started.
Time	displays the system time as derived from the Chameleon clock.
Mode	displays the current testing Mode as configured in the Setup menu.
Pattern	displays the current Pattern as configured in the Setup menu.
Block Length	This field displays the current Block Length.
User Preamble	displays the User Preamble as configured in the Setup menu.
Status	displays the testing status between the Chameleon and the remote device. It will display one of the following:

BERT APPLICATION (continued)

idle	The Chameleon is not actively performing a test.	
No Sync	The test is proceeding, but the line is not synchronized.	
In Sync	The line is synchronized and the test is proceeding.	

In addition to the above fields, the first BERT run-time page displays these additional fields:

Number of Bits:

For Transmit, this field displays the total number of bits transmitted by the Chameleon to the remote device. For Receive, this field displays the total number of bits received by the Chameleon from the remote device.

Errored Bits:

For Receive, this field displays the number of errored bits received from the remote device according to the data pattern in use. For Transmit, this field displays the number of errored bits transmitted by the Chameleon to the remote device. To transmit an errored bit from the Chameleon, you must press the *F4 Ins. Err* key.

Bit Error Rate:

For Receive, this field displays the number of errored bits received since the beginning of the test session, or since the run-time display was reset using *F6 Reset*. It is calculated as the ratio of the number of bit errors to the total number of bits received. For Transmit, this field is not applicable.

Number of Blocks:

For Transmit, this field displays the total number of blocks transmitted by the Chameleon to the remote device. For Receive, this field displays the total number of blocks received by the Chameleon from the remote device.

Errored Blocks:

For Receive, this field displays the number of blocks received from the remote device with one or more bit errors. For Transmit, this field is not applicable.

Block Error Rate:

For Receive, this field displays the number of errored blocks received since the beginning of the test session, or since *F6 Reset* was pressed. For Transmit, this field is not applicable.

The second BERT run-time displays additional statistics based on the bit error rate of the received data.

Error Free Seconds:

This field displays the number of available seconds in which no bit errors have occurred on the line.

Errored Seconds:

This field displays the number of seconds in which at least one bit error has occurred.

Severely Error Seconds:

This field displays the number of seconds in which an available second has a bit error rate worse then 10E-3.

Consecutively Severely Error Seconds:

This field displays the number of consecutive seconds with bit error rates worse then 10E-3.

Degraded Minutes:

This field displays the number of degraded minutes. A degraded minute is a 60-second block of non-severely errored available seconds in which the average bit error rate, measured over the 60 seconds, is worse than 10E-6.

Unavailable Seconds:

This field displays the number of unavailable seconds. An unavailable second is a second in which the line quality is degraded enough that the Chameleon received data with more than 10 consecutive severely errored seconds.

DIRECT-TO-DISK APPLICATION

The Direct-to-Disk application stores a maximum of 30 Mbytes of traffic acquired from the line to the hard disk. Once stored to disk, traffic can be played back and analyzed off-line.

Recording Traffic with Direct-to-Disk

- 1. Configure the desired port for Monitoring from the line or for Simulation.
- 2. Press *Go* to display the Applications Selection page.
- Move the red arrow cursor to the DIRTDSK application and press the function key that loads the application for the appropriate port.
- 4. Load additional applications, as desired.
- 5. Press Go. This starts the tasks that are loaded, including Direct-to-Disk. Traffic is saved in a special 30 Mbyte area of the hard disk.
- To stop recording traffic, select the Configuration page, and stop the Direct-to-Disk application. Do not
 restart the Direct-to-Disk application, or it will overwrite the data that is currently in the Direct-to-Disk
 area of the hard disk.
- This traffic can be replayed directly from the hard disk, or saved in a file. To record additional data to disk, first save the data that is stored in the Direct-to-Disk portion of the hard disk by following the steps below.

Saving Direct-to-Disk Data to a File

- 1. If necessary, stop the Direct-to-Disk or the Direct-from-Disk application. You cannot save Direct-to-Disk data if either application is running.
- 2. Press Utilities to invoke the Utilities menu. Select and display the Utilities menu.
- 3. Press *F4 Traffic Load/Save* to display the Traffic Operations menu.
- 4. Press F1 Save to select the Operation.
- 5. Enter a file name and press *Return*. The file is saved to the hard disk unless you specify b: as part of the file name for the floppy disk drive. (If you save to a floppy disk, the maximum traffic file size is 700 Kbytes. To save more than 700 Kbytes to floppy disks, back up the Direct-to-Disk area of the hard disk using the Utilities *F8 Backup/Restore* option.)
- 6. Press F1 Direct-to-Disk to select the Data Source.
- 7. To save less than 100% of the Direct-to-Disk data, press *Delete* to erase the current percentage, enter the new percentage, and press *Return*. This percentage represents the most recently recorded traffic.
- 8. Press Go and the traffic is saved with the size of the file in Kbytes displayed.
- 9. To replay traffic saved to a file, you must load the traffic back to the Direct-to-Disk area of the hard disk as described on the next page.

-27-

DIRECT-TO-DISK APPLICATION (CONTINUED)

Replaying Direct-to-Disk Traffic

1.

If you want to replay data currently stored in the Direct-to-Disk area of the hard disk, go to step 2. If you want to replay data saved to a traffic file, first load the traffic file to the Direct-to-Disk area of the hard disk, as follows:

- a. Press *Utilities* to invoke the Utilities menu. Select and display the Utilities menu.
- b. Press *F4 Traffic Load/Save* to display the Traffic Operations menu.
- c. Press F2 Load to select the Operation.
- d. Enter a name for the traffic file (including file extension) .
- e. Press Go and the file is loaded into the Direct-to-Disk area of the hard disk.

(If you used Utilities *F8 Backup/Restore* to save Direct-to-Disk traffic to multiple floppy disks, use the *F8 Backup/Restore* to restore the data to the hard disk.)

- 2. Configure the Chameleon for Monitoring, selecting the appropriate protocol and port for the recorded data.
- 3. In the main configuration page, for the Monitoring Data Source parameter press *F2 Disk* to select monitoring from disk.
- 4. Press Go to display the Applications Selection page.
- Load the Monitoring applications that you want to use to analyze the traffic on disk.
- 6. Press Go to start the monitoring applications.
- 7. You can now use the application pages as though you were monitoring from the line. The *Run/Stop* key starts and stops acquisition from the disk.
- 8. When the entire contents of the Direct-to-Disk area has been replayed, acquisition stops. You can replay the traffic again by selecting the Configuration page and pressing *F6 Reset*.

STATISTICS

The Statistics application is available for the protocols listed below.

PROTOCOL	APPLICATION NAME (IN MENU)	STATISTICS PAGES AVAILABLE
BSC	BSCSTAT	BSC Line Statistics BSC CU Statistics
ISDN	Q921STAT	Q.921 Line Statistics Q.921 SAPI 0 Statistics Q.921 SAPI 16 Statistics Q.921 SAPI 63 Statistics Q.921 Other SAPI Statistics
Primary Rate Interface	PRISTAT	PRI Error Statistics
SNA	SNASTAT	SNA Session Statistics SDLC Line Statistics Session PU Statistics SNA LU Statistics SDLC PU Statistics SNA LU Line
SS#7	SS7STAT	SS7 Line Statistics
X.25	X25STAT	X.25 Line Statistics HDLC Line Statistics X.25 LCN Statistics

In addition to the Statistics data-display screen for these protocols, a Performance Page is available for X.25, SNA, SS7 and ISDN Q.921.

To display the Performance Page:

- 1. With the appropriate Protocol Statistics Page banner selected, press *Ctrl P*. The Performance Page banner appears on-screen.
- 2. Select the Performance Page banner and scroll it onto the screen, or press Shift Move 1

To close the Performance Page:

- 1. With the Protocol Statistics page on-screen but NOT in blow-page mode (if it is in this mode, press Shift Move 1 to anul that mode), select the Statistics Page banner.
- 2. Press Ctrl P. The Performance Page is closed.

STATISTICS

The function keys for all Statistics pages are similar (except in PRI statistics). A sample X.25 Statistics page with function key descriptions is provided below.



TRIGGERING APPLICATION

TRIGGER STRUCTURE



-31-

TRIGGERING CONDITIONS (Function Keys)



--32--

ANSI

1TR7

ASN TUP

TR7 TUP

ANSISUP

TR7ISUP


SS#7 LEVEL 3 AND LEVEL 4 TRIGGERING OPTIONS

-33-

SIMULATOR ROAD MAP

	NEXT STEP		
If you are here:	And you want to:	Do this:	
FRAMEM, SIMP/L BSC, or Async simulation prompt!	Stop the simulator	Enter: MENU <return> OR Access the Configuration page, move the red arrow cursor to the simulator name, and press the function key that stops the simulator on the desired port.</return>	
	Access the parameter set-up menu	Enter: SETUP <return></return>	
	Write programs	Read the Chameleon 32 Simulation Manual (Chapter 3) for Chameleon BASIC fundamentals AND read the chapter that describes your simulation language.	
SITREX SIMULATOR ACTIVE	Return to the main menu	Enter: PS <return> HALT <return></return></return>	
	Access the parameter set-up menu	Enter: PS <return> HALT <return> Press: F2 GO</return></return>	
	Enter command mode (!)	Enter: PS <return></return>	
	Exit command mode	Enter: EXIT <return></return>	
	Activate the trace buffer	Enter: PP <return></return>	
	Deactivate the trace buffer	Enter: CTRL P	
Any Parameter SetUp Menu	Access the simulation prompt (!) to write programs	Press: Z	
	Return to the main menu	Press: ESC	
	Change parameter values	Read the Chameleon 32 Simulation Manual (Chapter 2.2) for general information about the set-up menus AND read the chapter that describes the menu for the simulation language you are using.	
	Save parameter values	Press: S	

FRAMEM LAPD DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE

The I-field column in the table indicates whether the mnemonic can have an I-field. If an I-field is permitted (using the DEFINE command), the letter I appears in the I-Field column.

MNEMONIC	FIELD	DECIMAL	HEX	BINARY
IFRAME		0	00	00000000
SNRME		207	CF	11001111
SARME		79	4F	01001111
SABME		111	• 6F	01101111
SREJ		13	0D	00001101
SNRM		131	83	10000011
SARM	······································	15	OF	00001111
SABM		47	2F	00101111
DISC		67	43	01000011
RSET		143	8F	10001111
FRMR		135	. 87	10000111
TEST		227	E3	11100011
CMDR		135	87	10000111
RNR		5	05	00000101
REJ		9	09	00001001
SIM		7	07	00000111
XID		175	AF	10101111
RIM		7	07	00000111
NSI		3	03	00000011
RQI		7	07	00000111
ROL		15	OF	00001111
NSP		35	23	00100011
RR		1	01	00000001
UI		3	03	0000011
UP		35	23	00100011
DM		15	0F	00001111
AU		99	63	01100011
RD		67	43	01000011

FRAMEM HDLC/SDLC MNEMONIC TABLE

The DEFSUB column can reference a line number. If this type of frame is received, program control jumps to the program line number specified in this column and executes the subroutine. Refer to the FRAMEM DEFSUB command for more information.

MNEMONIC	DECIMAL	HEX	BINARY	DEFSUB
IFRAME	0	00	00000000	
SNRME	207	CF	11001111	
SARME	79	4F	01001111	
SABME	111	6F	01101111	
SREJ	13	0D	00001101	
SNRM	131	83	10000011	
SARM	15	OF	00001111	
SABM	47	2F	00101111	
DISC	67	43	01000011	
RSET	143	8F	10001111	
FRMR	135	87	10000111	
TEST	227	E3	11100011	
CMDR	135	87	10000111	
RNR	5	05	00000101	
REJ	9	09	00001001	
SIM	7	07	00000111	
XID	175	AF	10101111	
RIM	7	07	00000111	
NSI	3	03	00000011	
RQI	7	07	00000111	
ROL	15	0F	00001111	
NSP	35	23	00100011	
RR	1	01	00000001	
UI	3	03	00000011	
UP	35	23	00100011	
DM	15	OF	00001111	
UA	99	63	01100011	
RD	67	43	01000011	

SIMP/L LAPD DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE

MNEMONIC	FIELD WIDTH (BITS)	DEFINITION/ Q.931 MESSAGE OCTET
MESTYP	7	Message type/fourth octet
SHFTID	3	Shift 10/fourth octet (Shift info. element)
LOKBIT	1	Shift lock bit/fourth octet (Shift info. element)
CODSET	3	Code set/fourth octet (Shift info. element)
CRLEN	- 4	Call reference length/second octet
CREF7	7	Call reference/third octet
CREF8	8	Call reference/third octet
NOEXT	1	No extended bit/fourth octet filler
PDIS	8	Protocol discriminator/first octet
FIL4	4	Four bit filler/second octet
PAD1	1	One bit filler/fourth octet filler
PAD2	2	Two bit filler
EXT	1	Extend bit
RI	16	Reference number/TEI field
AI	7	Action indicator/TEI field

SIMP/L HDLC DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE

MNEMONIC	FIELD WIDTH (BITS)
LCGN	4
PKID	8
P(S)	3
P(R)	3
PAD1	1
МВГТ	1
DBIT	1
QBIT	1
PAD2	2
GFI	4
LCN	8

-37--

BSC DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE

MNEMONIC	DECIMAL	HEX	BINARY
АСКО	112	70	01110000
ACK1	97	61	01100001
WABT	127	7F	01111111
SOH	1	01	0000001
STX	2	02	00000010
ЕТВ	38	26	00100110
ETX	3	03	00000011
ІТВ	31	1F	00011111
EOT	55	37	00110111
ENQ	45	2D	00101101
DLE	16	10	00010000
SYN	50	32	00110010
ACK	46	2E	00101110
NAK	61	3D	00111101

-38--

ASYNC DEFAULT MNEMONIC TABLE

MNEMONIC	DECIMAL	HEX	BINARY
SPACE	32	20	00100000
BELL	7	07	00000111
NULL	0	00	00000000
SOH	1	01	00000001
STX	2	02	00000010
ETX	3	03	00000011
EOT	4	04	00000100
ENQ	5	05	00000101
ACK	6	06	00000110
DLE	16	10	00010000
DC1	17	11	00010001
DC2	18	12	00010010
DC3	19	13	00010011
DC4	20	14	00010100
NAK	21	15	00010101
SYN	22	16	00010110
ЕТВ	23	17	00010111
CAN	24	18	00011000
SUB	26	1A	00011010
ESC	27	1B	00011011
DEL	127	7F	01111111
BS	8	08	00001000
HT	9	09	00001001
LF	10	0A	00001010
۷Т	11	08	00001011
FF	12	0C	00001100
CR	13	0D	00001101
SO	14	0E	00001110
SI	15	0F	00001111
EM	25	19	00011001
FS	28	1C	00011100
GS	29	1D	00011101
RS	30	1E	00011110
US	31	1F	00011111

@	References the array. @(exp) exp =array subscript	DEC\$ Converts a numeric expression into a string of ASCII decimal characters.
A85	numeric variable (integer).	DEFINE Defines a mnemonic for the mnemonic
ASC\$	EBCDIC to ASCII conversion.	DEL Deletes a line from the screen.
ATIME\$	Returns the ASCII value of the realtime stamp.	DELETE Deletes a mnemonic from the table. DELETE "name"
AUTO	ATIMES Automatic line numbering. Start at 10, increment by 10. AUTO x Start at x, increment by 10. AUTO x.y. Start at x, increment by y.	DISPF Displays the last frame transmitted or received. Not available in Async. SIMP/L uses the RDISPF (received) and TDISPF (transmitted) commands. DISPF
BCD\$	ASCII to BCD conversion. BCD\$(\$x)	EBC\$ ASCII to EBCDIC conversion. \$A = EBC\$(\$B)
BLK	Display blinking text. BLK	EDIT Edits a line from the program in memory using commands below.
81 201	- -	EDIT x x = line number
DLVUL	Pinatan hitalian karatén daritén takanén	Move cursor 1 space left.
	BLKHLF	Displays next character. CTRL P Displays the entire line to the
DLANE	v Display blinking text in reverse video. BLKREV	CTRL X Erases the entire line,
BEKHN	D	CTRL D Deletes the next
567.014	Display blinking underlined text . BLKUND	un-displayed character from memory.
CALL	Calle a province file on a subsolution	CTRL I Inserts a space.
CALL	Calls a program me as a subroutine. CALL "filename"	RETURN Saves the line to the left of the cursor.
CHAIN	Loads and runs a program file. CHAIN"filename"	CTRL Z Exits edit mode without saving changes.
CHR\$	Assigns the binary equivalent of an ASCII value.	EOF Read-only variable that indicates if end
	CHR\$(exp)	of data file is reached.
CLEAR	Clears the trace buffer.	EOF = 0
	CLEAR	
CLOSE	Closes all open files.	
	CLOSE I Closes input file only.	
	CLOSE O Close output and append	
CLS	tiles only. Clears the screen of text.	ERAEOL Erases text to the end of the line. ERAEOL
COURT		ERAEOS Erases text to the end of the screen.
COUPL	En Configures the Chameleon 32 hardware to	
	transmit and receive frames using a	ERASE Delete lines from program in memory. ERASE x,y
	COUPLER "filename"	x = first line number
		y = last line number
		EXIT Returns control to a calling program from a program that has been CALLed. EXIT
		FDEFINE Defines the function key assignments. FDEFINE KEYx=~statement^~
		 x =function key (1 - 10) ~ marks beginning and end ^=carriage return between statements

Lists the files on a specified disk drive. FILES FILES A Lists files on hard disk FILES B Lists files on floppy disk FLIST Lists the ten function key assignments FLIST FLOAD Loads a function key definition file into memory. FLOAD "filename" FLUSH Clears the acquisition buffer. FLUSH FOR Controls looping in programs. Must be used with NEXT FOR x=exp1 TO exp2 [STEP exp3] NEXT x x is a numeric variable exp1 is the beginning value of x exp2 is the maximum value of x exp3 is the step increment FREE Read-only variable that returns the number of free mnemonic table entries. **PRINT FREE** IF FREE FSAVE Saves function key assignments. FSAVE "filename" GOSUB Sends program to a specific line number to execute a subroutine. GOSUB exp exp = line number GOTO Sends program control to a specific line number. **GOTO** exp exp = line number HEX\$ Creates an ASCII 4-character string which is the HEX equivalent of exp. \$A = HEXS(exp) HEX Assigns a string variable value in hexadecimal. \$A = HEX>exp HLF Causes text to be displayed in double intensity (highlight) HLF HLFUND Displays text in double intensity and underlined. HLFUND IF Allows program flow to be changed based on a decision. IF x op y command x and y are numeric variables op is a logical or arithmetic operator command is the command to execute

if the statement is true

Assigns the next character typed on INKEY\$ the keyboard to a string variable. \$A=INKEY\$ INPUT Stores keyboard input in a variable. INPUT "prompt",x prompt is the text that you want displayed (optional) x is the variable that stores the keyboard input , displays the variable name (optional) SINPUT Assign a string variable from the keyboard. **SINPUT \$A** INS Inserts a blank line on the screen. INS INSTR Returns the offset (position) of a substring within the main string. x = INSTR(str1,str2)str1=main string str2= substring. KILL Deletes a file from disk. KILL"filename",x x is the file type: P Program Т Trace **Mnemonic table** м D Data S Setup (parameter) F Function key definition All types А LEFT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the left end of one string to another string. A = LEFTS(\$x,exp)exp = number of characters from the left end of \$x LEN Assigns the length of a string variable to a numeric variable. A = LEN(\$x)\$x is a string variable A is the numeric variable LET Assigns values to numeric or string variables. Numeric variable LET x = expString variable LET \$A = "xxx" LFILES Outputs file directory to printer. LFILES A Prints hard disk directory LFILES B Prints floppy directory LFLIST Outputs current function key assignments to a printer or remote device. LFLIST

LIST verse video in double of a string memory. LIST verse video in double of a string memory to a printer. LIST verse video in double of a string memory to a printer. LIST verse video in double of a string memory. LINST verse video in double of a string memory. MINT Displays the memoric table in memory. MINT Displays text in reverse video in double interestly. MINT Displays text in reverse video and underfined. MINT A Cancels display effects commands (blinking underfine, double interestly). NET Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT Net memory base finest fin		Displays program in memory.	OPEN "1", "filename"	Opens a file for input
LIST X, y Lists program from line x to line y. LIST Vitus program in memory to a printer. LIST Vitus program in memory to a printer. LIST Vitus program from line x to end. LIST Vitus program from line x to line y. LIST Vitus program from line x to line y. LIST Vitus program from line x to line y. LIST Vitus program from line x to line y. LILIST Vitus program from line x to line y. LILIST Vitus program from line x to line y. LILIST Vitus program from line x LILIST Vitus program from line x LIST Vitus from line x LIST Vitus from line x LIST Vitus from line x LIST Vitus from line x MENU Exite the simulator and returns to the main memory. MICAD loads a memoric table in memory. MILST Displays text nerverse video. In double interesty. NEW Displays text in reverse video in double interesty. NEW Milest the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT Increment bid. NEW Colless the program in memory. NEW Cancels the program in memory. NEW Milest the sounder in a FOR loop. NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT Net Miless the normanonic table in memory. NEW Opens a data file. NEW Colless the program in memory. NEW Cancels the		LIST x Lists program from line x to	OPEN "O", "filename"	Opens a new
LUST y Lists program from beginning to line y. LLIST Prints entire program. LLIST Prints entire program. LLIST x Prints entire program. LLIST x Prints entire program. LLIST x, Prints program from line x to end. LLIST y, Prints program from line x to line y. LLIST y Prints program from memory. LMLIST Outputs the momemory. LAGAD Loads a program file with the program in memory. MIDS Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. SA = MIOS(\$x,exp1,exp2) exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of characters from MENU Displays text in reverse video in double interame" MIDS Assigns characters from the momory. MLOAD Loads a memonic table in memory. MLOAD Loads a memonic table in memory. MLOAD Loads a memonic table in memory. MLOAD Loads a frogram in memory to disk. MSAVE Tilename" NEW Deletes the porgram in memory. MLOAD Loads a frogram in memory. MLOAD Loads a memonic table in memory. MLOAD Loads a frogram in memory. MLOAD Tilename" NRW Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intersity). NRM OPEN Opens a data file. HEVEN LF REVIEW Filename in the order thersity. NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intersity). NRM OPEN Opens a data file. HEVEN LF REVIEW Filename in the order thersity. NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intersity). NRM		LIST x,y Lists program from line x to	OPEN "A", "filename"	Opens file for
LLIST Outputs program in memory to a printer. LLIST x Prints program from line x to end. Prints program from line x LLIST y Prints program from line x to end. Prints program from line x LLIST y Prints program from line x to ine y. LLIST y LLIST y Prints program from line x to line y. LLIST y LLIST y Prints program from line x to line y. LLIST y LLIST y Prints program from line x beginning to line y. LLIST y LOAD Loads a program file into memory. LOAD loads a program file into memory. LTPRINT Cutputs the contents of the trace buffer to a printer. LTPRINT MENU MENU Exits the simulator and returns to the main memory. MEND Exits the simulator and returns to the main memory. MERGE Combines a program file with the program in memory. RESEQ MID3 A sting Skips shardles, spart 1, exp2) exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of characters from the acolled by a GCSUB. REV ID Revue MID3 Assigns a specified number		LIST ,y Lists program from beginning to line y.		end of the file.
LOAD Loads a program file into memory. LOAD "filename" LTPRINT MENU Exits the simulator and returns to the main menu. MENU Exits the simulator and returns to the main menu. MENU EXIS the simulator and returns to the main memory. MERGE Combines a program file with the program in memory. MERGE"filename" MID\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. SA = MID\$(\$x,exp1,exp2) exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of characters MLOAD Tilename" MLOAD Chads a mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Tilename" MLOAD Tilename" MALOAD Tilename" MLOAD Tilename" MLOAD Tilename" MLOAD Tilename" MEW NEW Deletes the program in memory. MLOAD Tilename" NEW Deletes the program in memory. MEW NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT A NRM Carcele display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM OPEN Opens a data file. HEAD SA Expendence of the string cancele display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM OPEN Opens a data file. HEAD SA Frecord from an imput file. READ SA REC Protocol-specific command that transfers data from the acquisition buffer to the trace buffer. Programmer's internal remark. RESEQ Re-numbers the line numbers of the program in memory. RETURN RETURN REV Displays text in reverse video. REV UND Displays text in reverse video and underlined. REVUND NEW Opens a data file. REV REV REV REV REV REV REV REV	LLIST	Outputs program in memory to a printer. LLIST Prints entire program. LLIST X Prints program from line X to end. LLIST X, Y Prints program from line X to line y. LLIST , Y Prints program from beginning to line y. LMLIST Outputs the mnemonic table in memory to a printer. LMLIST	PRINT Displays a string, expression, o PRINT"string" Prints PRINT \$A Prints PRINT x Prints PRINT %x Prints Options: , acts as a field se ; suppresses a line ; suppresses the o	or variable. the string. string variable. numeric le. x in hex. parator e feed arriage return
LTPRINT Outputs the contents of the trace buffer to a printer. LTPRINT MENU Exits the simulator and returns to the main menu. MENU Exits the simulator and returns to the main menu. MERGE Combines a program file with the program in memory. MID\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. \$A = MID\$(\$X,xep1,exp2) exp1 is the position of the first characters exp2 is the number of characters MILOAD cloads a mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Cloads a mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Cliename" MSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory. MEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM OPEN Opens a data file. HEX Displays taxt in reverse video and underlined. REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV UND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REVUND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REVUND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REVUND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REVUND Sta is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV DISPLAY is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV DISPLAY is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right REV DISPLAY is the string	LOAD	Loads a program file into memory.	READ Reads next record from an inp READ \$A	ut file.
Culputs the contents of the trace buller to a printer. LTPRINTMENUExits the simulator and returns to the main memou. MENUREM Comment REM commentMENUExits the simulator and returns to the main memory. MENURESEQ Re-numbers the line numbers of the program in memory. RESEQ Start at line 10, increment by 10, RESEQ (EXPR1) Start at x, increment by 10. RESEQ (EXPR1) EXPR2) Start at x, increment by 10. RESEQ (EXPR1) EXPR2) Start at x, increment by y.MID\$Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. \$\$ A = MID\$ (\$\$, exp1, exp2) exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of charactersMLISTDisplays the mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Loads a mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Codes a mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Codes a mnemonic table in memory. MEXTNEWDeletes the program in memory. NEWNEXTIncrements the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXTNRMCancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRMOPENOpens a data file.OPENOpens a data file.RNDReturns a random number. RND(x)	LTPRIN		REC Protocol-specific command the from the acquistion buffer to th	at transfers data e trace buffer.
MENU Exits the simulator and returns to the main memory. RESEQ Re-numbers the line numbers of the program in memory. MENU MERGE Combines a program file with the program in memory. RESEQ Start at line 10, increment by 10. MID\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. SA = MID\$(\$x,exp1,exp2) Start at x, increment by 10. MLD\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string variable. ReseQ {EXPR1} {EXPR2} Start at x, increment by y. MLD\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a astring variable. Returns program control from .a subroutine called by a GOSUB. MLIST Displays the mnemonic table in memory. REV MLOAD Loads a mnemonic table into memory. REV MEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT NEXT is the string variable. NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, exp defines the number of characters from the right OPEN Opens a data file.		printer.	REM Programmer's internal remark. REM comment	
MERGE Combines a program file with the program in memory. MERGE"filename" 10. MID\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. RESEQ {EXPR1} Start at x, increment by 10. MID\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. \$A = MID\$(\$x,exp1,exp2) exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of characters RETURN MLIST Displays the mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD Loads a mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD"filename" REV MSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD "filename" REV NEW Deletes the program in memory. NEWT REV Tisplays text in reverse video in double intensity. NEW REVULF NEW Deletes the program in memory. NEWT REVUND NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x NEM NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM Sate file. OPEN Opens a data file. FND REND Returns a random number. RIND(x)	MENU	Exits the simulator and returns to the main menu. MENU	RESEQ Re-numbers the line numbers in memory. RESEQ Start at line 1	of the program 0, increment by
MID\$ Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. \$A = MID\$(\$x,exp1,exp2) increment by y. \$\$ = MID\$(\$x,exp1,exp2) exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of characters RETURN MLIST Displays the mnemonic table in memory. MLIST Returns program control from a subroutine called by a GOSUB. MLOAD Loads a mnemonic table into memory. MLOAD"filename" REV MSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory to disk. MSAVE"filename" REV NEW Deletes the program in memory. NEW NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM OPEN Opens a data file.	MERGE	Combines a program file with the program in memory. MERGE"filename"	10. RESEQ {EXPR1} Sta increment b RESEQ (EXPR1) (EXPR	unt at x, /10.
exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of charactersReturns program control from a subroutine called by a GOSUB. RETURNMLISTDisplays the number of charactersREVMLISTDisplays the mnemonic table in memory. MLOAD filename"REVMLOAD filename"REVMSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory. MSAVE"filename"REVHLFMEWDeletes the program in memory. NEWREVHLFNEWDeletes the program in memory. NEWREVUNDNEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT xREVUNDNRMCancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRMRIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the right end of one string to another string. \$A = RIGHT\$(\$x,exp) \$x is the string exp defines the number of characters from the rightOPENOpens a data file.RNDRNDReturns a random number. RND(x)	MID\$	Assigns characters from the middle of a string to a string variable. \$A = MIDS(\$x.exp1.exp2)	RESEX (EXPRI) (EXPRI) increment by RETURN	() / y.
MLIST Displays the mnemonic table in memory. MLIST REV Displays text in reverse video. REV MLOAD Loads a mnemonic table into memory. MLOAD"filename" REVHLF MSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory to disk. MSAVE"filename" REVHLF NEW Deletes the program in memory. NEW REVUND NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x REVUND NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM RIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the right end of one string to another string. SA = RIGHT\$(\$x,exp) OPEN Opens a data file. RND		exp1 is the position of the first character exp2 is the number of characters	Returns program control fron called by a GOSUB. RETURN	n .a subroutine
MLOAD Loads a mnemonic table into memory. MLOAD"filename" REVHLF MSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory to disk. MSAVE"filename" Displays text in reverse video in double intensity. REVHLF NEW Deletes the program in memory. NEW REVHLF NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x Displays text in reverse video and underlined. REVUND NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM RIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the right end of one string to another string. \$A = RIGHT\$(\$x,exp) OPEN Opens a data file. \$x is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right	MLIST	Displays the mnemonic table in memory. MLIST	REV Displays text in reverse video. REV	
MSAVE Saves the mnemonic table in memory to disk. intensity. MSAVE"filename" REVHLF NEW Deletes the program in memory. REVUND NEW NEW NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. Displays text in reverse video and underlined. NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). RIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the right end of one string to another string. NRM Opens a data file. \$x is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right RND Returns a random number. RND Returns a random number.	MLOAD	Loads a mnemonic table into memory. MLOAD"filename"	REVHLF Displays text in reverse vid	deo in double
NEW Deletes the program in memory. NEW REVUND NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x Displays text in reverse video and underlined. REVUND NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). NRM RIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the right end of one string to another string. \$A = RIGHT\$(\$x,exp) OPEN Opens a data file. \$x is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right RND Returns a random number. RND(x)	MSAVE	Saves the mnemonic table in memory to disk. MSAVE"filename"	intensity. REVHLF	
NEXT Increments the counter in a FOR loop. REVUND NEXT x NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). RIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of characters from the right end of one string to another string. NRM OPEN Opens a data file. \$x is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right RND Returns a random number. RND(x) RND(x)	NEW	Deletes the program in memory. NEW	REVUND Displays text in reverse video a	and underlined.
NRM Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity). the right end of one string to another string. NRM SA = RIGHT\$(\$x,exp) OPEN Opens a data file. St is the string exp defines the number of characters from the right RND Returns a random number. RND(x)	NEXT	Increments the counter in a FOR loop. NEXT x	REVUND RIGHT\$ Assigns a specified number of	characters from
NRM \$x is the string OPEN Opens a data file. exp defines the number of characters from the right RND Returns a random number. RND(x) RND(x)	NRM	Cancels display effects commands (blinking, underline, double intensity).	the right end of one string to ar \$A = RIGHT\$(\$x,exp)	nother string.
RND Returns a random number. RND(x)	OPEN	NRM Opens a data file.	\$x is the string exp defines the number of the right	characters from
			RND Returns a random number. RND(x)	

-42-

.

	-
imer which counts down in seconds TIM2 = x	
mer which counts up in seconds TIM3 = x	
ead-only variable that returns a specified /te of the system time in BCD digits. TIME(x) x is in the range 0 to 4 and specifies the unit of time, as follows: 0 - hours 1 - minutes 2 - seconds 3 - 1/100s seconds (.01) 4 - 10s of milliseconds (.0001)	5
ssigns the current time to a string ariable, TIME\$	
ads a trace tile into memory. TLOAD"filename" isplays the contents of the trace buffer.	
TPRINT urns off the program trace facility (debug	
TROFF uns on the program trace facility (debug ode). TRON aves the contents of the trace buffer to a ace file. TSAVE "filename" isplays text in underline.	
UND PRINT UND text onverts a numeric ASCII string to its teger form.	
A= VAL(\$A) /rites a string variable to a data file opened r output. WRITE \$A	
loves the cursor to a specified postion on le screen.	
XYPLOT(y,x) y = y-coordinate (row), range 0 - 21 x = x-coordinate (column), range 0 - 79	
	y = ycoordinate (row), range 0 21 x = xcoordinate (column), range 0 79

•

FRAMEM COMMANDS

-		
ABORT	RAN	RXADDR
	Transmits a frame with an abort sequence. The frame must be greater than 4 bytes in	Address field of the received frame.
	length.	IF RXADDR
BADTR	ABOHIHAN	RXC/R C/R bit extracted from an FRMR field. PRINT RXC/R
	Transmits a frame with a bad CRC. The	IF RXC/R
	BADTRAN	RXDIAGLast byte of an FRMR (WXYZ bits) PRINT RXDIAG
CRC	BADIHAN SA	IF RXDIAG
	bad CRC. CRC=0=Good CRC CRC=1=Bad CRC PRINT CRC	RXFCTLControl field of the received frame without the poll/final bit, N(S), and N(R). PRINT RXFCTL RXFRLEN
	IF CRC	Length of the received frame.
DEFINE	Defines new mnemonics or redefines	IF RXFRLEN
	DEFINE "NAME", I=x LAPD DEFINE "name"=x All others	RXN(R) N(R) of the received frame, if a supervisory frame or an I-frame. PRINT RXN(R)
	name =mnemonic name x is a numeric expression I=I-field permission (LAPD)	RXN(S) N(S) of the received frame, if a supervisory frame or an I-frame. PRINT RXN(S)
DEFSU	B Defines the line number to jump to when the received frame matches a specific	RXP/F Poll/final bit of the received frame. PRINT RXP/F IF RXP/F
	DEFSUB"NAME"=xxxx	RXRFCTL
	name=defined mnemonic xxxx=line number of program to execute if that mnemonic is received	frame. PRINT RXRFCTL
EXTEN	D	
	Selects extended mode addressing. EXTEND	Control field.
GET	Gets two bytes (low byte, high byte) from an Infield	IF PXPR/F
	x=GET exp PRINT GET exp	RXV(R) V(R) of the rejecting station for a rejected frame.
MOD	Specifies modulo 8 or modulo 128	IF RXV(R)
	MOD8	RXV(S) V(S) of the rejecting station for a rejected
	MOD128	PRINT RXV(S)
NORM	Selects normal mode addressing. NORM	IF RXV(S)
PUT	Defines a specified byte in an Lfield for transmission. PUT exp1.exp2	STATUS Displays the current addressing mode and modulo. STATUS
	exp1=byte no. from start of I-field exp2=value assigned to that byte	TPRINT Displays the contents of the trace buffer. TPRINT
REC	Assigns the next received frame in sequence from the acquisition buffer and to 0 or more string variables. REC \$A, \$8	

FRAMEM COMMANDS

TRAN	Transmits a frame with a good CRC. TRAN
	TRAN \$A
TXADD	R
	Sets the value of the address field of the frame being transmitted. TXADDR = xx
TXC/R	Sets the value of the C/R bit of the FRMR frame being transmitted. TXC/R = 1
	TXC/R = 0
TXDIAG	Sets the value of the last byte (WXYZ bits) of an FRMR field. TXDIAG = &xx
	xx is a 2-digit hex value
TXFCTL	Sets the value of the frame control field of the frame being transmitted. TXFCTL = udm
	udm = user-defined mnemonic
TXIFIEL	D
	Sets or adds to the contents of an I-field for a frame being transmitted.
	TXIFIELD = \$A Sets Initial to \$A. TXIFIELD+\$A Adds \$A to Initial to \$A. TXIFIELD = HEX>ABCD TXIFIELD = HEX>ABCD TXIFIELD = EBC>ABCD TXIFIELD + HEX>ODOA TXIFIELD + HEX>ODOA TXIFIELD + ASC>ABCD TXIFIELD + HEX>ODOA TXIFIELD + EBC>ABCD
TXN(R)	Sets the value of N(R) of the frame being transmitted. TXN(R) = x
TXN(S)	Sets the value of N(S) of the frame being transmitted. TXN(S) = x
TXP/F	Sets the poll/final bit of the frame being transmitted. TXP/F = x
TXRFCI	TL Sets the rejected frame control field of a frame being transmitted. TXRFCTL = RXFCTL
TXRP/F	Sets the poll/final bit of a rejected frame control field for the frame being transmitted. TXRP/F = RXRP/F
TXV(R)	Sets the value of V(R) for the frame being transmitted. TXV(R) = TXN(R)
TXV(S)	Sets the value of V(S) for the frame being transmitted. TXV(S) = TXN(S)

FRAMEM LAPD COMMANDS AND VARIABLES

FILL Changes the interframe fill pattern. FILL=FF

FILL=7E

- RXCR C/R bit of the received frame. PRINT RXCR IF RXCR...
- RXSAPI SAPI of the received frame. PRINT RXSAPI

IF RXSAPI

RXTEI TEI of the received frame. PRINT RXTEI

IF RXTEI...

TXCR Sets the value of the C/R bit of the frame being transmitted. TXCR=1

TXCR=0

- TXSAPI Sets the value of the SAPI for the frame being transmitted. TXSAPI = x
- TXTEI Sets the TEI for the frame being transmitted. TXTEI = x

FRAMEM DMI COMMANDS

FRAMEM DMI COMMANDS AND VARIABLES		FRAMEM	DMI COMMANDS AND VARIABLES
CAUSE	Returns cause of an on-hook state. PRINT CAUSE IF CAUSE CAUSE has the following values: 0 Start of simulation	tate. GLARE s:	Indicates if a glare condition exists. GLARE = 0=No glare condition. GLARE = 1=Glare condition PRINT GLARE IF GLARE
	1 Call rejected, no match on address digits 2 No wink received before T1 timeout	МАТСН	Specifies which incoming calls will be accepted. MATCH="x" x is a valid incoming number.
	4 Local disconnect 5 Remote disconnect	OUTNUM	Sets the number to be outpulsed (dialed).
CHADMIN	Defines the call setup mode to use. CHADMIN = x x is one of the following: 0 = Wink-start in/Wink-start out		x is the phone number, maximum of 30 digits
	1 = Auto-start in/Wink-start out 2 = Wink-start in/Auto-start out 3 = Auto-start in/Auto-start out	RESET	Clears the acquisition buffer and resets the state of the call to its start of simulation disconnected state. RESET
CONNECT	Seizes the channel selected on the TE820A.	RESPTIME	Indicates how busy your switch is. PRINT RESPTIME IF RESPTIME
DCALLED	Displays the phone number to be outpulsed (dialed) DCALLED	STATE	Returns the state of a call and the operating mode. PRINT STATE
DCALLING	Displays the numbers inpulsed (received). DCALLING		Values are: 1 Disconnected 2 Outgoing setup
DISCONNECT Causes the Chameleon 32/TE820A to go on-hook. DISCONNECT		3 Inc 4 Di 5 Di 6 Cc	 Incoming setup Dial pulses being received Dial pulses being sent Connected
DMATCH	Displays the number the Chameleon 32 will accept for incoming calls in Wink mode. DMATCH	STATUS	Displays the state of the call, the call setup mode, the modulo (8 or 128), and type of addressing, and glare condition. STATUS
DTIMERS	Displays the current timer settings. DTIMERS Displays timer settings. Tx=yy Sets timers. x is the timer number, range 1 – 8 yy is the value, range 1 – 99		
	 T1 Time between an incoming seizure and the start of the outgoing wink. T2 Duration of the wink signal. T3 Time between the end of the wink signal and the first dial pulse. T4 The duration of a break pulse. T5 The duration of a make pulse. T6 Inter-digit time T7 Dialing timeout T8 Minimum disconnect time. 		

SIMP/L COMMANDS

BREAK	Disassembles an I-field into its	SIMP/L HD	LC COMMANDS AND VARIABLES
	component strings and/or user-defined mnemonics. BREAK udm,udm,udm BREAK \$A,\$B,\$C BREAK udm,\$A,\$B,udm,\$C	LNKSTAT	Returns the status of the link. PRINT LNKSTAT IF LNKSTAT LNKSTAT values are as follows:
BUFFER	Defines a message for the transmission buffer in hex. BUFFER = xxx xxx is the message		0 Link Disconnected Mode 1 Link Connection Requested 2 Frame Rejected 3 Disconnect Requested State
BUILD	Assembles a message in the transmission buffer. BUILD udm,udm,udm BUILD \$A,\$B,\$C BUILD udm.\$A.\$B.udm.\$C	off	 4 Information Transfer State 5 Local Station Busy 6 Remote Station Busy 7 Local & Remote Stations Busy
DEFINE	Defines new frame control mnemonic or redefines an existing mnemonic. DEFINE"name" = x name is a mnemonic name	551	Sets variable values. Range: 2 - 512 SET N1 = x Range: 1 - 255 SET T1 = x Range: 1 - 255 SET WINDOW = x Range: 1 - 7 SET Network SET Network
	x is the field width in bits (maximum width = 16)		SET Subscriber
LENGTH	Returns length of the received frame. PRINT LENGTH IF LENGTH	SIMP/L SD	
LRDISPF	Outputs the last data field received to a printer or remote device. LRDISPF	LINGIAL	primary and secondary stations. PRINT LNKSTAT IF LNKSTAT INKSTAT (primary station) values:
LTDISPF	Outputs the last data field built to a printer or remote device. LTDISPF		0 Normal Disconnected Mode 1 Link Request State 2 Disconnect Request State
RDISPF	Displays the last data field received. RDISPF		Information Transfer State Local Station Busy Bemote Station Busy
REC	Transfers the next message in sequence from the reception buffer to the trace buffer. REC		6 Local & Remote Stations Busy LNKSTAT (secondary station) values: 0 Normal Disconnected Mode 1 Initialization Mode
SLOF	Disconnects link by sending a DISC. SLOF		2 Frame Reject Mode 3 Information Transfer State 4 Local Station Busy
SLON	Attempts to set the frame level link by sending a SABM, SABME, or SNRM. SLON		5 Remote Station Busy 6 Local & Remote Stations Busy
STATUS	Displays the status of the link. STATUS	NSI	NSI
TDISPF	Displays the last data field built. TDISPF	SET	Sets the value of variables and timers. SET T1=x Range: 1 - 255 SET T2=x Range: 1 - 255
TPRINT	Displays the trace buffer. TPRINT		SET N2=x Range: 1 – 99 SET ADDR=x Range: 0 – FF
TRAN	Transmits a message. TRAN	TEST	Sends a test frame. TEST
		XID	Transmits an XID frame. XID
		XIDFLD	Sets the data field of an XID frame. XIDFLD = \$A \$A is 6 bytes.

SIMP/L COMMANDS



SIMP/L COMMANDS



ASYNC BASIC COMMANDS

BREAK	Transmits a BREAK sequence. BREAK
CRC16	Calculates the CRC for a string \$B=CRC16(\$A)
FOXMESS	Transmits the standard FOX message and repeats it until the operator hits any key. FOXMESS
FRAMING	Returns a value that indicates the presence of stop bits at the end of the received block. PRINT FRAMING IF FRAMING FRAMING returns: FRAMING=0 Stop bits FRAMING=1 No stop bits
LENGTH	Returns the number of characters received in a block. PRINT LENGTH IF LENGTH
LRC	Calculates the LRC for a string. \$X = LRC(\$Y)
PARITY	Indicates whether a parity error has occurred. PRINT PARITY IF PARITY PARITY returns: PARITY =0=No parity error PARITY =1=Parity error
REC	Assigns the next character (if in character mode) or block of characters (if in block mode) to string variables. REC \$A, \$B, \$C
RXBREAK	Indicates if a break sequence has been received. PRINT BREAK IF BREAK BREAK returns: RXBREAK=0=No break sequence RXBREAK=1=Break sequence
TPRINT	Displays the contents of the trace buffer. TPRINT Prints the trace in ASCII. TPRINT HEX Prints the trace in hexadecimal.
TRAN	Transmits data in strings, mnemonics or literal data. TRAN \$A TRAN CR, LF TRAN "ABCD" TRAN \$A, CR, LF, "ABCD"

BSC BASIC COMMANDS

	CRC16	Calculates the two-byte CRC for a string. CRC16(\$A)
	IDLE	Determines what is transmitted when the line is idle. IDLE=SYNC IDLE=MARK
	LRC	Calculates the LRC for a string. LRC(\$A)
	REC	Takes the next received block from the acquisition buffer. REC
÷	RXLENGTH	Returns the length of the last received block. PRINT RXLENGTH IF RXLENGTH
	TPRINT	Displays the contents of the trace buffer.TPRINTDisplays the trace buffer in hex.TPRINT ASCIIDisplays the trace buffer in ASCII.TPRINT EBCDICDisplays the trace buffer in EBCDIC.
	TRAN	Transmits a block from the transmission buffer (TXBUFFER), according to the framing defined by the transmission control status byte (TXSTATUS). TRAN
,	TXBUFFER	Defines the contents of the transmission buffer TXBUFFER = DLE TXBUFFER = ACK TXBUFFER = 0 TXBUFFER = \$A TXBUFFER = &10, &70 TXBUFFER = DLE, \$A, &70
	TXSTATUS	Defines the transmission control status byte, as shown below. TXSTATUS = &xx TRAN \$A, CR, LF, "ABCD" xx is a hex value
		7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 START FRAMING 0 = SOH 1 = STX END FRAMING 00 = EOT 01 = ETB 10 = ETX 11 = Illegal TEXT MODE ENABLE 0 = Normal mode 1 = Transparent mode 1 0 = Transparent mode 1 (No DLE insertion) 1 = Transparent mode 1 (DLE insertion) TEXT MODE 0 = Control mode (No BCC) 1 = Text mode. CRC 0 = Good CRC 1 = Bad CRC MUST BE 1

Send User-Defined Frame FBbb Frame defined in binary. FAaa Frame defined in ASCII. FHhh Frame defined in hex. Send Unnumbered Commands F(P)DISC Polled/uncolled DISC on primary	Send Restart/Restart Confirmation Packets PRST(h1h2)(h3h4) Sends a Restart packet h1h2 = Cause code h3h4 = Diagnostic code PCRST Restart Confirmation packet. Send Clear/Reset/Interrupt Confirmation
F(P)SABM Polled/unpolled SABM on primary - address.	PUnCLEAR(h1h2)(h3h4)(,DHhh) Clear packet with data in hex. PUnCLEAR(h1h2)(h3h4)(,DAaa)
Send Unnumbered Responses F(F)UA UA frame. F(F)DM DM frame. F(F)CMDRh1h2(Vs)(,Vr)(B)(W)(X)(Y)(Z) CMDR frame.	Clear packet with data in ASCII. PUNCCLEAR Clear Confirmation packet. PUNRSET (h1h2)(h3h4) Reset packet. PUNCRSET PUNINT(h1h2)(h3h4) Interrupt packet.
Send Numbered Commands FPRR(Nr) Sends an RR. FPRNR(Nr) Sends an RNR. Nr is in the range 0 –7. Numbered Responses	PUnCINT Interrupt Confirmation. DA = Data in ASCII DH = Data in hex h1h2 = cause code h3h4 = diagnostic code
F(F)RNR(Nr) Sends a RNR frame. F(F)RR(Nr) Sends a RR frame. F(F)REJ(Nr) Sends a Rej frame. Nr is in the range 0 –7	Send Data Packets PUnD(Ps)(Pr)(Q)(M)(D)Hh,h Hex. PUnD(Ps)(Pr)(Q)(M)(D)Aaa ASCII. n = pseudo-user, range 1 - 7. Q = Qualifier bit.
F(P)I(Ns)(,Nr)(PACKET) Packet mnemonic. F(P)I(Ns)(,Nr)(PHh1h2) Packet in hex. F(P)I(Ns)(,Nr)(PAabcd) Packet in ASCII	M = More Data bit. D = Delivery confirmation bit. Send Diagnostic Packet
PACKET LEVEL COMMANDS Send User-Defined Packet	Sends a diagnostic packet on logical channel 0. PDIAGh1h2h3h4h5h6h7h8 h1h2= diagnostic byte h3 – h8 = first 3 bytes of header information
PHhh Packet in hex. PAaa Packet in ASCII.	DISPLAY AND PRINT COMMANDS
Send Call/Call Confirmation Packets PUnCALL(D)(Na or V)(,Nb)(,Fhh)(,DHhh) PUnCALL(D)(Na or V)(,Nb)(,Fhh)(,DAaa) Sends a Call packet. PUnCCALL(D) Sends a Call Confirmation packet. n = pseudo-user, range $1 - 7$. D = delivery confirmation bit. Na = called address in decimal V = called number configured in SITREX menu Nb = called number in decimal F = called facilities DA = Data in ASCII DH = Data in hex Send Supervisory Packets PUnRR(Pr) Sends an RR packet. PUnRR(Pr) Sends an RNR packet. PUnRR(Pr) Sends a Reject packet. PUnREJ(Pr) Sends a Reject packet. PUnREJ(Pr) Sends a Reject packet. D = pseudo-user, range 1 = 7.	Display User ParametersDISPTDisplays timer values in decimal.LDISPTPrints the timer values in decimal.DISPCDisplays counters in hex.LDISPCPrints counters in hex.DISPVDisplays variable values.LDISPVPrints variable valuesDISPXDisplays numeric variables in hex.DISPXDisplays numeric variables in hex.DISPXPrints numeric variables in hex.DISPXPrints numeric variables in hex.DISPMDisplays length (decimal) and contents of message buffer (hex).LDISPMPrints length (decimal) and contents of message buffer (hex).PrintPrints length (decimal) and contents of message buffer (hex).PrintDisplays text on the screen.LPRINT textDisplays text on the screen.LPRINT textDisplays text on the screen.LSTDisplays the scenario in memory.
Pr, range 0-7 (Mod 8); range 0-127 (Mod 128)	LUST Prints the scenario in memory.

PARAMETER COMMANDS	PARAMETER COMMANDS (CONT.)
Set Frame Level SFON Sets frame level ON. SFOF Sets frame level OFF. Set Packet Level SPON Set packet level OFF. Set Link Level SLON Sets Link ON. SLOF Sets Link OFF. Force Link On LNKUP Forces the Simulator to assume that the link has already been established. Transmit CRC SCRC+ Frames include good CRC. SCRC- Frames sent without CRQ. Set Frame and Packet Window Size SKx x = frame window size, range 1 – 7 SUNW(R or T)x x = packet window size. R = Receive window size. R = Receive window size. R = pseudo-User number,range 1 – 7 Set Frame and Packet State Variables SNS Increments N(s). SNS- Decrements N(s). SNS- Decrements N(s). SNS- Decrements N(r). SNR+ Increments N(r). SNR+ Decrements N(r). SNR+ Sets N(r, range 0 – 7 SUNPR+ Increments P(r). SUNPR+ Decrements P(r). SUNPR+ Decrements P(s). SUNPS+ Increments P(s). SUNPS+ Increm	Set Primary/Secondary Address SPAhth2 Sets Primary Address. SSAhth2 Sets Secondary Address. http://site.address. Set Logical Channel Group Number SLGh1 ht = LCGN in hex Assigns a default LCGNfor the next placed call. Set Interface Leads Snm+ Sets interface lead nnn active (space). Snm- Sets interface lead nnn inactive (mark). nnn is one of the signal numbers: DCE 106 CTS 107 DSR 109 DCD 122 SDCD 125 RI DTE 105 RTS 108 DTR Test Interface Leads Tests interface lead for mark or space and jumps to line number dddd if test is true. IFnnn+ddd Interface signal inactive. IFnnn-dddd Interface signal inactive. IFnnn-dddd Interface signal inactive. Set Timers STh1h2N3h4 Sets timer T' STWh1h2N3h4 Sets timer T' STWh1h2N3h4 Sets user-defined timer TU. Set Counters SCnh1h2 Sets counter n to hex value h1h2. SCn+ Increments counter n. n is in the range 0 – 7. Set Pseudo-User Type Defines pseudo-user 3 – 7. Pseudo-user 1 is reserved for the trace page. Pseudo-user 1 is reserved for the trace page. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Data Absorber. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Data Absorber. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Traffic Generator. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Traffic Generator. SPUNA Pseudo-user as a Traffic Generator. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Data Absorber. SPUNA Pseudo-user as a Traffic Generator. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Data Absorber. SPUNA Pseudo-user is a Data Absorber.

NUMERIC VARIABLE COMMANDS		Byte Extraction
Variable Operat	ions	by XB, and stores it in XA.
SXAHITIN2 SXA+XB	Adds XA and XB and stores result in XA.	SXAOh1h2 Extracts byte at location indicated by the hex value h1h2, and stores
SXA-XB	Subtracts XB from XA and stores result in XA.	Test Message Buffer Contents
SXA.XB SXA/XB SXA@XB	Logical AND. Logical OR. Logical Exclusive OR (XOR).	Compares the contents of the message buffer to the byte and mask configuration in the command.
Shift and Rotate SXADn SXAGn	e Shifts XA π times to the right. Shifts XA π times to the left.	ISXX/YY(,XX/YY)() dddd dddd is the line number
SXARn SXALn n is in the ran	Rotates XA n times to the right. Rotates n times to the left. ge 1 to 7.	FM Transmit Message FM Transmits the frame, assigning the first byte of the message buffer (byte 1) to the first byte of the frame.
Scenario wait value and the variable INPUT XA	s for the user to enter a two-digit hex en assigns the value to a numeric	PM Assigns the contents of the message buffer, excluding the message buffer length (byte 0), to the I—Field of a frame (byte 3 and following) and transmits it.
Test variables Tests variable below. If true IXA=XB ddd IXA=h1h2 ddd	using relational operators as shown , scenario jumps to line dddd. d XA equals XB dd XA equals h1h2.	PUNDS Assigns the contents of the message buffer (beginning with byte 1) to the data portion of the L-Field, and transmits it from the pseudo-user n.
IXA#AB ddd IXA#h1h2 dd IXA <xb ddd<="" td=""><td>dd XA is not equal to h1h2. d XA is not equal to h1h2. d XA is less than XB.</td><td>TRACE BUFFER COMMANDS</td></xb>	dd XA is not equal to h1h2. d XA is not equal to h1h2. d XA is less than XB.	TRACE BUFFER COMMANDS
IXA <h1h2 dddd="" h1h2.<br="" is="" less="" than="" xa="">IXA>XB dddd XA is greater than XB. IXA>h1h2 dddd XA is greater than h1h2. IXA(XB dddd XA <= to XB. IXA(h1h2 dddd XA <= to h1h2. IXA(h1h2 dddd XA <= to h1h2.</h1h2>		Display Trace TPRINT All levels interpreted, data in hex. TPRINTA All levels interpreted, data in ASCII. TPRINTF All levels uninterpreted, in hex. TPRINTP Interpret frame-level, I-field in hex.
IXA)h1h2 dd	dd $XA >= h1h2.$	Load Trace File TLOAD
MESSAGE BU	IFFER COMMANDS	Print Trace LTPRINT All levels interpreted, data in hex.
Assign Content	ts of Message Buffer Writes bey values into buffer	LTPRINTA All levels interpreted, data in ASCII. LTPRINTF All levels uninterpreted, in hex.
	where hh is up to of 128 hex digits.	LTPRINTP Interpret frame-level, I-field in hex.
SMAaa	Writes ASCII characters into buffer, where aa is a maximum of 64 ASCII bytes	TSAVE"0 <i>filename</i> " Save to the hard disk. TSAVE"1 <i>filename</i> " Save to floppy disk.
SXAIXB	Inserts value of variable XA in the byte of the buffer indicated by the value contained in variable XB.	Set Trace On/Off STON Sets the trace buffer ON. STOF Sets trace buffer OFF.
SXAlh1h2	Inserts the value of XA in the byte of the buffer indicated by the 2-digit hex value h1h2.	Clear Trace TRACE Trace Length
Message Buffer SXAI00	r Length Message buffer length = XA.	Defines number of data bytes (0 – 255) displayed by the trace buffer.
SXAO00	Extracts buffer length and stores it in XA.	h1h2 is a hex value in the range 0 to FF.

WAIT COMMANDS

These commands wait for the specified item before continuing the scenario. WF(command) Waits for frame type. WP(command) Waits for packet type. WTXX/YY(,XX/YY)(...) Waits for byte mask. Wait and Store Commands These commands wait for the specified item and then store it in the message buffer. WSF(command) Waits for frame type. WSP(command) Waits for packet type. WSTXX/YY(,XX/YY)(...) Waits for byte mask. Wait Watchdog Timer Sets the Watch Dog Timer for WAIT commands. SWTxxxx xxx = tens of milliseconds (.0001) Wait Jump Addresses Watchdog Address Sets jump address for the Watch-Dog Timer. SADRWT dddd dddd=line number Wait Jump Address Jumps to line number if the received item is not the one specified in the WAIT command. SELSE dddd dddd= line number PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COMMANDS Chain Program Loads and executes a scenario. &xfilename x is 0 (hard drive) or 1 (floppy drive) Load Program Loads a scenario file into memory. LOAD When prompted for a filename, use format: xfilename

x is 0 (hard drive) or 1 (floppy drive)

Remark

Enables you to enter programming remarks in a scenario. REM (*text*)

New Program Erases the scenario in memory so that a new program can be written. NEW			
Run Program Executes the scenario in memory. RUN			
Save Program Saves the scenario in memory to disk. SAVE When prompted for a filename, use format: xfilename x is 0 (hard drive) or 1 (floppy drive)			
MISCELLANEOUS COMMANDS			
Set Up Program Loop *h1h2 Beginning of loop ; End of loop. h1h2=times to execute loop, range 1 – FF			
Conditional Jump (IF) Tests a timer or counter for 0. If test is true, jumps to line dddd. Otherwise, the next command will be executed. IFT' dddd Tests timer T'. IFT' dddd Tests timer T''. IFTU dddd Tests user-defined timer TU. IFCn dddd Tests counter n (range 0 - 7)			
Unconditional Jump (GOTO, GOSUB) GOTO dddd Jump to line number dddd.			
GOSUB dddd Jump to line number dddd and execute command until RETURN is encountered.			
RETURN SEnd of GOSUB subroutine.			
Reinitialization HALTExits SITREX and returns to the Chameleon 32 main menu.EXITExits SITREX command mode and returns to the SITREX			
Automatic X.25 Simulator. ESCape key Stops scenario execution.			

SITREX AUTOMATIC SIMULATOR COMMANDS

COMMAND	FUNCTION
P1	Sets the Automatic X.25 Simulator to echo Called and Calling Addresses in Call Confirmation packets.
РР	Activates the Trace Buffer so that traffic is stored and displayed in the trace page. Once the trace is active, use CTRL P to make the trace idle.
PS	Enters programming mode and displays the ! prompt enabling you to enter Sitrex commands and write programs. From the ! prompt, you can exit Sitrex using the HALT command or exit program mode using the EXIT command.

SITREX DEFAULT PSEUDO-USERS

NUMBER	CONFIGURATION
01	Reserved for the Chameleon 32 Trace page (pink window).
02	Reserved for the Chameleon 32 Simulation page (blue window).
03	Traffic Generator
04	Echo Generator
05	Data Absorber
06	Second Traffic Generator
07	Third Traffic Generator

SITREX TRACE PAGE COMMANDS

The table below lists the commands that control the display of traffic in the SITREX trace page.

COMMAND	FUNCTION
0-9	Modifies the scrolling speed. Fastest = 1, Stop = 0
A	Toggles between ASCII and hex as format of displayed data.
F	Toggles display of frame level interpretation on/off.
P	Toggles display of packet level interpretation on/off.
R	Re-displays the contents of the trace.
CTRL C	Clears the trace memory.
CTRL P	Exits the trace mode and returns to the base Simulator level.

SITREX TRACE INTERPRETATION

The example below show the interpretation of a SITREX trace display. The first example interprets a display of a transmitted CALL packet. The second example interprets a transmitted DATA packet.



SITREX ERROR CODES

00 04 15 16 18 20 21 22 26 81–83	First character incorrect. Illegal Line number (valid range is 0 to 9999). Attempt to re-assign a new LCN to a previously set pseudo-user. Attempt to give a previously assigned LCN to a new pseudo user. RETURN without GOSUB. Incomplete Loop (; before * nn). Line number specified does not exist. Attempt to send a data packet on a logical channel that i not set up. Error in the call facility field of a call packet. No space for scenarios (memory full).
The	message P followed by a two-digit code is Packet Error Coding from the Automatic X. 25 Simulator.
P00 P01 P02 P03	Restart at the packet level. Internal error. Flow control anomaly (bad P(s) or P(r)). Call or interrupt collision on a logical channel.
TABLE ER TABLE ER TABLE ER TABLE ER	ROR 01,02Internal error.IROR 06,07Internal error.IROR 0A,0BInternal error.ROR 16This error is associated with high density traffic.
T00 T01 T02 T03 T04 T05 T08 T09 T10 T11 T14 T15 T16	Reception of a frame with an I-field that exceeds N1. Address unknown, frame ignored (Not Primary or Secondary address). Response with poll final bit set when not solicited. Response with poll final bit not set when solicited. Response unknown, results in sending CMDR. Incorrect length of response frame, results in CMDR. Received unsolicited UA. Incorrect Nr received. Reject frame received. RNR frame received. Unknown command received. Incorrect Ns received. Incorrect Ns received. Incorrect Ns received. Incorrect Ns received.
	Tx.P/F set.
T17	Inframe out of sequence and station not busy and no Tx.RNR requested and no prior Tx.REJ and no Tx.RVE set
T18 T19 T20 T21 T22-24	Received frame out of sequence with Tx.RR request. Received frame out of sequence. Internal error. Error which occurs when SITREX sends a disconnect and the device under test gives an unexpected response. Internal error.

C SHELL COMMANDS

8	Runs program in background mode. progname &	man	Displays the named help file. man filename
#	Programmer's remark. #text	mkdir	Creates a subdirectory mkdir <i>dirname</i>
*	Echoes text to screen.	mkres	Makes a program RAM resident mkres [-p] prog
batch	Executes a batch file batch <i>filename</i>		-p Cannot be removed by memory manager
cat	Concatenates and prints files cat filename	more	Displays file or pipe output, one screen at a time
cd	Changes current directory cd path	mv	Moves a file my file1 file2 Beplace file2 with file1
ср	Copies files into a directory cp oldfile newfile		mv file dir Move file to directory
ctags	Creates a file named tags that	pwd	Prints current subdirectory pwd
	program files. The <i>tags</i> file can then be used to locate functions while using the	rm	Deletes one or more files rm <i>filename filename</i>
	vi editor. ctags files	rmdir	Deletes a subdirectory rmdir <i>dirname</i>
dump	Prints files in hex to standard output. dump filename filename	rmres	Removes a program from residency rmres pid (pid=process ID)
exit	Exits C shell. Returns to main menu. exit	run	Runs a program as a separate process. run[-xxx] <prog> &</prog>
format	Formats a floppy disk. format		-xxx Priority in the range 1 – 230 (230 = highest priority)
getenv	Displays environmental variable getenv <i>name</i>	satany	progprogram filename
	Name: BC Background color		setent name 'value'
	HC Foreground color HOME Default cd path		FC Foreground color
	PATH Search path YEAR global-curr-year		HOME Default od path PATH Search path
	(or user-defined variable)		YEAR global-curr-year
help	Lists built-in shell commands help	shell	Opens a new page with the C shell.
jobs	Prints job control status jobs	size	Prints file size to standard output
kill	Kills a process that is running	1.000	size filename filename
	KIII <i>pid</i> (pid=process ID)	time	time
13	is [-d] [-k] [-i] [-s] [spec]		
	-d Sorted by date		
	Sorred by the extension Long list format		
	-s Sorted by size		
	shar Luauanta Arhani Sharungunu		

C SHELL REFERENCE

COMPILER COMMANDS			<u>M/</u>
cc	Compiles an cc [c] [flac c C flags Fl files C	nd links files gs] [file.c/file/o] ompiles only, does not link lags for Id and mcc Source or Object file	ma
mcc	Compiles C mcc[-dnam Dname Dname=v Ipath x cfile	source files ne[=value]][- path] [-x] cfile Same as #define name in source value Same as #define name value in source Searches path for Include file. Trace mode. C source file name	DIS
LINKE	RCOMMAN		
ld	Combines of program Id [-V] [-I output] <ol -V -Llib -M -X -Txxx -o output objects libraries</ol 	biject files into one executable Libj [-M] [-X] [-Txxx] [-o bjects> [libraries] Verbose option. Library search path. Prints names and addresses of globals. Debug option. Causes the linker to adjust references within the program as if the program was at hex memory location xxx. Output file. Input object files. This must always include: /lib/init.o One or more input library files, if not already specified with the Lib option.	EC egi egr Opt
LIBRA	RIAN COM	MAND	pat
 ar Groups files into a single archive (object file libraries) ar key [pos] afile file key One of the following commands: t - Table of contents r - Replace/add file ra - Replace after [pos] d - Delete file x - Extract file w-Write file to stdout v - verbose I - Create random library pos Position in archive to add file afile Archive file name file Filename according to key 			

MAKE UTILITY

nake	Execute related p opt f mfile file	es commands in a makefile, causing program files to be updated opt] [f mfile] file One of the following options: i Ignore error codes k Abandon work on current entry n No execute mode r Do not use builtin rules s Silent mode.
ISASS	EMBLI	ER COMMAND
is	Allows generati dis [-n -n -r -a -i ofile	you to check the compiler code on] [-r] [-a] [-i] ofile No symbol name conversion Print Bcc instructions Print as an assembly file Print hex value of instruction Object filename
GREP	COMM	IAND
grep grep.ttp ptions:	Searche [-C][-L] -C -L -V -N -S	es files for user-defined patterns. [[-V][-N][-S] pat[files] Prints number of lines matching pattern. Prints file names matching pattern. Prints line that do <i>not</i> match pattern. Prints the line number of the line matching pattern Silent. Prints only error messages.
at .	User d \x [abc] [a-z] + ?	efined pattern to match. Matches character x. Matches beginning of line. Matches any character. Matches characters a, b, c. Matches characters in the range a to z. Zero or more matches of the regular expression preceding * One or more matches of the regular expression preceding+ Zero or one matches of the regular expression preceding ? Two regular expressions separated by match either a match for the first or a match for the second.

C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

C LIBRARY FILENAME: libc.a		execi	Executes a file. execl(name, arg0, arg1,,argn,OL)
abs	Returns absolute value. # include <stdio.h> int abs (i) int i;</stdio.h>	execv	char *name; char *arg0,arg1,,argn; Executes a file. execv(name,argv)
alloca	Allocates RAM on the stack. char *alloca(size) unsigned int size;	exit/_exit	char *name, *arvg[]; Terminates a processexit returns without performing cleanup operations.
atof	Converts ASCII string to a floating-point number.		exit (status) _exit (status)
10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 -	double atot (nptr)	1	int status:
atoi	char *nptr; int atoi(str) char *str;	fclose	Writes all buffered data and closes stream. #include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
ator	long atol(str)		int tclose(stream)
bcmp	cnar "str; Compares two blocks of memory, int bcmp(block1, block2, len) char *block1, *block2;	feof	FILE *stream; Indicates when end-of-file is detected when reading stream. #include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	int len:		int feof(stream)
ьсору	Returns: 1 = blocks are identical Copies a block of memory to another block.		FILE *stream; Returns: 0 =Not EOF Non-zero = EOF detected
bzero	char *source, *destin; int len; Zeroes a block of memory.	ferror	Indicates when an I/O error occurs reading to/writing from the stream. #include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	int bzero(block1, len)		
calloc	char *block1; int len; Allocates RAM for array of <i>nelem</i>		FILE *stream; Returns: 0 ==No error Nonzero == Error detected
	elements of <i>elsize</i> size. char *calloc(nelem,elsize)	fflush	Writes buffered data, but stream remains open.
clearerr	Resets error and EOF indicators to 0.		int flush(stream)
	clearerr (stream) FILE *stream:		Returns: 0 = Successful EOF = Error
close	Closes a file. int close (fildes) int fildes-	fgetc	Same as getc, but is a true function. include <sdtio.h)< th=""></sdtio.h)<>
	Returns: 0 = Successful -1 = Error		FILE *stream;
creat	Create file or overwrite existing file. int creat(fname, oflag)	igets	pointed to by s until EOF, new line, n-1 characters are read.
	char *fname; int oflac:		#INClude <sd110.n> char *fgets(s,n,stream)</sd110.n>
	Returns: 0 = Successful -1 = Error		char *s; int n; FILE *stream;

fileno	Returns the integer file descriptor.		
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	int fileno(stream)		int fscanf(stream,format [,pointer])
	FILE *stream;		FILE "stream;
fopen	Opens a file and associates a stream	1	char 'format;
	with it.	fseek	Sets position of next I/O operation on the
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>	1	stream.
	FILE *fopen(file name,type)		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	char *file name:		int fseek(stream, offset,ptrname)
	char *type: w = Create for writing		FILE 'stream;
	r = Open for reading		iong offset; Range 0 – 2
Į	a = Append		int ptrname;
	r+ = Open for update		Returns: 0 = Successful
	w+ = Create for update		Non-zero = Error
	a+ = Random open	fteil	Returns offset of current byte relative to
		1	beginning of file.
fprintf			iong ftell(stream)
_fprintf	Places output to a named output		FILE *stream;
	stream.	fwrite	Appends nitems of data from array at ptr
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>		to an output stream.
	int fprintf(stream,format[,arg])	1	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	FILE *stream;		int fwrite(ptr,size,nitems,stream)
	char 'format;		char *ptr;
fputc	Similar to putc, but is a true function.		int size,nitems;
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>		FILE *stream;
	int tputc(c,stream)	getc	Returns the next byte in stream and
	char c;	1	advances pointer one byte.
	FILE "stream;		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
iputs	Writes the string pointed to by s to		int getc(stream)
	stream.		FILE *stream;
1	#include <stdio.n></stdio.n>	getchar	Returns the next character from stdin.
	int iputs (s,stream)		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	cnar 's;		int getchar()
	riLE "Stream;	gets	Reads characters from stdin into array
read	Reads nitems of data from input stream		pointed to by s until EOF or new-line.
	at ptr and places in array.		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	#INCIUDE <sigio.0></sigio.0>		char *gets(s)
	int iread (ptr,size,nitems,stream)		cnar *s;
	char pir;	getw	Returns next word or integer from input
	Si E tetroom		steam.
1000	FILE Stream,		#Include <stalo.n></stalo.n>
luse	allocation		int getw(stream)
	freq(ntr)		FILE "Stream;
	char *ntr	13	Giaracter-coded integer values.
freenen	Substitues a file in place of the open	Į.	#include <ctype.n></ctype.n>
	etream		intiscipita C Letter
1	#include -stdin by		intiscippere Opper case letter
	FILE *freenen (file name type		intistowerc Lower case retter
	stream)		inticaligui G. Digu inticaliguin o Alphanumoria
	char 'file name 'type'		intisence a Space tob CR powline
	FILE *stream:	1	form food
[char *type: w = Create for writing	Į	int ispunct a Punctuation
	r = Open for reading		intisprint c Printichare: 040_0176
	a # Append		intiscritic Delete char 0177 or
	r+ = Open for update	1	control chars < 040
	w+ = Create for update	1	intisascii c ASCII chare: - 0200
	a+ = Random open		int isxdiait Hex diait
6		-	int c:
iscant	reads from named input stream and	Į	Returns: 0 = False
	converts tormatted input.		Non-zero=True
ł	1	1	

imalioc	Returns pointer to a block of RAM of size	puts	Writes the string pointed to by s to
	or greater. Like malloc but accepts a long		sucul. Hinclude actdio ha
	char *Imalloc(size)		int puts(s)
	long size;		char *s;
longjmp	Restores the environment saved by	putw	Writes the word (integer) w to the output
	setimp in env.		stream at current pointer position.
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	iongjmp(env,vai)		int putw (w,stream)
	int val		HILW; Ell E 'stream'
Irealloc	RAM allocator which changes the size of	asort	Quick sort algorithm.
	the block pointed to by ptr to size bytes.		qsort(base, nelem, width, compare)
	Like realloc, but accepts a long		char *base;
	parameter.		int nelem, width;
	char *irealloc(ptr, size)		int (*compare) ();
	char pur;	rand	Generates a random number.
isook	Moves the file pointer according to		int rand()
	whence.	read	Reads <i>novte</i> bytes from the file into the
	long Iseek(fildes,offset,whence)		buffer pointed to by buf.
	int fildes;		int read(fildes,buf,nbyte)
	long offset;		int fildes;
	int whence; 0 = Set to offset		char *buf;
	1 = Curr. position+orrser	realles	Unsigned int hoyte;
mailoc	Returns pointer to a block of BAM (64K	realloc	the block pointed to by atrito size bytes
	bytes or less) of <i>size</i> or greater.		char *realloc(ptr. size)
	char *malloc(size)		char *ptr;
	unsigned int size;		unsigned int size;
open	Opens a file described for fname and sets	rename	Renames a file on disk.
	liag to ollag.		int rename (from, to)
	int open/fname oflag)	rewind	Equivalent to fseek/stream OK (1) but no
	char *fname:		value is returned.
	int offag; O-RDONLY Read only	1	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	O-WRONLY Write only		rewind(stream)
	O-RDWR Read/write		FILE *stream;
Domor	O-BINARY Binary mode	scant	Reads from stdin and converts formatted
penor	whites an error mesage onto the standard		ripul #include astrlig by
5 •	Derror(s)		int scanf(format[.pointer])
	char 's;		char *format;
	extern int sys_nerr;	setbuf	Assigns buffer pointed to by a to a
	extern char *sys_erriist[];		stream.
printt	Places output on stolout.		#INClude <stalo.h></stalo.h>
	int printf/format[arc])		Seloui(Stream,out)
	char *format:		char *buf
putc	Writes character c to the output stream at	setjmp	Non-local goto which saves its stack
	current pointer position.		environment in env for use by longjmp.
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>		#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>
	int putc (c,stream)		INT Setjmp(env)
	Gildr C; Fil F *stream•		jmp-out env;
putchar	Equivalent to putc(c.stdout).		
	#include <stdio.h></stdio.h>		
	int putchar(c)		
	char c;		
		1	

sprintf					
sprintf	Places output	in consecutive bytes	int strnc	mp(s1,s2,n) Compares <i>n</i> chars of s2 to
-	starting at s.	· •		••••	s1. Returns:
	#include <std< td=""><td>io.h></td><td></td><td></td><td>0 if s1 =s2</td></std<>	io.h>			0 if s1 =s2
	int sprintf (s,	format[,arg])			>0 if s1 >s2
	char *s, form	at;			<0 if s1 <s2< td=""></s2<>
srand	Resets the rai	ndom number generator to	char *str	cpy(s1,s2)	Copy s2 to s1.
	a new starting	point.	char strn	icpy(s1,s2,	n) Copy n char from s2 to s1.
	#include <sto< td=""><td>lio.h></td><td>Int strien</td><td>i(s)</td><td>Heturn no. of chars. in s.</td></sto<>	lio.h>	Int strien	i(s)	Heturn no. of chars. in s.
	srand(seed)		I intindex	(s,c)	Move pointer to first c in s.
	long seed;		int rinde	X(S,C)	Move pointer to last c in s
sscanf	Reads from cl	naracter string a and	cnar *xtr	cat(\$1,\$2)	Append s2 to end of s1,
	converts form	atted input.	cnar "xtr	cpy(s1,s2)	Copy s2 to s1. Return a
	#include <st< td=""><td>lio.h></td><td> </td><td>and at at</td><td>pointer to end of s1.</td></st<>	lio.h>		and at at	pointer to end of s1.
	int sscanf(s,	ormat[,pointer])	Char Xirn	icpy(si,sz,	n) Copy n char from s2 to s1.
	char *s, *forn	nat;			
strtol	Converts strin	g to long integer.	AUA. 30		HI Z FUNCTIONS
	long strtol(st	r,ptr,base)		1	
	cnar "str, ""p	ur;		Inniauzes /	Mux Senai Port 2.
A	int base;			#Include "	paval.n
toascii	Heturns argur	nent with all but the / low		Int milpord	a (stopoli, bitchar, bitrate, parity)
	order bits set	lo zero.		iong stopu	ST1 1 oten bit
	#Include <cly< td=""><td>pe.n></td><td></td><td>stopoli</td><td>ST15 - 1 5</td></cly<>	pe.n>		stopoli	ST15 - 1 5
	int toascii (c)				ST20 = 2
tolowor	int c;			bitchar	DB5 = 5 data bits
tolower	Converte eles			101 101 1011	DB6 = 6
-roiowet	tolower bee	acters to lowercase.			DB7 = 7
	tinclude act	na ha			DB8 = 8
	int tolower	(berris		bitrate	F110 = 110 bps
	int c.				F300 = 300 bps
toupper	Converts chai	acters to upper case			F120 = 1200 bps
co-ppc:	#include <ct< td=""><td>ne ha</td><td></td><td></td><td>F240 = 2400 bps</td></ct<>	ne ha			F240 = 2400 bps
-	int toupper (=)			F480 = 4800 bps
	int c:	-)			F960 = 9600 bps
ungetc	Inserts charac	ter <i>c</i> into buffer.			F192 = 19200 bps
3	#include <sto< td=""><td>fio.h></td><td></td><td>parity</td><td>PANO = No parity</td></sto<>	fio.h>		parity	PANO = No parity
	int ungetc(c.	stream)			PAEV = Even parity
	char c;	·		D . b	PAOD = Odd panty
	FILE *stream	e 3		Returns:	V = SUCCESSIUI
unlink	Removes a di	rectory entry.		—	
	int unlink(pa	th)	sndpa	Iransmits	data using Aux Senal Port 2.
	char *path;			#include "p	paval.n"
write	Writes noyte I	ytes from buffer pointed to		int snapa ((ptr, nb, timeout)
•	by but to the f	ile.		char ptr;	n on th
	int write(filde	s,out,noyte)		Returner	nt -No of hutes transmitted
	Int fildes			nouns.	0 = Timeout
5 8	cnar rout;				-1 Parameter error
	unsigned int	noyte;	racha	Receivee (data using Aux Serial Port 2
STRING	OPERATION	<u>5</u>	II Ischa	#include "	navel h"
				int recna ((otr timeout)
#include <	string.h>			char totr	pa, anoday
char *s1, s2, *s, c;		11	long times	ut:	
int n;				Returns:	nb =No. of bytes received
char *strc	at(s1,s2)	Appends s2 to end of s1.	11		0 = Timeout
char *strn	cat(s1,s2,n)	Appends max. of n			-1 Parameter error
		chars. from s2 to s1.	rotary	Eluphoe th	e driver recention buffer
int stremp	o (\$1,\$2)	Compares s2 to s1 and		#include "	oaval h"
		returns an integer that is:	11	int rstdn/	
		UIT S1 = S2			
		2011 SI 252 2011 st 202			
		~~ (I ~)~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~]		
		~	I L		

WINDOW INTERFACE FUNCTIONS

assignleds	Creates or changes LEDs. assignLeds(vtnum, pleds, ledword) long vtnum; Virtual terminal no. long pleds; Points to 80 chars. long ledword; Bits 0 – 9: If Bit i = 1, LED i+1 is on. If Bit i = 0 LED i+1 is off. Bits 10–31 reserved.
closeform	Changes from form to window mode. closeform(vtnum)
closevt	ong vtnum; Releases the virtual terminal. closevt(<i>vtnum</i>)
	long vtnum; Virtual terminal no.
disablecur	Causes the cursor to be invisible disablecur(<i>vtnum</i>)
	long vtnum; Virtual terminal no.
enablecur	Causes the cursor to be visible enablecur(<i>vtnum</i>)
	long vtnum; Virtual terminal no.
getch	Gets a character from stdin. char getch(vtnum)
getcwt	ong vtnum; Waits for a character from stdin. char getcwt(vtnum)
openform	ong vtnum; Opens a form. long openform()
openvt	Assigns a virtual terminal. long openvt(pname)
	char pname; 23-character string
prndata	Sends data to the printer. prndata(data)
putvt	char *data; Displays a string on a virtual terminal. <i>putvt(</i> vtnum, 'string '') long vtnum; Virtual terminal no. char *string; Maximum of 80 ASCII characters, VT100 format
selprn	Selects the parameters for a printer. selprn (device, br, bits, sb, par) long device, br, bits, sb, par; Default: Parallel, 9600, 8, 2, Even device 0=Serial bits 0=5 bits 1=Parallel 2=6 br 3=300 1=7 6=600 3=8 12=1200 sb 1=1 stop bits 24=2400 2=1.5 48=4800 3=2 96=9600 par 0=None 192=19200 1=Odd 3=Even 3=Even 3=Even 3=2

MATH LIBRARY: libm.a

#include <n double x,y; int a, k;</n 	nath.h>	
log(x)	Base e logarithm.	
log10(x)	Base 10 logarithm.	
log2(x);	Base 2 logarithm.	
exp(x)	Base e exponential.	
exp10(x)	Base 10 exponential.	
exp2(x)	Base 2 exponential.	
sin(x)	Transcendental functions.	
	double cos(y)	
CUS(X)		
tan(x)	double tan(x)	
asin(x)	Inverse transcendental functions. double asin(x)	
acos(x)	double acos(x)	
stan(y)	double stan(y)	
a can (a)	double arany	
sqr(x)	double sqr(x)	
sqrt(x)	double sqrt(x)	
powerd(x,	y) xy (equivalent to exp2(x*log2(y)) double powerd(x, y)	
poweri(x,a) xa (equivalent to exp2(x*log2(a)) double poweri(x,a)	
dabs(x)	Absolute value (?x?). double dabs(x)	
dint (x)	Integer part of the double that is the parameter.	
mulpower:	int dint (x) 2(x, k) Fast floating point multiplication	
	by 2k. double mulpower2(x, k)	
ingamma()	K) Natural logarithym of the gamma function if 0<x<5.1x10305.< li=""></x<5.1x10305.<>	
fac(k)	double ingamma(x) kl, where 0?k?170	
Matrix	double fac(k) double matinv(a,c,n)	
	double *a;	
	long "c; long n;	
MS-DOS File Compatible Functions		
يبز أهر ما وه	Creater a disastan	
rmkair	treates a directory.	
	rmkalr(almame)	
	char *dirname; (including path)	
Frmdir	Removes a directory	
	disalida	
	#INCIULA <[[]312024.[]>	
	Frmdir(dirname)	
	char *dirname; (including path)	
Esearch	Searches for a file or directory	
,	#include <ms suse.h=""></ms>	

Fsearch(name, option, rec)

char *name; (file/dir name and path) int option; (0=first occ, 1 = next occ) struct DREC *rec

vi COMMANDS

<u>KEY</u>

п

- n Number opt Option
- ^ CTRL key

- X Single upper or lower case character
- CR RETURN key (carriage return)
- pat Text and/or pattern matching characters

INPUT COMMANDS

<u></u>	
а	Append after cursor.
A	Append at end of line.
i	Insert before cursor.
I	Insert before first non-blank.
0	Open and insert at line below.
0	Open and insert at line above.
^D	Backtab over autoindent.
0^D	Kill all autoindent.
^V	Insert a non-printing character.
	· ·

DELETE COMMANDS

X	Delete character.
mx	Delete n characters.
Х	Delete character before cursor.
dw	Delete word.
ndw	Delete <i>n</i> words.
dd	Delete line.
<i>n</i> dd	Delete n lines.
dtx	Delete to x in a line.
D	Delete rest of line.
d/ <i>pat</i> CR	Delete up to <i>pat</i> .
d2natCB	Delete back to pat

INSERT-MODE COMMANDS

۸W	Erase last word.
^ H	Erase last character.
ERASE	Keyboard character (same as ^H)
KILL	Keyboard character. Kill input on current line.
ESC	Keyboard character. End insert mode
MARKING C	OMMANDS

mxMark position with letter x.'xReturn to mark x.'xMark at first non-blank in line.

CHANGE COMMANDS

CW	Change word until ESC.
ncw	Change n words until ESC.
CC	Change line until ESC.
ncc	Change <i>n</i> lines until ESC.
ctx	Change to x until ESC.
С	Change rest of line until ESC.
c/patCR	Change up to pat.
c?patCR	Change back to pat

GO TO (File) COMMANDS

G	Go to last line of file.
<i>n</i> G	Go to line <i>n</i> .
/pat	Go to next line matching pat.
?pat	Go to previous line matching pat.
ก่	Go to next / or ?.
Ν	Go to previous / or ?.
/pat/+n	Go to <i>n</i> th line after pat.
?pat?n	Go to nth line before pat
*	Go to previous context.
*	Go to first non-blank in line.

INVOKE, EXIT, SAVE COMMANDS

vi file	Edit first line of file.				
ZZ	Exit vi and save changes.				
.w	Write (save) changes.				
:w file	Write (copy) to file.				
:q	Quit vi.				
pw:	Write (save) changes and quit vi.				
:ql	Quit vi without saving changes.				
MODIFY COMMANDS					
•	Repeat last operation.				
~	Reverse case of letter.				
J	Join lines.				
<<	Shift line left 1 tab.				
>>	Shift line right 1 tab.				

vi COMMANDS (CONTINUED)

MOVE TO (Se	creen) COMMANDS	UNDO
+	Move to 1st character, next line,	u
	Move to 1st char, previous line,	ll ū
↓ori	Move to next line, same column.	" <i>n</i> o
Tork	Move to previous line	" <i>n</i> 1p
sort	Move to the right	
← OF II		
4	Move to end of line.	w
SCREEN AD.	JUSTMENT COMMANDS	Ŵ
^L	Clear and redraw screen.	
^R	Retype, without deleted lines.	D
zCR	Redraw, current line at top.	L R
Ζ.	Redraw, current line at center.	
Z-	Redraw, current line at bottom,	e
/pat/z	Redraw with pat line at bottom.	
zn.	Redraw window with <i>n</i> lines.	1 s
^E	Scroll window down 1 line.	
ΛΥ	Scroll window up 1 line.	,
٨F	Scroll forward 1 screen.	,
^B	Scroll backward 1 screen.	VANIZ
^D	Scroll down half a screen.	TANK
^U	Scroll up half a screen.	yy or
	• .	<i>nyy</i>
SEARCH PAT	TERNS COMMANDS	B
A	Beginning of line.	- *w
\$	End of line.	^y "vo
	Any character.	1 1
*	0 or more repetitions of character.	VISOF
[<i>AZ</i>]	Match any character from $A - Z$	
[abc]	Match a, b or c.	
[^abc]	Match any char. except a, b,c.	F2 Sav
1	Escape character for literal \ /\$.	F3 Qui
	^['&* ~	F4 Sav
\<	Beginning of word.	F5 Rev
	End of word.	
SUBSTITUT	ON COMMANDS	F1 Inse
stevt	Substitute text for character	F2 App
S	Substitute line	F3 Del
·s/X/Viont	Substitute first X with Y	F4 Cut
	ont a Change all	
	occurrences	
	c Confirm each change.	
	p Print each change.	
& ·	Repeat last :s request.	
:g/X/s//Y/or	ot	
	Globally substitute Y for X	
	tor first X on each line.	

UNDO COMMANDS

u	Undo last operation.					
U	Restore current line.					
" <i>п</i> р	Retrieve nth last delete.					
" <i>n</i> ipu.u.u.						
٠	Scan previ	ous n	deletes.			
	INE COM		DS			
w	Move forwa	ard 1 v	vord.			
W	Move forward 1 word, including					
	punctuation.					
b	Move back 1 word.					
В	Move back	1 wor	d, includin	g		
	punctuation	٦.				
e	Move to en	d of w	ord.			
E	Move to en	d of w	ord, includ	ling		
	punctuation	n.				
TX .	Find x forw	ard (to	o the right)	•		
, ,	Repeat las	t i.				
;	Heverse la	st I.				
ANK AND P	ULL COM	MANE)S			
yy or Y	Yank line to) buffe	f.			
nyy or nY	Yank <i>n</i> line	s to bu	uffer.			
р	Put lines ba	ack be	low cursor			
Р	Put lines back above cursor.					
"xy	Yank to but	fer x.				
"хр	Put from bu	uffer X.	•			
SOFTKEYS	3					
LE Softkeys	5					
Open	:0	F6	Read	3		
2 Save	:w:	F7	Set	:set		
3 Quit	<u>:q</u>	F8	Next	n		
Sav/Qit		F9	Hewind	.rew		
b Reven	:0 !	FIU	EDIT SOL	tkeys		
DIT Softkey	S	_				
Insert	i	F6	Paste	P		
2 Append	a		Sich Pw	2		
t Curr	× ×	FO	Acain	!		
5 Copy	Ϋ́ρ	F10	FILE Soft	kevs		
	· F	• • •				
C PROTOCOL LIBRARY COMMON FUNCTIONS

These functions are available in all protocol libraries.	SETPHY (continued)
FLUSH Clears all outstanding frames in the reception buffer. int flush() Returns: 3 Receive buffer overflow	DTEBit 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 Pin 105 108 140 141 Pin 4 20 Sig RTS DTR SQ
GETPHY Indicates physical interface setting. int getphy() Returns 2-byte integer as shown below. Byte 0 Bit 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 Pin 105 108 140 141 104 103 114 115 Pin 4 20 3 2 15 17 Sig RTS DTR SQ RD TD SCT SCR	SETPORT Selects Port A or Port B for library. int setport(port) int port; 0=Port A 1=Port B Returns 0=Successful -1=Parameter out of range -2=Port B not available
Byte 1Bit 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 Pin 106 107 109 122 125 142 Pin 5 6 8 12 22 Sig CTS DSR CD SDCD RI GETPORT Identifies which port is communicating with the library. int getport() Returns: 0=Port A selected 1=Port B selected	SETTIMER Sets the timer value. settimer(number,value) char number;0=.01 timer (down) 1=.01 timer (up) 2=seconds (down) 3=seconds (up) unsigned int value; timer setting Returns: 0=Successful
GETIME Gets the number of milliseconds since the system was started. #include <mtosux.h> int getime(msbfr)</mtosux.h>	1=Invalid <i>number</i> 2=inittime not performed TIMER Returns the value of the timer. int timer(<i>number</i>)
unsigned char *msbfr; INITTIME Initializes the .01 and 1 second timers. Use initp1 to initialize the port before you use inittime. int inittime()	Unsigned int number; 0=.01 (down) 1=.01 (up) 2=seconds (down) 3=seconds (up)
P1RESET Restarts or resets the Front End Processor. Restart clears the reception buffer. Stop is similar to a hardware reset. int p1reset(kind) int kind; 0 Restart simulation 1 Stop simulation	GLOBAL ERROR CODES -1 Front End Processor (FEP) is busy 0 FEP is free 1 FEP is transmitting -200 Port is busy -201 FEP parameter -201 FEP Parameter port -202 Not valid on ISDN interface
SETLEDS Controls which port's LEDs are displayed on the front panel of a Dual Port machine. int setleds(<i>port</i>) int <i>port</i> ; 0=Port A LEDS displayed 1=Port B LEDS displayed Returns 0=Successful 1=Invalid parameter 2=Not a Dual Port machine SETPHY Sets physical interface lines as below. setphy()	-208 Code not found -209 FEP cannot be started -210 Application Invalid -211 Invalid transmission mode -212 Timeout -213 No memory available -214 FEP Code read -215 FEP file not found -216 FEP Code not loaded -217 FEP halted -218 No Port B -219 Internal running 200 FEP Load error
DCEBit 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 Pin 106 107 109 122 125 142 Pin 5 6 8 12 22 Sig CTS DSR CD SDCD RI	-222 Undefined status -224 FEP Data not set

AUTO HDLC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

AUTO HD	LCLIBRARY FILENAME: libhdlc.a		
INITP1	Initializes P1 and loads software.		
	int initp1(type1,type2,encode,bitrate)	SET_T1	Sets T1 timer.
	int type1; 0=UCE		int set_t1(val)
5 5			int val; Range: 1 – 255
	int type 2: 0-Network		Hetums:
	1-Subscriber	1	
	int encode: 0=NRZ		
	1=NRZI	SET WINE	WOO
	unsigned long bitrate; 50 - 64000		Sets window size.
	Returns:		int set_window(va/)
	0=Successful	l	int val; Range: 1 – 7
	-1=Invalid parameter(s)		Returns:
	-2=P1 program not loaded		0=Successful
			-1=Invalid value
RECEIVE	Receives a frame from P1 and places it	SLOF	Disconnects link.
-	at address in packet.		int slof()
	char receive (packer)		
	char * packet;	SLON	Establishes link by sending a
	Returns:		SABM.
-	1-link not established		int sion()
	2=inito1 not performed		* • • • • • • • • •
		STATUS	Indicates status of frame level.
SET N1	Sets N1 (maximum packet size).		Int status()
-100	int set_n1(va/)		0-Disconnected
	int val; Range: 1 - 512		1=Link connection requested
	Returns:		2=Frame reject
	V=SUCCessiul		3-Link disconnection requested
-			4-Information transfer
SET N2	Sate N2 (retransmissions)		5-Local station busy
	int set n2(van		C=Remote station busy
	int va/; Range: 1 - 255	l	/=cocal & lemole stations busy
	Returns:	TRANSM	IT Transmits L trame
	0=Successful		transmit/packet, length)
	-t=Invalid value		char *packet;
		l	int length;
			Returns:
			0=Successful
			i≡t*1 ousy ?initn1 pet so formed
			2=link not established
			o-cinc not established
-			
		ł	

BOP LIBRARY FILENAME: libbop.a int initp_8k1(type, encode, DISCARD Discards a frame prior to its entering a bitrate, flag) buffer. int type; 0=DCE init discard() 1=DTE 2=ISDN **Returns:** 0=NRZ int encode: 0 Frame discarded; no frame in 1=NRZI buffer. unsigned long bitrate; 50 - 64000 <0 standard error codes int flag;0=FF 1=7E INITP1 Initializes P1. Loads simulation software. When initialized with this function, the **Returns:** maximum frame size handled by the 0=Successful simulator is 2 kbytes. -1=Invalid parameter(s) int initp1(type, encode, bitrate, flag) -2=P1 program not loaded 0=DCE int type; 1=DTE RECEIVE Receives a frame from P1 and places it 2=ISDN at address in frame. 0=NRZ int encode; char receive (frame) 1=NRZI char *frame; unsigned long bitrate; 50 - 64000 **Returns:** int flag; 0=FF 0=Good CRC or no frame waiting 1=7E 1=Bad CRC Returns: 2=initp1 not performed 0=Successful 3=Overflow -1=Invalid parameter(s) 4=Abort frame received -2=P1 program not loaded SETFLG Changes the idle fill pattern. GET_NXLEN Returns the length of next frame from FEP. int setfig(flag) char flag; 0=FF int get_nxien () 1=7E Returns: TRANSMIT Transmits number of bytes in length, 0 = No new frame >0 = length of next frame starting at address in frame. <0 = Standard error codes. int transmit(mode, frame, length) int mode; 0=Good CRC GET_NXSTATGives status of next frame. 1=Bad CRC int get_nxstat () 2=Abort sequence char *frame; int length; Returns: 0 No new frame **Returns:** Frame ok 0=Successful 1 2 Parity error in frame 1=P1 busy 3 Abort sequence in frame 2=initp1 not performed <0Standard error codes. 3=Parameter error 4-Buffer overflow INITP1_8K Initializes P1. Loads simulation TREADY Returns status of P1 transmitter. software. When initialized with int tready() this function, the maximum frame Returns: size handled by the simulator is 8 0=Transmitter ready kbytes. Monitoring applications 1=Transmitter not ready cannot be run simultaneously 2=initp1 not performed when initialized with this function. 3=Overflow

BOP C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

LAPD C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

LAPD LIBRARY FILENAME: liblapd.a GET_MOD Returns the current modulus. int get_mod() Returns: 0=Mod8 1=Mod128	RECI
GET_RNTEI Returns value of user-defined receive TEI. int get_rntei(val) int val; Range: 0 - 2	
Returns:	
0-127= TEl value	DECT
—1=va/ outside of range —2= No extended memory	neo i
GET_RSAPI Returns value of user-defined SAPI. int get_rsapi(val) int val; Range: 0 - 2	
Returns:	SETF
0 - 63= SAPI value	1
-1= val outside of range -2= No extended memory	-
GET_SCONFIG Returns status configuration byte. int get_sconfig Returns status configuration byte (see manual for interpretation).	SET_
GET_SIM Returns the side being simulated. int get_sim() Returns: 0=Network	
1=Subscriber	SET
INITP1 Initializes P1 and loads software. <i>int initp1</i> (interface,station,encode,bitrate) int <i>interface</i> ; 0=DCE 1=DTE 2=ISDN int <i>station</i> ; 0=Network 1=Subscriber int encode: 0=NBZ	
	S N2
long <i>bitrate;</i> 50 – 64000 Returns: 0=Successful –1=Parameter error –2=Code not found (see manual)	
-3=Time out -4=Can't set interface mode -5=Can't set Vtype interface module -6=Can't set bit rate -7=Internal error -8=Can't run FEP -10=Can't restart simulator -11=Can't initialize simulator -13=Can't initialize timers	S_N2

RECEIVE	Receives an I-frame from P1 and places it at address in <i>rloc</i> . extern int <i>rxlen</i> int receive(<i>rloc</i>) char * <i>rloc</i> ; Returns: 0=Successful or no frame waiting 2= <i>initp1</i> not performed 4=P1 busy
RESTART	SIM Restarts P1 simulation.
	int restartsim()
	Returns:
SETFLG	Changes the idle fill pattern.
	int setflg(flag)
	int flag; 0 Fill with FF
	1 Fill with 7E
	Returns: 0 Successful
	1 Timeout
SET BIT	DATESate the bit rate
<u>aei"oli"</u>	int set bit rate(rate)
	long rate: Range: 50-64000
	Returns:
	0=Successful
	1=Error
CET MOD	Coto the medulus to med or
361 MOD	modt28
	int set mod(va)
	int val: 0=Mod8
	1=Mod128
	Returns:
	0=Successful
	-1=val outside of range
	1=Time out
S NOOD	Sate N2 (retransmissions)
0_11200	int s n200(val)
	int val:
	Returns:
	0=Successful
	1=Time out
C 11004	
S_NZUT	Ders INT (maximum packet size).
	int val: Banne: 1 - 512
	Returns:
	0=Successful
	-1=val outside of range
	1=Time out

LAPD C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS - CONTINUED

SET_NET Sets simulation of network. int set_net() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out	S_T200 Sets value of the T200 timer. int set_t1(<i>val</i>) or s_t200(val) int <i>val</i> ; Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out
SET_RNTEI Sets user-defined TEI value. int set_rntei(va/,tei) int va/; Range 0 - 2 int tei; Range 0 - 255 Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out -1=va/ or tei outside of range -2=No extended memory SET_RSAPI Sets value of user-defined SAPI. int set_rsapi(val, sapi) int val; Range 0 - 2 int sapi; Range 0 - 63 Returns:	S_T203 Sets value of T2 timer. int set_t2(val) or s_t203(val) int val; Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out SET_TEI Sets the transmit TEI value. int set_tei(val) int val; Range: 0 – 127 Returns: 0=Successful -1=val outside or range 1=Time out
0=Successful 1=Time Out -1=va/ is outside range -2=No extended memory SET_SAPI Sets supported SAPI for transmission int set_sapi(val) int val; 0 - 63 Returns: 0=Successful -1=va/ outside or range 1=Time out SET_SCONFIG Sets status configuration byte.	SET_WINDOW Sets window size. int set_window(val) int val; Range: 1 – 7 Returns: 0=Successful -1=val outside of range 1=Time out SLOF Disconnects link. int slof() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out
intset_sconfig(byte) int byte; Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time Out 2=No extended memory SET_SUB Sets simulation of subscriber. int set_sub() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out	SLON Establishes link by sending a SABN SABME. int slon() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out

or

LAPD C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS - CONTINUED

STATUS	Indicates status of frame level. int status() Returns: 0=Disconnected 1=Link connection requested 2=Packet reject 3=Link disconnection requested	TRUI	Transmits an unnumbered I-frame. int trui(x <i>loc</i> ,x <i>len</i>) char *x <i>loc;</i> Location of data int x <i>len;</i> Length of data field Calls and returns the value returned by: trans(UI,packet, length)
	4-Information transfer 5-Local station busy 6-Remote station busy 7-Local and remote station busy *8-Remote station not responding other=LAPD not running	TRXCNI	Transmits an XID command frame without an I—field. int trxcni() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out
STOPSIM	Stops P1 simulation. Int stopsim() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out Transmits a specified type of frame.	TRXIDC	Transmits an XID command frame with an I-field. trxidc(x <i>loc,xlen</i>) char *x <i>loc;</i> Location in memory int x <i>len;</i> Length Calls and returns the value returned by: trans(XIDC,xloc,xlen)
	int trans(stat,frame,len) int stat; 0x80=L-Frame 0x81=UI frame 0x82=XID Command frame 0x83=XID Response frame char *frame; int len; (0 - 511) Returns: 0=Successful	TRXIDR	Transmits an XID response frame with an I-field. trxidr(x <i>loc,xlen</i>) char *x <i>loc;</i> Location in memory int x <i>len;</i> Length Calls and returns the value returned by: trans(XIDR,xloc,xlen)
	1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Link not established 5=Time out trxcni if an XID command with <i>len=</i> 0 trxrni if an XID response with <i>len=</i> 0	TRXRNI	Transmits an XID response frame without an I—field. int trxrni() Returns: 0=Successful 1=Time out
TRANSMIT	Transmits number of bytes in <i>length</i> , starting at address in <i>packet</i> . int transmit(<i>packet</i> , <i>length</i>) char * <i>packet</i> ; int <i>length</i> ; Calls and returns the value returned by: trans(IFRAME,packet, length)		

SDLC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

SDLC LIE INITP1	Initializes P1 and loads software. Initializes P1 and loads software. Int initp1(type1,type2,encode,bitrate) int type1; 0=DCE 1=DTE 2=ISDN int type2; 0=Primary 1=Secondary int encode; 0=NRZ 1=NRZI unsigned logo, bitrate; 50 = 64000	SLOF	Disconnects link. int slof() Returns: 5=Not a primary station Establishes link by sending a SABM. int slon() Returns: 5=Not a primary station
	Returns: 0=Successful -1=Invalid parameter(s) -2=P1 program not loaded	STATUS	Indicates status of frame level. int status() Chameleon 32 as Primary returns: 0=Normal disconnected mode 1=Link request state
RECEIVE	Receives a frame from P1 and places it at address in <i>packet</i> . char receive (<i>packet</i>) char * <i>packet</i> ; Returns: 0=Successful 1=Link not established 2=initp1 not performed		2=Disconnect request state 3=Information Transfer state 4=Local station busy 5=Remote station busy 6=Local & remote stations busy Chameleon 32 as Secondary returns: 0=Normal disconnected mode 1=Initialization mode
SET_ADR	Sets transmit and receive address int set_adr(<i>val</i>) char <i>val;</i> Range: 0 – 255 Returns: 0=Successful		2=Frame reject 3=Information Transfer 4=Local station busy 5=Remote station busy 6=Local & remote stations busy
-1=Parame	eter error	TRANSMIT	Transmits I-frame with I-field of <i>length</i> ,
SET_N2	Sets N2 (number of retransmissions). int set_n2(val) int val; Range: 1 – 255 Returns: 0=Successful -1=val outside of range 5=Not a primary station		starting at address in packet. int transmit(packet, length) char *packet; int length; Returns: 0=Successful 1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Link not established 4=Length = ret (it length = 510)
SET_T1	Sets T1 timer. int set_t1(val) int val; Range: 1 – 255 Returns: 0=Successful -1=val outside of range 5=Not a primary station	TRNSI	Transmits a non-sequenced L-frame with L-field of <i>length</i> , starting at address in <i>packet</i> . int trns <i>i</i> (<i>packet</i> , <i>length</i>) char * <i>packet</i> ; int <i>length</i> ; Returns:
SET_T2	Sets T2 frame level timer. int set_t2(val) int val; Range: 0 – 255 Returns: 0=Successful -1=val outside of range 5=Not a primary station		u=Successful 1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Link not established 4=Length error (if length > 510)

SDLC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS - CONTINUED

	•		
TRSIFR	Transmits a sequenced I-frame with I-field of <i>length</i> , starting at address in <i>packet</i> int trsifr(<i>packet</i> , <i>length</i>) char <i>*packet</i> ; int <i>length</i> ; Returns: 0=Successful 1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Link not established 4=Length error (if length > 510)	TRUI	Transmits an unnumbered I-frame with I-field of <i>length</i> , starting at address in <i>packet</i> . int trui (<i>packet</i> , <i>length</i>) char * <i>packet</i> ; int <i>length</i> ; Returns: 0=Successful 1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Link not established 4=Length error (if length > 510)
TRTST	Transmits a test frame with I-field of length, starting at address in packet. int trtst (packet, length) char *packet; int length; Returns: 0=Successful 1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Link not established 4=illegal frame (if secondary) 5=Not a primary station	XID	Transmits an XID frame containing the data in the externally available character array <i>ident[</i>]. extern char ident[]; /* 6 bytes */ char xid(); Returns: 0=Successful 1=P1 not initialized 2=P1 fails to respond 3=Not in normal response mode 4=Illegal frame (if secondary)

BASIC RATE INTERFACE LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

FILENAME:	libbri.a						
SetBasic	int_SetBasic(cmdblock, resblock); int cmdblock [5]; int resblock [5];						
	The error codes for resblock[0] for all Basic Rate Library commands and are lis						
	resblock [0] Meaning			ng			
	00 01 02 03 04 05 10		Succes Hardwa Reques Reques Invalid Basic F	ssful are has a sted fund sted char sted fund comman Rate Inter	lirea nnel tion d oi ríac	dy been set up is not available for this configuration is invalid (for B1, B2 and D) is not available for this channel request e board is not installed	
Setup	·	cmdblo cmdblo	ock[0] = ock[1]	1 (Board mode	1 0) 1 2 3	or cmdblock[0] = 101 (Board 1) Monitor Simulate NT Simulate TE	
		resbio	ск[1]	Keturns	cur	rent mode, if unsuccessful	
Reactiv	vate	cmdblo Argum	ock[0] = ent	2 (Board None	10)	or cmdblock[0] = 102 (Board 1)	
Reset		cmdblo Argum	ock[0] = ent	3 (Board None	10)	or crndblock[0] = 103 (Board 1)	
Chann Functio	ei ons	cmdbio cmdbio	ock[0] = ock[1]	4 (Board mode (10) 0	or cmdblock[0] = 104 (Board 1) If request conflicts with current setup, do not override.	
		cmdbk	xk[2]	channel	1	1 B1 channel 2 B2 channel 3 D channel	
		cmdble	ock[3]	selectio	n	1 System 2 Milliwatt 3 Codec 4 External interface 5 Idle	
	resbl resbl	resblo resblo	ck[1] ck[2]	channel selectio	las nas	defined above (If resblock[0] 0) defined above (If resblock[0] 0)	
Signal Function	ons	cmdble cmdble	cck[0] = cck[1]	5 (Board For NT	10) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	or cmdblock[0] = 105 (Board 1) Deactivate request Send info-2 Send info-4 Activate NT Reserved Send single pulses Send continuous pulses Send info-2, test loop 2 Send info-4, test loop 2	
				For TE	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Deactivate Activate at priority 8 Activate at priority 10 Activate TE Reserved Reserved Reset PEB 2080 Send single pulses Send continuous pulses Activate test loop 3	

BASIC RATE INTERFACE LIBRARY FUNCTIONS - CONTINUED

Get Status	cmdblock[0] = Argument	6 (Board (None)) 01	r cmdblock[0] = 106 (Board 1)
	resblock[1]	Control by	yte r	eceived from PEB 2080.
	resblock[2] (If	Simulating 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	i an l No Los Rec Info Rec De: Uno	NT): clock signal st signal level ceiver not synchronous or p–1 received ceiver synchronized acitvation complete defined
	resblock[2] (If	Simulating 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	a Ti Pov Dei Slip Dis Ern Re: Info Tes Lev Info Qui	E): wer up activate request o detected connected or synchronizing >-2 received st mode vel received during test loop >-4 received, D channel priority 8 or 9 >-4 received, D channel priority 10 or 11 iescent state defined
	If in Monitor m	node:		
	resblock[1] resblock[2] resblock[3]	Control by Same as Same as	yte ro resb resb	eceived from PEB 2080. lock[2] from NT lock[2] from TE
Select Trace Option	cmdblock[0] = cmdblock[1]	9 (Board (0 1 2) oni Tur Coi Dei	y) rns off the trace mmand/result display tailed trace
NT Power	cmdblock[0] = cmdblock[1]	⊧10 mode	1 2 3 4 5	Power source 1 (normal conditions) Power source 1 (emergency conditions) Power source 2 (normal conditions) Power source 2 (emergency conditions) Off
Bas_version	This function char *Bas_ve	returns the ersion()	CUIT	ent version of the BRI library.

-79-

2B1Q U-INTERFACE C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

FILENAME: libu.a SetU int SetU(cmdblock, resblock); char cmdblock []; char resblock [];	
The error codes for resblock [0] for all U-Interface Library commands are listed be	elow.
resblock [0] Meaning	
00Successful01Invalid command02Invalid command parameters03Requested board is not responding04U-board physical error05U-board interface is not initialized06Requested board is not installed	
Initialize cmdblock[1] = 0 (Board 0) or cmdblock [1] = 100 (Board 1)	
Configure cmdblock[0] = 1 (Board 0) or cmdblock [0] = 101 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] mode 1 Monitor 2 Simulate NT 3 Simulate TE	
resblock[1] Returns current mode, if unsuccessful	
Set	
Transceiver State cmdblock[0] = 2 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 102 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr	
cmdblock[2] = Xcvr State 1 = Reset 2 = Power down 3 = Absolute 4 = Normal	
Get	
State cmdblock[0] = 3 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 103 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr	
cmdblock[2] = Xcvr State 1 = Reset 2 = Power down 3 = Absolute 4 = NormalSet	
Transceiver	
Activation cmdblock[0] = 4 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 104 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = 1T Xcvr	
cmdblock[2] = Xcvr State 1 = Start activation 2 = Start deactivation	
Get Transceiver Connection cmdblock[0] = 5 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 105 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr	
resblock[0] = See Error Code resblock[1] = Xcvr Connection 0 = None 1 = Port A 2 = Port B 3 = Ports A and B	

2B1Q U-INTERFACE C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS (continued)

	Set	
	Transceiver Errors	cmdblock[0] = 6 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 106 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr
	Get Transcei Errors	ver cmdblock[0] = 7 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 107 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr
		resblock[0]=See Error Codesresblock[1-4]=32-bit FEBE count. MSBs followed by LSBs.resblock[5-8]=32-bit NEBE count. MSBs followed by LSBs.resblock[9-12]=32-bit NoSyn count. MSBs followed by LSBs.resblock[13-16]=32-bit NoAct count. MSBs followed by LSBs.
	Get HW Version	cmdblock[0] = 8 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 108 (Board 1) resblock[0] = See Error Codes resblock[1] = NT xcvr version number. resblock[2] = LT xcvr version number.
·	Get Link Status	cmdblock[0] = 9 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 109 (Board 1) resblock[0] = See Error Codes resblock[1] = NT link status
		bit 0 = link up bit 1 = superframe sync recognized bit 2 = Xcvr activation in progress bit 3 = error indicator
		bit 0 = link up bit 1 = superframe sync recognized bit 2 = Xcvr activation in progress bit 3 = error indicator
	Transceiver Transmit	cmdblock[0] = 11 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 111 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr
		cmdblock[2] = Channel specifier 1 = EOC 2 = M4 3 = M5/M6
		cmdblock[3] = EOC address, EOC DM bit cmdblock[4] = EOC information cmdblock[5] = M4 information cmdblock[6] = M5/M6 information
·	Transceiver Receive	cmdblock[0] = 12 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 112 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr
		resblock[0] = See Error Codes resblock[1] = Message Length 0 = No data available 1 = 6 data bytes follow 2 = M4 3 = M5/M6

2B1Q U-INTERFACE C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS (continued)

resblock[2] = EOC address, EOC DM bit resblock[3] **EOC** information # resblock[4] = EOC address, EOC DM bit resblock[3] = EOC information resblock[6] = M4 information resblock[7] = M5/M6 information EOC Processing cmdblock[0] = 13 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 113 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr = LT Xcvr 1 cmdblock[2] = Automatic processing mode 1 = No actionOperate 2B + D Loopback 2 = 3 = Operate B1 Loopback Operate B2 Loopback 4 -5 = Send corrupted CRC 6 Return to Normal -EOC Mode Control cmdblock[0] = 14 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 114 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr cmdblock[2] = EOC Reception mode = No action 1 2 Handle every EOC = Handle EOC passing trinal checks 3 # Handle EOC passing trinal checks 4 with automatic EOC processing M4 Mode Control cmdblock[0] = 15 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 115 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr = LT Xcvr 1 cmdblock[2] = M4 Reception mode No action 0 = Handle dual-consecutive M4 with 1 verified act/dea 2 Handle dual-consecutive M4 3 Handle Delta M4 Ξ 4 = Handle every M4 M5/6 Mode Control cmdblock[0] = 16 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 116 (Board 1) cmdblock[1] = Xcvr specifier 0 = NT Xcvr 1 = LT Xcvr cmdblock[2] = M4 Reception mode 0 = No action 1 = Handle dual-consecutive M5/6 = Handle Deita M5/6 3 4 Handle every M5/6 = Shutdown cmdblock[0] = 30 (Board 0) or cmdblock[0] = 130 (Board 1)

BSC C LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

BSC LIBRARY FILENAME: libbsc.a	
BSC LIBRARY FILENAME: libbsc.a IDLE_MODE Specifies the character to be transmitted while the line is idle. #include <chamh> int idle_mode(mode) int mode; IDLE or 0 FF is transmitted SYNC or 1 SYN is transmitted SYNC or 1 SYN is transmitted INITP1 Initializes P1. Loads simulation software. int initp1(type,encode, bitrate,crc, data) int type; 0=DCE 1=DTE int data; 0x10 EBCDIC data 0x04 0x01 ASCII (no parity) 0x00 ASCII (odd parity) 0x00 ASCII (odd parity) struct control encode Defines the control characters for BSC, as follows: struct control { unsigned char eot; unsigned char syn; unsigned char syn; unsigned char syn;</chamh>	 TREADY Returns status of P1 transmitter. int tready() Returns: 0=Transmitter ready 1=Transmitter not ready 2=initp1 not performed 3=Overflow TRANSMIT Transmits number of bytes in <i>length</i>, starting at address pointed to by *<i>frame</i>, with the control characters and BCC as specified by <i>mode</i>. <i>Mode</i> is bit encoded as shown in the figure below. <i>int transmit</i>(mode, frame, length) char *<i>frame</i>; <i>int</i> length; char <i>mode</i>; Returns: 0=Successful 1=P1 busy 2=initp1 not performed 3=Parameter error 4=Buffer overflow
unsigned char stx; unsigned char etx; unsigned char etx; unsigned char etb; unsigned char itb; unsigned char enq; }; unsigned long <i>bitrate</i> ; 50 – 64000 char <i>crc</i> ; 0=CRC16 1=CCITT-CRC Returns: 0=Successful -1=Invalid parameter(s) -2=P1 program not loaded RECEIVE Receives a frame from P1 and places it at address in <i>frame</i> . char receive (<i>frame</i>) char * <i>frame</i> ; Returns: 0=Good BCC or no frame waiting 1=Bad BCC 2=initp1 not performed 3=Overflow	BIT 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 Start Framing Character O=SOF 1=STX End Framing Character O0=EOT O1=ETB 10=ETX 11=illegai Transparent Text Enable O=Normal Text 1=Transparent Mode O=Transparent mode 0 1=Transparent mode 1 Text Mode O=Control Mode 1=Text Mode D=Control Mode 1=Text Mode O=Good BCC 1=Bad BCC Reserved (must be 1)

C PRIMARY RATE INTERFACE LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

FILENAME:	libpri.a	L					
SetPrimary	int Set int cmd int resb	Primary block [1 lock [14	(cmdblock, res 4];];	block);			
	The err	or code	s for resblock[0] for all Prim	ary Rate Interfa	ace Library commands are:	
	resbloc	k[0]	Meaning				
	0 1 2 3 4 5 10		Successful Primary Rate I Setup already Invalid channe Selection alrea Channel alrea Command not	Interface boa done ol number/tim ady in use dy assigned implemented	rd is not installe e slot d	əd	
Setup	cmdblo cmdblo cmdblo	ck(0) = ck(1) ck(2)	1 (Board A) or mode 1 M 2 Si framing 1	cmdblock[0] onitor mulate D4	= 101 (Board I	B)	
			2 3 4	ESF SL96 CEPT			
	cmdblo cmdblo *cmdbl *cmdbl	ick[3] ick[4] ock[5] ock[6]	idle data idle signal DS0x receive Codec receive) 	8 bit value 2 or 4 bit value Channel/time Channel/time	e slot slot	
	*cmdbi *cmdbi *cmdbi *cmdbi cmdbio	ock[7] ock[8] ock[9] ock[10] ick[11]	Codec transm Milliwatt transm Status line 1 Status line 2	itter mitter on on	Channel/time Channel/time Channel/time byte (See Sei byte (See Sei	slot slot (Ignored in Monitor mode) slot (Ignored in Monitor mode) tup byte interpretation on next page. tup byte interpretation on next page.	.) .)
	۰ ۸	vailable	for line 1 only	•			
Resynd	chronize	emdb Argur	lock[0] = 2 (Bo nent Nor	ard A) or cm	dblock[0] = 102	2 (Board B)	
Reset Argum	ent	cmdblo None	ck[0] = 3 (Boa	rd A) or cmd	block[0] = 103	(Board B)	
Chann Functio	el ons	cmdblo cmdblo	ck[0] = 4 (Boa ck[1] <i>mode</i>	rd A) or cmd 0 lf requ 1 lf re setu	block[0] = 104 lest conflicts wit quest conflicts	(Board B) In current setup, retain current setup with current setup, override currer	o. nt
		cmdblc	ck[2] <i>select</i>	ion 1 DS0 2 Cod 3 DS0 4 DS0 5 Cod 6 Millin 7 Res 8 Res 9 Idle 10 Idle	P: Ix receive ec receive ly transmit ec transmit ec transmit et transmit char et receive chan data signal	nnel	
		cmdblc	ck[3] <i>chann</i>	el (if cmdbloc 1 - 24 D 1 - 31 C	: <i>k[2]=1 - 8)</i> 4/ESF line 1 ERT ine 1		
		cmdblc	ck[3] <i>idle bl</i> i	s (if cmdbloc 8, 4, 2, b	k[2]=9 — 10) its		

C PRIMARY RATE INTERFACE LIBRARY FUNCTIONS - CONTINUED



ASYNC LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE

ASYNC LIBRARY FILENAME: libasc.a INITP1 Initializes P1 and loads simulation	RECEIVE Receives a block or character from P1
software. int initp1(type, encode)	and places it at address pointed to by
int type; 0=DCE	frame.
1=DTE	char *frame;
struct ASC_CTRL *encode	Returns:
struct ASC_CTRL	0=Good BCC or no frame waiting
int bitrate:	2=initp1 not performed
int parity;	3=Overflow
int stop;	TRREAK Transmite a brook cogurano
int duplex:	int tbreak()
int block;	
→ int eob;	TRANSMIT Transmits number of bytes in <i>length</i> ,
};	with the control characters and BCC as
<i>bitrate</i> 1 50 7 1200	specified by mode.
3 110 9 4800	int transmit(frame, length)
4 150 10 9600	int length;
6 600 11 19200	Returns:
nority O Noro	1=P1 busv
1 Odd	2=initp1 not performed
2 Even	3-Parameter error
stop 0 1 Stop bit	
1 1.5 Stop bits 2 2 Stop bits	TREADY Returns status of P1 transmitter.
data 5 5 Data hite	Returns:
6 6 Data bits	0=Transmitter ready
7 7 Data bits	2=initp1 not performed
8 8 Data bits	3=Overflow
<i>duplex</i> 0 Full duplex 1 Half duplex	
block 0 Block mode 1 Character mode	
eob (End of block character): 0-0xFF	
Returns: 0=Successful -1=Invalid parameter(s)	
-2=P1 program not loaded -3≖Port is busy	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

C ANALYSIS LIBRARY FUNCTIONS

```
FILENAME: libanal.a
init anal
             This function initializes the hardware and loads the analysis software.
            int init anal(port, protocol, par)
            int port, protocol;
            union PARBLOCK *par;
                       0
            Port
                           Port A
                           Port B
                       1
                           Port A and B
                       2
             Protocol
                       1
                           BOP
                           ISDN
                       2
                       7
                           Async
                       8
                           BSC
            Par:
             union PARBLOCK {
                                        /* BOP parameter block */
                       struct {
                           unsigned short nrz:
                       } pbop;
                       struct {
                                           /* Bisync parameter block */
                           unsigned short table;
                           unsigned short bsc;
                           charsync1;
                           charsync2;
                           unsigned short parity;
                       }pbisync;
                       struct {
                                          /* Async parameter block */
                           unsigned short baud:
                           unsigned short parity;
                           unsigned short databit;
                       }pasync;
            );
            BOP and
             ISDN
                       If Protocol = 1 (BOP) or 2 (ISDN), the following parameter must be initialized:
                                                 NRZ
                       par->pbop.encode
                                             0
                                                 NRZI
                                             1
             ASYNC
                       If Protocol = 7 (Async), the following three parameters must be initialized:
                       par->pasync.baud2
                                             75
                                                 baud rate
                                             3
                                                 110
                                             5
                                                 300
                                             6
                                                 600
                                             7
                                                 1200
                                             8
                                                 2400
                                                 4800
                                             9
                                                 9600
                                             10
                                                 19200
                                             11
                                             0
                                                 None
                       par->pasync.parity
                                             1
                                                 Odd
                                             2
                                                 Even
                                            5
                                                 5 data bit
                       par->pasync.databit
                                                 6 data bits
                                             6
                                                 7 data bits
                                             7
                                             8
                                                 8 data bits
```

C ANALYSIS LIBRARY FUNCTIONS - CONTINUED

BSC If Protocol=8 (BSC), the following parameters must be initialized: ASCII par->pbsync.table EBCDIC par->pbsync.bcc a CRC16 LRC CCITT par->pbsync.sync1 Range: 0-0xff par->pbsync.sync2 Range: 0-0xff AND if par->pbsync.table is initialized to ASCII the following parameter must also be initialized: par->pbsync.parity 0 None Odd 2 Even Returns 0 Successful Parameter error Dual ports not available Cannot load analysis files. Simulation is running -5 Port is busy getevent This function gets an event from the line, if available. Event is a special data type definition which is defined in a;\include\cham.h. It is defined as follows: typedef struct { Bit-mapped information element (see figure below) 7/ unsigned short type; /*event.type unsigned short length; /*event.length The length of the data */ /*event.buflen Data buffer length*/ unsigned short buflen; unsigned char *pdata; /*event.pdata Data buffer address that points to the frame*/ long seconds; /*event.secondsNumber of seconds since midnight or noon*/ long ms20; /*event.ms20 Number of 20 microseconds since the second*/ unsigned short special; /*event.special. If a baud rate event, the baud rate change event contains the new baud rate value. If a lead transition event, the bits indicate the lead states. unsigned short crc; /*event.crc The crc of the frame*/ unsigned short flags; /*event.flags For BOP only, contains the number of flags*/ event; #include <cham.h> int getevent(pevent) event *pevent; Returns 0 Si Successful No new events Data overwitten (buffer wrapped) --2 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 - 21 0 DCE/ FCS Abort Data Port AM/PM Reserved DTE 0 = Good 1 = Bad **Binary Meaning** 0 = Port A 1 = Port B 000 Meaning 001 Lead Transition 0 = Good010 Async character 1 = Abort011 **Baud Rate BOP** Data 100 101 Reserved 0 = DTE110 **Bisync Data** 1 = DCE111 Reserved reset_anal Resets the acquisition processor. int reset_anal()

MULTI-LINK LAPD LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE

MULTI-LINK I	APD LIBRARY Filename; libmlapd.a		
find_link	Returns the number of the lowest link matching the SAPI/TEI/TGE value specified. int find_link(sapi,tei,tgi) int sapi, tei, tgi; Returns: 0 = 63 Matching link number	get_rntei	Dummy function to maintain compatibility with single link LAPD programs that are being upgraded to Multi–Link LAPD. int get_rntei (val) int val;
get_freelink	-1 No match found Gets the number of first disabled link. int get_freelink() Returns: 0-63 Disabled link number -1 No free links -2 initp1 not performed	get_rsapi	Dummy function to maintain compatibility with the existing single link LAPD programs that are being upgraded to Multi-Link LAPD. int get_rsapi (val) int val;
get_fwaiting	Gets the number of \vdash -frames waiting to be transmitted on the link. int get_fwaiting (lnkn) char lnkn; $0-63$ Returns: $0-7$ No. of \vdash -frames	get_rxstat	Gets the low order byte of the frame status byte frstat for the last received message. char get_rxstat() Returns:
get_link	Gets the number of the link currently under user control. int get_link() Returns:		0-0xC3 frstat value 0xFF No messages recd 0xFE initp1 not performed
get_inksapi	0-63 Current link no. -1 initp1 not performed Gets the SAPI value for linkn. int get Inksapi (Inkn)	get_sapi	Gets the SAP1 value of the link currently under user control. int get_sapi() Returns: 0-255 SAPI value
	char Inkn; 0 – 63 Returns: 0 – 63 SAPI value > 63 Disabling SAPI value	get_sconfig	Returns a copy of the current control configuration byte. int get_sconfig ()
get_Inktei	Gets the TEI value for link lnkn. int get_Inktei (Inkn) char lnkn; 0 - 63 Returns: 0 - 127 TEI value > 127 DisablingTEI value	get_sim	Returns a copy of of the network/ subscriber selection. int get_sim () Returns: 0 Network 1 Subscriber
get_Inktgi	Gets the TGI value for link lnkn. int get_inktgi (inkn) char lnkn; 0 – 63 Returns: 0 – 14 TGI value	get_tei	Gets the TEI of the link currently under user control. int get_tei() Returns: 0-255 TEI value
get_meswaiti	15–255 Disabling TGI value Gets no. of messages waiting to be received from the FEP. Int get_meswaiting () Returns: 0 – 32 No. of msgs.	get_tgi	Gets the TGI of the link currently under user control. int get_tgi() Returns: 0-14 TGI value 15-255 Disabling TGI value
get_rlink	Gets the number of the link which sent the last received message. int get_rlink() Returns: 0-63 Current link no. -1 No messages rec'd -2 initp1 not performed	get_window	Gets the number of outstanding Inframes on link number lnkn. int get_window (lnkn) char lnkn; 0-63 phoneReturns: 0-7 No. of I-frames

MULTI-LINK LAPD LIBRARY (CONTINUED)

initp1	initp1 loads the Front End Process (FEP) code for the selected library and starts simulation. This is the same as the start_sim function, but is included for downward compatibility with the single link LAPD library. int initp1 (interface, sta, encode, bitrt) int interface, sta, encode; long bitrt:	set_link Puts link n under user control. Only one link at a time can be under user control. int set_link(n) char n; 0 - 63 Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error -2 initp1 not performed -3 Timeout
link_stat	interface 0 V-type interface (DCE) 1 V-type interface (DTE) 2 ISDN interface sta 0 Network 1 Subscriber encode 0 NRZ 1 NRZI bitrt 50 - 64000 Gets the current state of link n. int link_stat(n) char n; 0 - 63 Returns: 0 - 9 Current state 0 Link Disconnected	<pre>set_net Coest simulation side to network. int set_net () set_rntei This is a dummy function to maintain com- patibility with existing LAPD link programs that are being upgraded to Multi-Link LAPD. int set_rntei (val, tei) int val, tei; set_rsapi This is a dummy function to maintain com- patibility with existing LAPD programs that are being upgraded to Multi-Link LAPD. int set_rsapi (val, sapi) int val, sapi; This is a dummy function to maintain com- patibility with existing LAPD programs that are being upgraded to Multi-Link LAPD. int set_rsapi (val, sapi) int val, sapi;</pre>
	 Link Connection Requested Frame Rejected Disconnect Requested Information Transfer Local Station Busy Remote Station Busy Local & Remote Station Busy Remote Station Busy Remote Station Busy Local & Remote Station Busy 	set_sapi Sets the SAPI value for the link under user control. int set_sapi(v) char v; Accepted range of v is 0 – 255. A value over 63 will disable the selected link. Beturns: 0 Successful
receive	Receives a message from the FEP int receive(dest_addr) char *dest_addr;	-1 Parameter out of range -2 initp1 not performed -3 Timeout
s_n200	Sets maximum number of retries (N200). int s_n200 (val) int val; 1 - 255 Returns: 0 Successful	int byte; Returns: 0 Successful
s_n201	Sets maximum length of an l-frame (N201). int s_n201 (val) int val; 1-512 Returns: 0 Successful	set_sub Set the simulation side to Subscriber. int set_sub () set_tei Sets the TEI value for the link under user control. int set_tai(u)
s_t200	Sets the time allowed for the remote station to respond (T200). Setting this value to 0 disables the T200 timer. int s_t200 (val) int val; 0 - 255 Returns: 0 Successful	char v; 0 to 255 > 127 diables link Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error -2 initp1 not performed -3 Timeout
s_t203	Sets the maximum time between frames (T203). Setting this value to 0 disables the T203 timer. int s_t203 (val) int val; 0 - 255 Returns: 0 Successful	

MULTI-LINK LAPD LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE (CONTINUED)

set_tgi set_wind	Sets the TGI value for the link under user control. int set_tgi(v) char v; 0 to 14 TGI value 15-255 Diables use of TGI Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error -2 initp1 not performed -3 Timeout ow Sets the maximum number of outstanding frames on each link. int set_window (val) int val; 1-7 Returns: 0 Successful Selects an interframe fill pattern. int setfig (flag) int flag; 0 0x7E fill 1 0xFF fill Returns: 0 Successful	trans	Transmits a frame. int trans (frame,address,len) int frame, len; char *address; frame selects type of frame to transmit: 0x80 Iframe Sequenced Iframe 0x81 UI Unnumbered Iframe (NSI) 0x82 XIDC XID command frame 0x83 XIDR XID response frame address is a pointer to the first byte of the message. Ien is the length of the message to be transmitted. Returns: 0 Successful int transmit (xloc, xlen) char *xloc; int xlen; xloc is a pointer to the first byte of the mes- sage. xlen is the length of the message to be transmitted. Returns: 0 Successful
slof	Disconnects the link. int slof ()	trui	Transmit a message in an unnumbered I- frame (UI frame). int trui (xloc, xlen)
slon	Returns: 0 Successful Attempts to establish a link. int slon () Beturns: 0 Successful		char *xloc; int xlen; xloc is a pointer to the first byte of the mes- sage. xlen is the length of the message to
srch_ink	Returns: 0 Guccessiul Returns the number of lowest link matching the specified SAPI/TEI. int srch_Ink(sapi,tei) Returns: 0 – 63 No. of lowest link –1 No match found	trxcni	be transmitted. Returns: 0 Successful Transmits an XID command frame with no data field. int trxcni ()
start_sim	start_sim loads the Front End Process (FEP) code for the selected library and starts simulation. (Identical to initp1 function.) int start_sim (interface, sta, encode, bitrt) int interface, sta, encode; long bitr; interface 0 V-type interface (DCE) 1 V-type interface (DCE) 2 ISDN interface sta 0 NETWORK	trxidc trxidr	Transmits a message in an XID command frame. Int trxidc (xloc, xlen) char *xloc; int xlen; xloc is a pointer to the first byte of the mes- sage. xlen is the length of the message to be transmitted. Transmit a message in an XID response frame.
status	1 SUBSCRIBER encode 0 NRZ 1 NRZI bitrt 50 – 64000 Gets the current state of link under		Int trxidr (xloc, xlen) char *xloc; xloc is a pointer to the first byte of the mes- sage. xlen is the length of the message to be transmitted. Returns: 0 Successful
	int status() Returns: 0 – 9 Current state (see link_state table on pre- vious page)	trxrni	Transmits an XID response frame with no data field. int trxrni() Returns: 0 Successful

V.120 LIBRARY

.

7

V.120 LIBRARY Filename: libv120.a	GET_WINDOW Gets the number of outstanding - frames on link number lnkn.
int get_freelink() Returns:	int get_window (lnkn) char lnkn; 0 – 63 Batuma: 0 – 7 Na. af L. framon
0 – 63 Disabled link number –1 No free links	INITP1 Starts the simulator (same as start sim).
-2 initp1 not performed GET_FWAITING Gets the number of I-frames wait- ing to be transmitted on link. int get_fwaiting (lnkn) char lnkn; 0 - 63	int initp1 (interface, sta, encode, bitrt) int interface, sta, encode; long bitrt; interface 0 V-type interface (DCE) 1 V-type interface (DCE)
GET_LINK() Gets the number of the link cur- rently under user control.	2 ISDN interface sta 0 NETWORK 1 SUBSCRIBER
Returns:	encode 0 NRZ
GET_LLI() Gets the LLI of the link currently	bitrt 50 – 64000
under user control. int get_IIi() Returns: 0 – 63 Current link number	LINK_STAT Gets the current state of link n. int link_stat(n) char n; 0 - 63
GET_LNKLLI Gets the LLI value for link lnkn. int get_InkIIi (lnkn) char lnkn; 0 – 63 Returns	0 Link Disconnected 1 Link Connection Requested 2 Frame Rejected 3 Disconnect Reguested
0-0x1fff LLI value >0x1fff Link Inkn is disabled GET_MESWAITING Gets no. of messages wait-	4 Information Transfer 5 Local Station Busy 6 Remote Station Busy
FEP. int get_meswaiting () Returns:	 7 Local & Remote Station Busy 8 Remote Stn not Responding 9 Link Disabled
0 – 32 No. of messages GET_RLINK() Gets the number of the link which sent the last received message.	RECEIVE Receives a message from the FEP int receive(dest_addr) char *dest_addr;
GET_RXSTAT() Gets the low order byte of the	S_N200 Sets the maximum number of retries (N200). int s_n200 (val) int val; 1 - 255 Beturns: 0 Successful
int get_rxstat() Returns: 0-0xC3 frstat value	S_N201 Sets the maximum length for an ⊢frame (N201). int s_n201 (val) int val; 1 – 512
OXFF No messages reco OXFE initp1 not performed GET_SCONFIG ()Returns a copy of the current con- trol configuration byte. int get_sconfig ()	S_T200 Sets the time allowed for the remote station to respond (T200). Setting this value to 0 disables the T200 timer. int s_t200 (val)
	int val; 0 - 255 Returns: 0 Successful

V.120 LIBRARY (CONTINUED)

S_T203 Sets the maximum time between	START_SIM Starts the simulator (same as initp1).
frames (T203). Setting this value to 0	n=start_sim (interface, sta,
disables the T203 timer.	encode, bitrt)
int s_t203 (val)	int n, interface, sta, encode;
int val; 0 - 255	long bitrt;
Returns: 0 Successful	interface 0 V-type (DCE)
SET SCONFIG Sets the value of the control	1 V-type (DTE)
configuration byte int set_sconfig (byte) int byte; Returns: 0 Successful	2 ISDN interface sta 0 NETWORK 1 SUBSCRIBER encode 0 NRZ 1 NRZI
SET_LINK Puts link n under user control. int set_link(n) char n; 0 – 63 Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter out of range -2 initp1 not performed -3 Timeout	bitrt 50 – 64000 TRANS Transmits a frame. int trans (frame,address,len) frame selects type of frame to transmit: 0x80 ⊢frame Sequenced ⊢frame 0x81 UI Unnumbered ⊢frame (NSI)
SET_LLI Sets the LLI value for the link under user control. A value over 0x1FFF dis- ables the link. int set_lli(val) int val; 0x00 – 0xFFFF hex Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter out of range -2 initp1 not performed -3 Timeout	0x82 XIDC XID command frame 0x83 XIDR XID response frame address is a pointer to the first byte of the message. Ien is the length of the message. Returns: 0 Successful TRANSMIT Transmits a message in a se- quenced (numbered) I-frame. int transmit (xloc, xlen) char *xloc; int vlen:
SET_WINDOW Sets the maximum number of	TRANS_RESP Transmits a message in a
outstanding frames on each link.	sequencedI-frame response.
int set_window (val)	int trans_resp (xloc, xlen)
int val; 1 - 7	char *xloc;
Returns: 0 Successful	int xlen;
SETFLG Selects an interframe fill pattern.	TRUI Transmit a message in an unnumbered
int setfig (flag)	I-frame (UI frame).
int flag; 0 0x7E fill	int trui (xloc, xlen)
1 0xFF fill	char *xloc;
Returns: 0 Successful	int xlen;
SLOF () Sends a DISC and waits for a UA.	TRXCNI Transmits an XID command frame with
int slof ()	no data field.
Returns: 0 Successful	int trxcni ()
SLON() Sends a SABME and waits for a UA.	TRXIDC Transmits a message in an XID
int sion()	command frame.
Returns: 0 Successful	int trxidc (xloc, xlen)
SRCH_LNK Returns the number of lowest	char *xloc;
link matching the specified SAPI/TEL	int_xlen;
Returns: 0 – 63 Link no. –1 No match STATUS() Gets the current state of current link.	TRXIDR Transmit a message in an XID response frame. int trxidr (xloc, xlen) char *xloc;
Returns: 0 – 9	TRXRNI Transmits an XID response frame with no data field. int trxrni ()

MULTI-LINK HDLC LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE

MULTI-LI	NK HDLC LIBRARY Filename:	min flush Clears the receive buffer of the speci-
libmhdlc.	a	fied port.
flush	Clears the receive buffer of the current-	min_flush (port)
	ly selected port.	port 0 Port A
	TIUSTI () Beturns: None	1 Port B
flush_all	Clears the reception buffer of both ports. flush_all() Returns: None	mlh_receive Causes the Chameleon to check for a received packet. int mlh_receive (loc) char *loc;
init_a	Initializes Port A.	buffer.
	int init_a (interface, sta, encode, bitrt)	It sets the global variable rec_port, as follows:
	int interface, sta, encode;	0 No packet was received
	interface 0 DCE	1 Packet received from Port A
	1 DTE	Returns:
	2 ISDN	0 No packet in buffer
	Sta U Network	2 FEP not initialized
	encode 0 NRZ	128 Packet received
	1 NRZI	min_set_n1 Sets the N1 value for the speci-
	bitrt 50 to 64000 bps	int mlh_set_n1 (port,val)
	–1 Parameter error	int port, val;
init b	Initializes Port B.	1 Port B
	int init_b (interface, sta, encode,	val N1 value (1 to 512)
	bitit)	Returns: 0 Successful
	long bitrt;	
	interface 0 DCE	min_set_n2 Sets the N2 value for the speci- fied port
	2 ISDN	int mlh_set_n2 (port,val)
	sta 0 Network	int port, val;
	1 Subscriber	1 Port B
	encode 0 NRZ	val N2 value (1 to 512)
·	bitrt 50 to 64000 bps	Returns: 0 Successful
	Returns: 0 Successful	
	-1 Parameter error	a network
initp1	Initializes Ports A and B.	int mlh_set_net (port)
	bitrt)	int port, val;
	int interface, sta, encode;	1 Port B
	interface 0 DCE	Returns: 0 Successful
	1 DTE	mlh_set_t1 Sets the value of the T1 timer
	2 ISDN	int min set t1 (port val)
	1 Subscriber	int port, val;
	encode 0 NRZ	port 0 Port A
	1 NRZI	val T1 value (1 to 255)
	bitrt 50 to 64000 bps	Returns: 0 Successful
	-1 Parameter error	-1 Parameter error

MULTI-LINK HDLC LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE (CONTINUED)

mlh_set_t	for the sp int mlh_ int port,v port	Sets Seci set_ al; 0	the value of the T2 timer fied port. t2 (port,val) Port A Port B
	val Returns:	τ ₂	value (1 to 255) 0 Successful -1 Parameter error
mlh_slof	Disconne port. int mlh_ int port; port	ects siot 0 1	the link on the specified (port) Port A Port B
mlh_sion	Attempts cified poi int mlh_ int port; port	to e rt. slor 0 1	establish a link on the spe- n (port) Port A Port B
mih_statu	specified int mlh_ int port; port Returns: 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 busy	Retu por stat 0 1	Ims the link status of the t. us (port) Port A Port B Disconnected Link conn. requested Frame reject state Link disconn. req. Information xfer state Local station busy Remote station busy Local & remote station
mlh_set_	sub s a subscr int mih_ int port; port Returns: window s specified int mih_ int port val Returns:	Sets iber set 0 1 Sets poor set 0 1 Win	sthe specified port to act as _sub (port) Port A Port B 0 Successful the window size for the rt. _window (port,val) port,val; Port A Port B ndow size (1-7) 0 Successful -1 Parameter error

receive Checks the reception buffer of the spe- cified port for a received packet. Int receive (port,loc) char 'loc; int port; port 0 Receive from Port A 1 Receive from Port B loc A pointer to receive buffer. Returns: 0 No packet in buff- er 2 FEP not initialized 128 Packet received set_n1 Sets the N1 value for both ports. int set_n1 (val) int val; val N1 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_n2 Sets the N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as net- works. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mih_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user de- fined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following val- ues: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B	mih_tran	sTransmits a as determine tem set by a set_ratio fur int mlh_tran char *xloc; int xlen; xloc Po xlen Ler Returns:	data pa ed by t call to nction. ns (xlo inter to ngth of 0	acket on Port A or B the distribution pat- the set_pat or the c,xlen) the packet the packet Successful
Returns: 0 No packet in buff- er 2 FEP not initialized 128 Packet received set_n1 Sets the N1 value for both ports. int set_n1 (val) int val; val N1 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_n2 Sets the N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as net- works. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful Set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user de- fined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following val- ues: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B	receive	Checks the r cified port fo int receive (char *loc; int port; port 0 1 loc A p	eception r a rec port, lo Rece Rece	on buffer of the spe- eived packet. DC) ive from Port A ive from Port B to receive buffer.
er 2 FEP not initialized 128 Packet received set_n1 Sets the N1 value for both ports. int set_n1 (val) int val; val N1 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_n2 Sets the N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as net- works. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful Set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char 'pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user de- fined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following val- ues: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B		Returns:	0	No packet in buff-
<pre>set_n1 Sets the N1 value for both ports. int set_n1 (val) int val; val N1 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_n2 Sets the N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as net- works. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user de- fined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following val- ues: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B</pre>		er	2 128	FEP not initialized Packet received
val N1 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_n2 Sets the N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as networks. int set_net Returns: 0 set_net Returns: 0 set_net Returns: 0 set_net Returns: 0 set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user defined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following values: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B	set_n1	Sets the N1 int set_n1 (v int val:	value i val)	or both ports.
set_n2 Sets the N2 value for both ports. int set_n2 (val) int val; val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as net- works. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user de- fined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following val- ues: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B	-	va/ N1 Returns:	value 0 1	(1 to 512) Successful Parameter error
val N2 value (1 to 512) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error set_net Configures both ports to act as networks. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). Int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user defined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following values: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B	set_n2	Sets the N2 int set_n2 (v int val:	value i vai)	for both ports.
set_net Configures both ports to act as networks. int set_net Returns: 0 Successful set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr A pointer to a user defined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following values: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B		val N2 Returns:	value 0 1	(1 to 512) Successful Parameter error
Returns: 0 Successful set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user de- fined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following val- ues: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B	set_net	Configures I works. int set_net	both p	orts to act as net-
set_pat Specifies a user defined distribution pattern for transmitting packets using mlh_trans(). int set_pat (pat_ptr) char *pat_ptr; pat_ptr A pointer to a user defined table The distribution pattern is defined in a table which contains the following values: 0 End of table 1 Send on Port A 2 Send on Port B		Returns:	0	Successful
	set_pat	Specifies a pattern for tr mlh_trans(). int set_pat (char *pat_pt pat_ptr fined table The distribut table which o ues:	user (ransmi (pat_p r; A po ion par contair 0 1 2	defined distribution tting packets using tr) pinter to a user de- ttern is defined in a is the following val- End of table Send on Port A Send on Port B

MULTI-LINK HDLC LIBRARY QUICK REFERENCE (CONTINUED)

set_ratio	Selects a distribution pattern for trans- mitting packets using mlh_trans(). It specifies the percentage of packets to be transmitted over Port A. int set_ratio (pct_a) int pct_a; pct_a The percentage of pack- ots to be transmitted over	set_window identical int set_v int val; <i>val</i> Returns:	Sets the window size to an value for both ports. vindow (val) Window size (1 to 7) 0 Successful -1 Parameter error
	Port A. Valid values are 0 to 100 in increments of	slof Disconne int slof (ects the link on both ports .)
	10, and -1. For example:	sion Attempts ports by	to establish a link on both sending a SABM.
	mitted over both Ports A and B. 0 0% of the packets are transmitted over Port A. 10 10% of the packets are transmitted over Port A. Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error	status Returns selected int statu Returns: quested	() the link status of the currently port. s () 0 Disconnected 1 Link conn. re-
set_sub	Configures both ports to act as sub- scribers. int set_sub () Returns: 0 Successful	state	2 Frame reject 3 Link disconn. req. 4 Information xfer
set_t1	Sets the T1 timer to an identical value for both ports. int set_t1 (val) int val; val T1 value (1 to 255) Returns: 0 Successful	busy stations I t ransmit Transmit	5 Local station busy 6 Remote station 7 Local & remote busy s a packet over the specified
set_t2	-1 Parameter error Sets the T2 timer to an identical value for both ports. int set_t2 (val) int val; val T2 value (1 to 255) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Parameter error	port. int trans char po int <i>port</i> <i>xloc</i> <i>xlen</i> Returns:	mit (port,xloc,xlen) rt,*xloc; xlen; 0 Port A 1 Port B Pointer to the packet Length of the packet 0 Successful

APPLICATION PROGRAMMER'S INTERFACE C LIBRARY

Application Programmer's Interface C LIBRARY: Ibui.a

The Application Programmer's Interface C Library provides function which enable you to develop applications with pull-down menu interfaces. The library contains the functions and commands described below. For descriptions of the data structures used by the functions, refer to the Application Programmer's Interface manual.

addNewLin	ie Inserts	one line at a time to a list			
	selector. addNewLine SCRAREA	(s, str) *s;			
	s Pointer to s	scrolling area of a BOX-			
	*str Pointer to serted. Returns: Non	the string to be in-			
box_input	BOX_INPUT creates a list box of selections at run-time. See box_req for more information.				
box_req	The structure ty fine the box.	pe BOXREQ is used to de-			
cSToggle	Marks a specifie selector with a c cSToggle (s, SCRAREA	d position within a box or list character. n, mode, ch, ch1) *s:			
	int	n, mode:			
	char	ch, ch1;			
	S	A pointer to the scroll-			
	ing area within	a BOXREQ			
	ก่	Position within the box			
	mode (D Toggle I Set			
	ch	First marker character			
	ch1	Second marker char-			
	Returns:	0 Set to first marker, ch. 1 Set to second marker,			
	cht				
dsp_req	Displays text wit type DSPREQ i mation to be dis	hin a window. The structure s used to specify the infor- played.			
erase_field	Request to eras dow. This will and the associa	e a specific field from a win- erase both the description ted value.			
eraseb_rec	This request that from the screen this request is o	tan entire list box be erased . The structure required for f the type ERASEREQ.			
erasew ree	q This re	equests that a window be			
-	erased from the quired for this re ERQ.	screen. The structure re- equest is of the type ERAS-			
eraseEOS	This function en downward. It is pull down menu eraseEOS() Returns:	ases the screen from line 3 suseful in conjunction with logic. None			

fillBoxArea	This fi ing linked list I BOXREQ. This ly in the beginn box or list selec a call to userini fillBoxArea (BOXREQ byte req strlist containing the the list box Returns:	unction initializes the scroll- located within the structure smust be done once, typical- ing of the program, before a tor can be accessed through terface(). req, strlist) *req; *strlist[]; A pointer to BOXREQ Address of the array e strings to be entered in None
detBoxArea	n This f	unction allocates space to
<u> </u>	the scrolling a linked list is a needs to be re- function can be getBoxArea BOXREQ Returns:	rea of a list selector. The lso initialized. If the area -initialized at any point, this called again. (breq) *breq; None
getFileChoi	ce This fu The function re by the path for the specified e ence, the filena lector.	unction displays a list of files, aads the directory specified each occurence of a file with extension. For each occur- me is loaded into the list se-
	getFileChoic ext, bTitle, e	e (boxName, fPath, rrMsg, insFlag, inserts,
	BOXREQ	*boxName:
Ì	byte	*fPath;
	byte	*ext;
	oyte byte	°DHūθ; *errMsn
	int	insFlag
	byte	** inserts;
	int	fnum;
	BUXUUNF *boxName	A pointer to BOXREO
•	*fpath	Directory path
	*ext	File extension
	"DTitle	little string to be displayed
Į .	enney played at if not	files exist
	InsFlag	When set to TRUE, this in-
	serts the numb	er of lines specified in fnum
	into the list dox **inserts	A pointer to an array of
	strings to be ins	erted when insFlag = TRUE.
•	Otherwise set I	NIL.
	mum this is the oum	when instag is set to true, her of lines to be inserted
	*conf	A pointer to the BOXCONF
	structure.	
	Returns: contains exit in	The BOXCONF structure formation.

APPLICATION PROGRAMMER'S INTERFACE C LIBRARY

initUl input_rec	This function initializes the user inter- face. initUl() must be called before any other call is made to the interface. initUl (dsp, box, req, nw, nb) DISPLAY *dsp; BOX *box; WINDOWREQ *req; int nw; int nb; *dsp A pointer to the window ad- ministration area *box A pointer to the list box ad- ministration area *box A pointer to the list box ad- ministration area *req window initiation of ER- ROR_WINDOW (This is required) nw NUM_OF_WINDOWS nb NUM_OF_BOXES Returns: None. This command displays a sequence of fields to be edited. The following keys can be used during runtime operation to modify the field values. CTRL-N Go to the next field	rel_req This request is used to de-allocate the memory set aside for a window and re- leases the associated window number. This should be done when a window will not be used again. unMark This function removes all marks used to identify selections within a list box. unMark (s) SCRAREA *s; *s A scroll area within the box to be cleared Returns: None userInterface This function gives the user ac- cess to the user interface. Each library request or command is initiated through a call to this function. userInterface (req, conf, dsp, box) byte *req; byte *conf; DISPLAY *dsp; BOX *box: req A pointer to the structure containing the request type or event
	to modify the field values. CTRL-N Go to the next field CTRL-P Go to the previous field CTRL-I Insert mode (De- fault=overwrite) CTRL-D Delete to end of line CTRL-A Go to the beginning of the line CTRL-E Go to the end of the line RETURN Go to the next field Space Bar Toggle between preset values There are three types of structures required to initiate an INPUT_REQ. The INPREQ structure defines the lo- cation and color of parameters dis- played, the prompt text and other messages. The INPUT_FIELD_TYPE structure defines a field on the screen. To de- fine a sequence of fields, an array of these structures is declared. The last entry of this array is defined as {0, 0, 0, 0, 0,} or zero for all values. The FKEY_FIELD_TYPE structure defines the preset acceptable values for a field.	 Inter of the structure containing the request type or event box A pointer to the list box administration area The output is put in a structure of the type CONFIRM, where applicable. window_req The command WIN-DOW_REQ can be used to initialize a window which will display information or it can display a frame around an input request. The parameters for the WIN-DOW_REQ are incorporated into four structures: WINDOWREQ FIELD_DEF FIELD_SEQ

TASK COMMUNICATION C LIBRARY

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
TASK COMM	UNICATION C LIBRARY: libcom.a	com_crctimb Called by the control task to create the communication channels for the con-		
	net (int mont.	finclude "com h"		
MB_MESS str typedef str port type info len pdata The library pro com_chkmb	ucture: nuct { int port ; int type ; int into ; int len ; char 'pdata ; MB_MESS ; Origin or the destination of a message: PORT_A or PORT_B Type of message sent or received: CT_ERR error message CT_DATA data message CT_CMD command message CT_FLUSH flush the reception buffer User defined field when type= CT_ERR or type = CT_CMD Length of data if type=CM_DATA Pointer to the data received or sent. ovides the following functions: Checks for received messages. #include "com.h" int com_chkmb(pmess) MB_MESS 'pmess; pmess pointer to a MB_MESS struc- ture describing the received message. Within this structure, these items are required for all received messages: port For control tasks, indicates the port from which the message originated as: PORT_A or PORT_B type Type of message received: CT_ERR oCT_CMD oCT_DATA CT_ELUSH info User defined information if type =CT_ERR or type = CT_OATA. pdata Pointer to the data received if type = CT_DATA. Returns: 0 Message received -1 No message received -1 No message received	<pre>com_creation of an example control task. #include "com.h" int com_crctimb(np) int np; np Number of channels to the control task (1 or 2) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Insufficient sys. resources com_crpmb Called by the protocol tasks to create the communication channels for the pro- tocol tasks. #include "com.h" int com_crpmb(port,np) int port; int np; port Port where protocol task is going to run: PORT_A or PORT_B np Number of channels. It must be called by the control task prior to terminating. #include "com.h" int com_crpmb(port,np) int port; int np; port Port where protocol task is going to run: PORT_A or PORT_B np Number of channels to the control task (1 or 2) Returns: 0 Successful -1 Insufficient sys. resources com_dictimb Closes communication channels. It must be called by the control task prior to terminating. #include "com.h" void com_dictimb() Returns: None com_error Reports an error to the control task and is called by a protocol task. #include "com.h" void com_error(port,status) int port; int status; port Port where protocol task will run: PORT_A or PORT_B status User field that can be used to tell more about the er- ror to the control task. #include "com.h" void com_exit(port,lid) int port; long lid; port Port where protocol task to kill is running: PORT_A or PORT_B lid Loader ID returned by the tinction com start! </pre>		
		1		

TASK COMMUNICATION C LIBRARY (CONTINUED)

com_flush Flushes the reception channel and then sends a flush message to the protocol task. #include "com.h" void com_flush(port) int port ; port Port where the protocol task is running: PORT_A or PORT_B Returns: None com_dptr_Gets a pointer to the area containing	The remaining items of the structure are required depending on the type of message sent. For CT_ERR or CT_CMD, the field info needs to be filled. For CT_EXIT and CT_FLUSH, no additional fields are needed. For CT_DATA, the following fields are required: len Length of the data			
data to transmit #include "com.h" char *com_gptr(size) int size ; size Size of memory to allocate Returns: (char *)0 (NULL pointer) > 0L Value of pointer	pdata Pointer to the data Returns: 0 Message sent cor- rectly -1 Queue is full com_start! Loads and starts a protocol task. This function is called by the con- trol task. #include "com h"			
com_rel Releases memory allocated for data messages. #include "com.h" void com_rel(pframe) char *pframe ; pframe Pointer to the data received Returns: None	long com_startl(name,arg0,arg1,,0L) char *name ; char *arg0,*arg1, ; name pointer to name of file arg0 pointer to name of pro- gram			
com_setrdy Informs the control task that a protocol task is ready to receive a message. This function must be called by a protocol task during its initialization. #include by a protocol task during its initialization. #include "com.h" void com_setrdy(port) int port ; port Port on which the protocol task is running: PORT_A or PORT_B Returns: None	arg1 pointer to first parameter OL Ends list of parameters Returns: < 0 Loader error > 0 Loading and start- ing OK and loader ID value com_wrdy Causes control task to wait for the protocol task to be ready. #include "com.h" #include "mtosux.h" int com wrdy(port.delay)			
using a communication channel. This function is called by both the protocol tasks and the control task in order to communicate to each other. #include "com.h" void com_snd(pmess) MB_MESS *pmess ; pmess Pointer to the MB_MESS struc- ture containing the description of the message Within this structure, the following items are required: port For the control task, this is the destination task port. For the protocol task port, this is the port of the origin of the mes- sage. PORT_A PORT_B type Type of message to be sent	int com_wrdy(port,delay) int port ; long delay ; port Port on which the protocol task is running: PORT_A or PORT_B delay Maximum delay allowed by the control task,in the for- mat: time unit + number of units time units: MS, TMS, HMS SEC, MIN, HRS, DAY number of units: 0 – 255 Example: 30 + SEC Returns: 0 Already received from the protocol task -1 Timeout			

V.24 INTERFACE

The electrical characteristics of V.24 series plugs on the Chameleon conform to the CCITT V.28 Recommendation.

The V.24 series plugs have the following electrical specifications:

Line Receiver:

٠	Impedance:	6 <z<8(kohms)< th=""></z<8(kohms)<>
•	Max. Input Voltage	± 25 V
٠	Decision Threshold	± 3 V
Line Transmitter:		
•	Impedance:	< 100 ohms
۲	Output Voltage:	± 12 V

The connectors of the V.24 series are 25 pin socket connectors of the standard ISO DB 25.

V.24 PIN ASSIGNMENTS Monitoring Mode

.

. .

DB25 Pin No.	CCITT Circuit No.	EIA	Ground	Incoming	Out– going	Processed by Chameleon	RS232 NAME
1	101	AA	×	×		. X	Frame Ground
2	103	BA		×		×	Transmitted Data
3	104	BB		x		x	Received Data
4	105	CA		x		×	Request to Send
5	106	СВ		. x		X	Clear to Send
6	107	cc		×		×	Data set Ready
7	108	AB	x	x	¢	x	Signal Ground
8	109	CF		. ×		X	Data Carrier Detect
9							+ dc Test Voltage
10							- dc Test Voltage
11							Unassigned
12	122	SCF		x		x	2nd Data Carrier Detect
13	121	SCB					2nd Clear to Send
14	118	SBA					2nd Transmitted Data
15	114	DB		x		×	Transmitted Clock
16	119	SBB		-			2nd Received Data
17	115	DD		x		x	Receiver Clock
18							Receiver Dibit Clock
19	120	SCA					2nd Request to Send
20	108.2	CD		×		×	Data Terminal Ready
21	110	CG					Signal Quality Detect
22	125	CE		×		×	Ring Indicator
23							Data Rate Select
24	113	DA		×		×	Ext. Transmitter Clock
25							Busy

V.24 PIN ASSIGNMENTS Simulation Mode

DB25 Pin No.	CCITT Circuit No.	EIA	Ground	To DCE	From DCE	Processed by Chameleon	RS232 NAME
1	101	AA	x			X	Frame Ground
2	103	BA		×		· X	Transmitted Data
3	104	BB			x	x	Received Data
4	105	CA		x		x	Request to Send
5	106	СВ			x	X	Clear to Send
6	107	CC			×	X	Data set Ready
7	108	AB	x			x	Signal Ground
8	109	CF			×	X	Data Carrier Detect
9							+ dc Test Voltage
10							- dc Test Voltage
11							Unassigned
12	122	SCF			×	X	2nd Data Carrier Detect
13	121	SCB			×		2nd Clear to Send
14	118	SBA		×			2nd Transmitted Data
15	114	DB			×	X	Transmitted Clock
16	119	SBB			x		2nd Received Data
17	115	DD	-		×	X	Receiver Clock
18							Receiver Dibit Clock
19	120	SCA		×			2nd Request to Send
20	108.2	CD		x		X	Data Terminal Ready
21	110	CG			X		Signal Quality Detect
22	125	CE			×	X	Ring Indicator
23							Data Rate Select
24	113	DA		x		X	Ext. Transmitter Clock
25							Busy

RS232 CABLE

The DTE must be provided with an extension cable no longer than fifty feet. Longer cables are permitted only if the load capacitance at the interface point does not exceed 2500 picofarads. Restricting cable connections to fifty feet between the computer communications adaptor and the local data set and between the remote data set and the associated terminal guards against excessive signal distortion.

For terminal emulation (page 10) and Kermit file transfer (page 11), you may have to use a special RS232 cable, depending on the device you are connecting to the Chameleon. This cable configuration requires pin 7 and 7 connected and pin 2 and 3 switched, as shown in the figure below.



103

V.35 INTERFACE

The V.35 interface module includes:

- One male connector (reference AMP 201 357–1)
- One female connector (reference AMP 200 838–2)
- Standard SAE 632 mounting hardware single lead jackscrew.

The male connector's male jackpost is near pin MM. The female connector's female jackscrew is near pin MM. The diameter of the pins is 0.060" for units to be used in the U.S., Japan, Australia and England. For France, Switzerland and Sweden, the diameter is 0.040".

The pins can be removed or reassigned easily using an AMP tool (reference AMP 305 183).

Electrical Characteristics

The unbalanced signals have electrical characteristics which conform to the CCITT's V.28/EIA RS232.

Driver Output voltage: Output impedance: Output slew rate: Receiver Input resistance:

Input voltage max: hysteresis: +/- 10 volts 300 ohms 30 volts/microseconds approximately 5 Kohms +/- 25 volts 3 to 4 volts

The balanced signals have electrical characteristics which conform to the CCITT's X.27/EIA RS422.

Driver Output resistance: Lead to ground: Output current: Output voltage: Receiver Input resistance: Lead to ground:

Input sensitivity:

200 ohms differential 175 ohms 150 mA maximum +/- 3 volts 200 ohms differential 175 ohms +/- 200 mvolts
V.35 INTERFACE PIN ASSIGNMENT

Pin No.	CCITT Circuit No.	Name	Fro	om	Ту	pe	RS232 Name	
			DCE	DTE	Bal	Unbai		
Α		FG					Frame Ground	
В	102	SG					Signal Ground	
С	105	RTS		x		x	Request to Send	
D	106	CTS	x			x	Clear to Send	
E	107	DSR	×			x	Data Set Ready	
F	109	DCD	×			×	Data Carrier Detect	
H.	108	DTR		x		x	Data Terminal Ready	
J	125	RI	×			×	Ring Indicator	
ρ	103	TD (A)		x	×		Transmit Data	
R	104	RD (A)	×		×		Receive Data	
S	103	TD (B)		x	x		Transmit Data	
Т	104	RD (B)	×		×		Receive Data	
U	113	SCTE (A)		X	x		Transmitter Signal Timing	
V	115	SCR (A)	x		×		Receiver Signal Timing	
W	113	SCTE (B)		x	×		Transmitter Signal Timing	
X	115	SCR (B)	×		×		Receiver Signal Timing	
Y	114	SCT (A)	x		x		Transmitter Signal Timing	
AA/a	114	SCT (B)	×		×		Transmitter Signal Timing	

105

RS423/V.10/V.36 INTERFACE

The physical connection of interchange circuits within a data terminal and a data set is made by a pair of pluggable connectors (the interface point.) The Chameleon side is a 37 pin D-subminature socket (female) connector (DB37S).

The terminal side consists of the matching male connector (DB37P). The pinout below is shown as the connector is viewed from the rear of the machine:



Electrical Characteristics

This is an unbalanced signal which has electrical characteristics which conform to CCITT's V.10/EIA RS423.

Driver Output voltage: Output impedance: Output current: Receiver Input Voltage: Input impedance: Input sensitivity:

± < 50 ohms 150 mA maximum ± 10 voits

± 200 mvolts

RS423/V.10/V.36 CONNECTOR PINOUT

.

DB37 Pin Number	ISO Circuit	CCITT Circuit Mnemonic and Name		Circuit Direction	Circuit Type		Implem- ented by Chameleon
19	102	SG	Signal ground	-			X
37	102a	sc	Send Common	To DCE	Common		х
20	102Б	RC	Receive Common	From DCE			· X
28	135	IS	Terminal in Service	To DCE			
15	125	IC	Incoming Call	From DCE	Control		
12/30	108	TR	Terminal Ready	To DCE			х
11 / 29	107	DM	Data Mode	From DCE			х
4/22	103	SD	Send Data	To DCE	Data	Ρ	X
6/24	104	RD	Receive Data	From DCE		R	х
17 / 35	113	Π	Terminal Timing	To DCE		1	x
5 / 23	114	ST	Send Timing	From DCE	Timing	М	х
8 / 26	115	RT	Receive Timing	From DCE		Α	х
7 / 25	105	RS	Request to Send	To DCE		R	X
9 / 27	106	cs	Clear to Send	From DCE	Y		х
13 / 31	109	RR	Receiver Ready	From DCE		С	х
- 33	110	sa	Signal Quality	From DCE	Control	Н	
34	136	NS	New Signal	To DCE		Α	
16	111 / 126	SF	Select Frequency	To DCE		N	
16	111 / 126	SR	Signaling Rate Selector	To DCE		Ν	
2	112	SI	Signaling Rate Indicator	From DCE		E	
		L			1	L	
10	141		Local Loopback	IO DCE			
14	140	RL	Remote Loopback	TO DCE	Control		
18	142	TM	Test Mode	From DCE			
32	116	SS	Select Standby	To DCE	Control		
36	117	S8_	Standby Indicator	From DCE			

.

RS422/V.11/V.36 INTERFACE

The physical connection of interchange circuits within a data terminal and a data set is made by a pair of pluggable connectors (the interface point.) The Chameleon side is a 37 pin D–subminature socket (female) connector (DB37S).

The terminal side consists of the matching male connector (DB37P). The pinout below is shown as the connector is viewed from the rear of the machine:



Electrical Characteristics

RS422 is a Balanced Voltage Digital Signal with electrical characteristics which conform to the CCITT's V.11/X.27.

Driver Output resistance: Lead to ground: Output current: Output voltage: Receiver Input resistance: Lead to ground: Input sensitivity: 200 ohms differential 175 ohms 150 mA maximum ± 3 volts 200 ohms differential 175 ohms ± 200 mvolts

RS422/V.11/V.36 CONNECTOR PINOUT

D837 Pin Number	ISO Circuit	CCITT Circuit Mnemonic and Name		Circuit Direction	Circuit Type		Implem- ented by Chameleon
19	102	SG	Signal ground	-			X
37	102a	sc	Send Common	To DCE	Common		X
20	102b	RC	Receive Common	From DCE			х
28	135	IS	Terminal in Service	To DCE			X
15	125	IC	Incoming Call	From DCE	Control		x
12/30	108	TR	Terminal Ready	To DCE			x
11 / 29	107	DM	Data Mode	From DCE			x
4 / 22	103	SD	Send Data	To DCE	Data	Ρ	Х
6/24	104	RD	Receive Data	From DCE		R	Х
17 / 35	113	Π	Terminal Timing	To DCE		1	X
5/23	114	ST	Send Timing	From DCE	Timing	м	X
8 / 26	115	RT	Receive Timing	From DCE		A	Х
7 / 25	105	RS	Request to Send	To DCE		R	Х
9/27	106	cs	Clear to Send	From DCE		Y	Х
13/31	109	RR	Receiver Ready	From DCE		C	х
33	110 .	sa	Signal Quality	From DCE	Control	н	
34	136	NS	New Signal	To DCE		A	
16	111 / 126	SF	Select Frequency	To DCE		N	
16	111 / 126	SR	Signaling Rate Selector	To DCE		N	
2	112	SI	Signaling Rate Indicator	From DCE		Ε	
4.0						L	······
10	141		Local Loopback	IO DCE	.		
14	140	HL.	Hemote Loopback	IO DCE	Control		
18	142	IM	lest Mode	From DCE			
32	116	SS	Select Standby	To DCE	Control		
36	117	SB	Standby Indicator	From DCE			

109

PARALLEL PRINTER CONNECTOR PINOUT

The Chameleon parallel printer connector is a 25 pin D-sub socket (female) connector (DB25S). This connector is pinout and signal compatible with the IBM PC. It is also signal compatible with Centronics compatible parallel interface printers. The pinout is as shown below:



All signals are standard TTL levels. Pin Number Description

1	/STROBE (Active Low)
2	Data 0
3	Data 1
4	Data 2
5	Data 3
6	Data 4
7	Data 5
8	Data 6
9	Data 7
10	/ACK (Active Low)
11	Busy
12	No Connection
13	No Connection
14	No Connection
15	No Connection
16	No Connection
17	No Connection
18	Ground
19	Ground
20	Ground
21	Ground
22	Ground
23	Ground
24	No Connection
25	Ground

SERIAL PRINTER CONNECTOR PINOUT

The Chameleon serial printer connector is a 25 pin D-subminature socket (female) (DB25S). The pinout is shown as the connector is viewed from the rear of the machine:



All signals are standard RS-232 voltage levels. The connector is physically and electrically a DCE type connector.

DB25 Pin No.	CCITT Circuit No.	EIA	Source	Signal Name		
1	101	AA	Chassis		Chassis Ground	
2	103	BA	Printer	TXD	Transmit Data	
3	104	BB	Chameleon	RXD	Receive Data	
4	105	CA	Printer	RTS	Request to Send	
5	106	СВ	Chameleon	CTS	Clear to Send	
6	107	cc	Chameleon	DSR	Data Set Ready	
7	102	AB	Signal Gnd.	GND	Signal Ground	
8	109	CF	Chameleon	DCD	Carrier Detect	
15	114	DB	Chameleon	тхс	Transmit Clock	
17	115	DD	Chameleon	RXC	Receive Clock	
20	108	CD	Printer	DTR	Data Terminal Ready	
24	-	DA	Printer	ск	External Clock	

REMOTE I/O CONNECTOR PINOUT

The Chameleon Remote I/O connector is a 25 pin D-subminature socket (female) (DB25S). The pinout is shown as the connector is viewed from the rear of the machine:



All signals are standard RS232 voltage levels. The connector is physically and electrically a DCE type connector.

DB25 Pin No.	CCITT Circuit No.	EIA	Source	Signal Name	
1	101	AA	Chassis		Chassis Ground
2	103	BA	Printer	TXD	Transmit Data
3	104	88	Chameleon	RXD	Receive Data
4	105	CA	Printer	RTS	Request to Send
5	106	CB	Chameleon	стѕ	Clear to Send
6	107	cc	Chameleon	DSR	Data Set Ready
7	102	AB	Signal Gnd.	GND	Signal Ground
8	109	CF	Chameleon	DCD	Carrier Detect
15	114	DB	Chameleon	тхс	Transmit Clock
17	115	DD	Chameleon	RXC	Receive Clock
20	108	CD	Printer	DTR	Data Terminal Ready
24		DA	Printer	ск	External Clock

AUX 1 AND AUX 2 PORTS CONNECTOR PINOUTS

The Chameleon Aux 1 and Aux 2 serial port connectors are 25 pin D-subminature sockets (female) (DB25S). The pinout for both is shown as the connector is viewed from the rear of the machine:

13 12 11 10 <

All signals are standard RS232 voltage levels. The connector is physically and electrically a DCE type connector.

DB25 Pin No.	CCITT Circuit No.	EIA	Source	Signal Name		
			-			
1	101	AA	N/C		Chassis Ground	
2	103	BA	Terminal	тхр	Transmit Data	
3	104	BB	Chameleon	RXD	Receive Data	
4	105	CA	Terminal	RTS	Request to Send	
5	106	СВ	Chameleon	стѕ	Clear to Send	
6	107	cc	Chameleon	DSR	Data Set Ready	
.7	102	AB	Signal Gnd.	GND	Signal Ground	
15	114	DB	Chameleon	тхс	Transmit Clock	
17	115	DD	Chameleon	RXC	Receive Clock	
20	108	CD	Terminal	DTR	Data Terminal Ready	
22	125	CE	Terminal	RI	Ring Indicator	
24	_	DA	Terminal	СК	External Clock	

VIDEO CONNECTOR PINOUT

The Chameleon video connector is a 9 pin D–sub socket (female) connector (DB9S). The pinout is as shown below:



All signals are standard TTL levels.

Pin No.	Description
1	Ground
2	Ground
3	Red
4	Green
5	Blue
6	Intensity
7	Monochrome
8	Horizontal Sync.
9	Vertical Sync.

This connector is pinout and signal compatible with the IBM PC. The video signal requires a monitor capable of displaying 640 pixels by 240 lines (this is higher resolution than the standard PC CGA standard). High resolution or "Multisync" type monitors are recommended for use with the Chameleon.

SCSI INTERFACE SIGNALS

The Chameleon SCSI interface signals are as shown below. All signals are low true.

494745434134373533331292725232119171513119775331	Ь
501 48 46 44 42 40 38 36 34 32 30 28 26 24 22 20 18 16 14 12 10 8 6 4 2	\mathbf{F}

All odd pins are ground.

GND	1	2	Data Bit 0 (DB0).
	3	4	Data Bit 1 (DB1).
	5	Ġ	Data Bit 2 (DB2).
•	7	ă .	Data Bit 3 (DB3)
	à	10	Data Bit 4 (DB4)
•	11	12	Data Bit 5 (DB5)
*	13	14	Data Bit 6 (DB6)
*	15	16	Data Bit 7 (DB7)
•	17	10	Data Parity(DBP)
•	10	20	Open
•	13	20	Open.
•	21	22	Open.
٠	23	24	Open.
•	20	20	Open.
•	27	28	Open.
•	29	30	Open.
•	31	32	Open.
•	33	34	Open.
٠	35	36	Busy (BSY).
e	37	38	Acknowledge (ACK).
۰	39	40	Reset (RST).
•	41	42	Message (MSG).
*	43	44	Select (SEL).
	45	46	Control/Data (C/D).
	47	48	Request (REQ)GND
GND	49	50	Input/Output (I/O)
	· •		···· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ·

DSCS INTERFACE

The Digital Signal Customer Service (DSCS) interface has two receiver circuits and one transmitter circuit, enabling it to operate in either a Simulation or Monitoring mode. The figure below shows the DSCS Interface module as viewed from the rear of the machine.



The receiver (A) and transmitter (B) connections to the DSCS interface are industry-standard 3--conductor bantam jacks. The receivers operate with standard DSCS/DDS signals per AT&T Pub 62310 and Bellcore TA-TSY-000083. The maximum distance from OCU and DSU is 1000 feet.

The transmitter provides a balanced output. The pulse amplitude and shape is in accordance with AT&T Pub 62310 and Bellcore TA-TSY-000083. The internal clock provides 56 KBPS 0.01%. This clock times the transmission when the Master/Slave switch is in the Master position. The pulse amplitude is 1.66 volts nominal. The encoding/decoding method is AMI with zero suppression.

SIMULATE

MODEIn SIMULATE mode, the DSCS uses one transmitter (B) and one receiver (A). In this mode, the
interface provides the clock to the Chameleon; therefore, the Chameleon must be configured as a
DTE. The TERM/BRIDGE switch setting determines the input impedance, as follows:
TERMTERMTerminated. Provides a 135 ohm nominal input impedance 5 ohms, balanced
BRIDGEBRIDGEProvides an input impedance greater than 3 K ohms, balanced
The Master/Slave switch selects the transmitter clock used by the DSCS Interface, as follows:
MasterMasterTransmits to the network using the internally generated clock
Slave

MONITOR

MODE

In MONITOR mode, the DSCS uses two receivers: the SIMULATE receiver (A) and the MONITOR receiver (A). A TERM/BRIDGE switch is provided for each receiver. For both receivers, the DSCS Interface derives a clock from the received signal for use in received timing.

G.703 CO-DIRECTIONAL INTERFACE MODULE

The CCITT G.703 Co-Directional Interface for the Chameleon 32 operates at 64 Kbps. It contains two receiver circuits and one transmitter circuit. This allows the interface to operate in either Simulation or Monitoring mode. The document used as a standard reference is the CCITT Red Book, Volume III – Fascicle III.3, Recommendation G.703. The figure below shows the Co-Directional Interface module as viewed from the rear of the machine.



In simulate mode, the Co-Directional interfaces uses both the transmitter and receiver. In this mode, the Co-Directional interface module must be configured as a DTE. The Master/Slave switch selects the transmitter clock source used by the Co-Directional interface, as follows:

- •¢ When Master is selected, the transmit clock is generated by the internal clock of the Co-Directional interface.
- •¢ When slave is selected, the transmit clock is derived from the recovered receive clock, and is thus synchronous to the receive clock.

In Monitor mode, the Co-Directional interfaces uses two receivers: the Simulate receiver and the Monitor receiver. Both receivers use the received clock for receive timing.

Each receiver is provided with a Term/Bridge switch. When Term is selected, the line is terminated with a 120 ohm nominal input impedance. When Bridge is selected, the input impedance is greater than 3k ohms. If multiple receivers are connected to one line, only one should be terminated, and the remaining receivers set for Bridge mode. If only one receiver is connected, it should be in Term mode.

Receivers Receivers operate with standard Co-Directional signals per CCITT Recommendation G.703.

- Coding method: per G.703
- Input Impedance:
 - 120 ohms 5 ohms, balanced (Term mode)
 - > 3k ohms, balanced (Bridge mode)
 - Bipolar signal input range 5.0 Volts peak-to-peak to 0.3 Volts peak-to-peak

Transmitter

The transmitter provides a balanced output.

- Output impedance: 120 ohms 5 ohms
- Pulse amplitude and shape is in accordance with CCITT Rec. G.703.
- Encoding method: per CCITT Rec. G.703
- Internal clock provides 64 KBPS 100 ppm.
- Pulse amplitude: 1.0 volts nominal, into 120 ohm balanced
- Peak voltage of no pulse: 0 0.1 volts

X.21 INTERFACE INTERFACE MODULE

The X.21 Interface is a combined hardware/software package that provides a physical interface for simulation and monitoring. The X.21 Interface module is shown in the figure below. The X.21 interface conforms to the following CCITT recommendations:

- CCITT recommendation X.21 1984
- CCITT recommendation V.11 1984
- CCITT recommendation X.4 1980



The 15 pin connector pin out is as follows:

Pin No.		Description
1	Shield	
2	T(A)	Transmit (A)
3	C(A)	Control (A)
4	R(A)	Receive (A)
5	I(A)	Indication (A)
6	S(A)	Signal Element Timing (A)
7	B(A)	Byte Timing (A)
8	Ground	i
90	T(B)	Transmit (B)
10	C(B)	Control (B)
11	R(B)	Receive (B)
12	I(B)	Indication (B)
13	S(B)	Signal Element Timing (B)
14	B(B)	Byte Timing (B)
15	Reserv	red

Refer to the Chameleon Protocol Interpretation Manual, Chapter 18, for a description of the X.21 software.

U-INTERFACE I/O MODULE

The ISDN PHYSICAL INTERFACE is a combined hardware/software package for 2B1Q U-interface simulation and monitoring. Although designed to accommodate Basic Rate and Primary Rate, software is not presently available for these implementations. A more complete description of this hardware is found in Chapter 20: 2B1Q U-Interface of the *Protocol Interpretation Manual*.



The EXT1 and EXT2 connectors are 15--pin, D-subminiature females, DA15S type. The figures below give the pinouts for these bi-directional connectors. All signals are standard RS422 voltage levels.

An RS449 cable is provided with the ISDN 2B1Q U-INTERFACE package. The chart below correlates the pins of this cable with those of the DA15S connectors.

DA15S Pin Number	RS449 Pin Number	Description	Direction
1 2 3 4 5 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	1 22 - 24 - 23 19 4 - 6 - 5 -	Chassis Ground Send Data B Unused Receive Data B Unused Send Timing B Signal Ground Send Data A Unused Receive Data A Unused Send Timing A Unused	Input Input Inputs Output Output Output Output
15	8	Receive Timing A	Output